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Disclosures to be provided along with the application for listing

1. Issuer details:

1.1. Details of the issuer:

()

(i) Line of business: Non-Banking Finance Company (Lending against securities)

Annexure |

Name HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited

Address 9-11 Floor, NESCO IT Park, Building No. 3, Western Express Highway, Goregaon
(East), Mumbai — 400 063, Maharashtra, India

CIN U67190MH1996PLC097473

PAN AAACT3247R

(iii) Chief Executive (Managing Director / President/ CEO / CFO)

Managing Director

Mr. Shantanu Shankar

Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Sunita Sarda

(iv) Group affiliation (if any): The Company is part of HSBC Group since 29t September 2008.

1.2. Details of the directors: As on 15t January 2023.

Sr. | Name, designation Age Address Director List of other
No. and DIN since directorships
1 Mr. Shantanu 13 January 5/71 Kalpataru Estate, 29 January . HSBC InvestDirect
Shankar 1976 / 47 JV Link Road, Poonam | 2018 (India) Private
Managing Director years Nagar Andheri East, Limited
DIN: 08054929 Mumbai-400093 . HSBC InvestDirect
Sales and Marketing
(India) Limited
. HSBC InvestDirect
Securities (India)
Private Limited
2 Mr. Brij Bhushan 20 April B-603, Mahadev 19 January | 1. HSBC Securities
Director 1977 /45 Towers Co. Op. Hsg. 2022 and Capital Markets
DIN: 09288911 years Thakur Complex, (India) Private
Kandival (East) Limited
Mumbai - 400101 . HSBC InvestDirect
(India) Private
Limited
. HSBC InvestDirect
Securities (India)
Private Limited
. HSBC InvestDirect
Sales & Marketing
(India) Limited
3 Mrs. Payal Advani 20 202, Mangal Kalyan, 01 HSBC InvestDirect
Director November Rosebud Apts, Military | February Securities (India)
DIN: 09482109 1974 /48 Camp, Kalina, 2022 Private Limited
years Santacruz (East),
Mumbai — 400029
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1.3 Details of change in directors in last three financial years (1 April 2019 to 31st March 2022) including any change
in the current year: As of 15" January 2023.

Sr.
No.

Name, designation and DIN

Date of
appointment/
resignation

Date of cessation
(in case of
resignation)

Remarks (viz.
reasons for
change etc.)

1

Deepak Sarup
Director
DIN: 09494760

09 February 2022

16 November 2022

Due to resignation

Mr. Madhur Malviya
Director
DIN: 07389724

27 June 2018

13 April 2022

Due to resignation

Mr. Butun Mohapatra
Director
DIN: 07977893

NA

6 September 2019

Due to resignation

Mr. Vipul Malkan
Director
DIN: 05158393

20 April 2017

01 April 2021

Due to resignation

Mr. Arvind Sethi
Independent Director
DIN : 00001565

30 March 2015

26 October 2021

Due to resignation

Mr. Brij Bhushan
Additional Director
DIN: 09288911

19 January 2022

NA

Due to appointment

Mrs. Payal Advani
Additional Director
DIN: 09482109

01 February 2022

NA

Due to appointment

Ms. Sharada Sangekar
Chairperson
DIN: 07788255

20 April 2017

8 February 2022

Due to resignation

Ms. Leena Gidwani
Independent Director
DIN: 06969243

30 March 2015

08 March 2022

Due to resignation

1.4. List of top 10 holders of equity shares of the Company as on 15" January 2023:

Sr.no Name and category of Total no. of equity No. of shares in | Total shareholding as %
shareholder shares demat form of total no. of equity
shares
1 HSBC InvestDirect (India) |14,62,84,720 Nil 100%
Limited (“HIDL”) *
* Includes 70 Shares held by HIDL jointly with the employees of HSBC Group.

1.5.Details of the statutory auditor:

Name and address Date of appointment Remarks

Price Waterhouse Chartered
Accountants LLP

52, Veer Savarkar Marg,

Dadar (West), Shivaji Park, Mumbai

22 September 2020

2020 for a period

Re-appointed as an Auditor at Annual
General Meeting held on 22 September

of 5 years.
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1.6. Details of the change in statutory auditors in last three financial years including any change in the current year:
Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP were re-appointed at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held
on 22 September 2020 for another period of 5 years as the term of PWC was expiring at the AGM held in the
year 2020.

1.7.List of top 10 debt securities holders: Currently, the Company does not have any outstanding debentures.

1.8. List of top 10 CP holders as on date 15 January 2023:

Sr. Category of Face val'ue of |CP holding
No. Name of CP holder CP holder CP holding percentage as a percentage of total
(Rs.) CP outstanding of the issuer
1 |Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee | Mutual Funds 5,00,000 7.00%
Pvt. Ltd. A/c Aditya Birla Sun
Life Money Manager Fund
2 Tata Mutual Fund — Tata | Mutual Funds 5,00,000 5.00%
Treasury Advantage Fund
3 [Tata Mutual Fund — Tata Ultra] Mutual Funds 5,00,000 5.00%
Short Term Fund
4 |HDFC Trustee Company Ltd.| Mutual Funds 5,00,000 16.00%
AJ/C HDFC Liquid Fund
5 |Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee | Mutual Funds 5,00,000 13.00%
Pvt. Ltd. A/c Aditya Birla Sun
Life Liquid Fund
6 DSP Ultra Short Fund Mutual Funds 5,00,000 15.00%
7 |HDFC Trustee Company Ltd.| Mutual Funds 5,00,000 5.00%
AJ/C HDFC Liquid Fund
8 |Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee| Mutual Funds 5,00,000 7.00%
Pvt. Ltd. A/c Aditya Birla Sun
Life Liguid Fund
9 |Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee| Mutual Funds 5,00,000 10.00%
Pvt. Ltd. A/c Aditya Birla Sun
Life Liquid Fund
10 |Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee| Mutual Funds 5,00,000 10.00%
Pvt. Ltd. A/c Aditya Birla Sun
Life Liquid Fund
11 DSP Liquidity Fund Mutual Funds 5,00,000 7.00%

2. Material Information: -

2.1. Details of all default/s and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of CPs, (including technical delay),
debt securities, term loans, external commercial borrowings and other financial indebtedness including
corporate guarantee issued in the past 5 financial years including in the current financial year. NIL

2.2. Ongoing and/or outstanding material litigation and regulatory strictures, if any. NIL

2.3. Any material event/ development having implications on the financials/credit quality including any material
regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, tax litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate
restructuring event which may affect the issue or the investor’s decision to invest / continue to invest in the CP.

NIL
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3. Details of borrowings of the Company, as on the latest quarter end: As on 315 December 2022

3.1 Details of debt securities and CPs:

Tenor/ Redem Secured
Period A t Date of ption Credit /
Series ISIN of coLy __ Amoun allotm date / ;
Maturit on issued (Rs.) ent Schedu rating Unsecur
y le ed
HIFSL/202 | INE79011 | 63 days 7.30% | 600,000,000.00 | 19-10- 21-12- CRISIL Unsecure
2/CP017 4CH5 2022 2022 Ltd. & d
India
Ratings &
Research
HIFSL/202 | INE79011 | 91 days 7.38% | 800,000,000.00 | 21-10- 20-01- CRISIL Unsecure
2/CP018 4CI3 2022 2023 Ltd. & d
India
Ratings &
Research
HIFSL/202 | INE79011 | 54 days 7.40% | 650,000,000.00 | 02-11- 26-12- CRISIL Unsecure
2/CP019 4CJ1 2022 2022 Ltd. & d
India
Ratings &
Research
HIFSL/202 | INE79011 | 91days 7.60% | 650,000,000.00 | 07-11- 06-02- CRISIL Unsecure
2/CP020 4CK9 2022 2023 Ltd. & d
India
Ratings &
Research
HIFSL/202 | INE79011 | 139 days | 7.90% | 750,000,000.00 | 29-11- 17-04- CRISIL Unsecure
2/CP021 4CL7 2022 2023 Ltd. & d
India
Ratings &
Research
HIFSL/202 | INE79011 | 90 days 7.40% | 600,000,000.00 | 09-12- 09-03- CRISIL Unsecure
2/CP022 4CM5 2022 2023 Ltd. & d
India
Ratings &
Research
HIFSL/202 | INE79011 | 90 days 7.49% | 500,000,000.00 | 21-12- 21-03- CRISIL Unsecure
2/CP023 4CN3 2022 2023 Ltd. & d
India
Ratings &
Research
HIFSL/202 | INE79011 | 147 days | 8.05% | 500,000,000.00 | 26-12- 22-05- CRISIL Unsecure
2/CP024 4C0O1 2022 2023 Ltd. & d
India
Ratings &
Research

3.2. Details of secured/ unsecured loan facilities/ bank fund based facilities/ rest of the borrowing, if any, including

hybrid debt like foreign currency convertible bonds (FCCB), optionally convertible debentures / preference
shares from banks or financial institutions or financial creditors, as on last quarter end: 31st December 2022
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Lender’ s name/ Name| Nature of Amount Principal Repay ment |Secur| Credit Asset
of the Bank facility/ | sanctioned Amount date / ity, if |rating, iflclassification
instrument (Rs.) outstanding | schedule [applic|applica
(Rs.) able ble
HDFC Bank Limited Overdraft |38,00,00,000 [9,25,66,965 |[Based on Fixed [NA Standard
facility Fixed Deposit|Depos
Maturity it
The Hongkong & Cash Credit[250,000,000 |NIL One year NA |NA Standard
Shanghai Banking Overdraft however
Corporation Limited repayable on
demand
The Hongkong & 'Working 500,000,000 [NIL One year NA |NA Standard
Shanghai Banking Capital however
Corporation Limited Demand repayable on
demand
Indusind Bank Long Term (750,000,000 (200,000,000 |One year NA [NA Standard
Committed however
Line of repayable on
Credit demand
Indusind Bank \Working 100,000,000 [NIL One year NA |NA Standard
Capital however
Demand repayable on
Loan demand
HSBC InvestDirect Line of 2,000,000,000(162,00,00,000 |Bullet NA [NA Standard
(India) Limited Credit repayment on
maturity or at
the option of
the borrower

3.3. The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the issuer along with name of the
counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, JV entity, group company, etc.) on behalf of whom it has been
issued, contingent liability including debt service reserve account (DSRA) guarantees/ any put option etc. NIL

4.
4.1

Issue Information: -

Details of current tranche including ISIN, amount, date of issue, maturity, all credit ratings including unaccepted

ratings, date of rating, name of credit rating agency, its validity period (details of credit rating letter issued not
older than one month on the date of opening of the issue), details of issuing and paying agent and other

conditions, if any.

Proposed Date of issue 20/01/2023

Credit Rating for CP CRA-1 CRA-2

Credit Rating “CRISIL A1+” “IND A1+”

Issued by CRISIL Ltd. India Ratings & Research Pvt. Ltd.
Date of Rating 13/01/2023 13/01/2023

Validity for Issuance 30 Days 30 Days

Validity period of Rating 21/04/2023 21/04/2023

Rating for Amount 1000 crs. 1000 crs.

Conditions (if any) Standalone

Exact Purpose of Issue of | Working Capital Purpose / Onward Lending / Repayment of Debt
CP

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Regd. Office: 9-11 Floor, NESCO IT Park, Building No. 3, Western Express Highway,
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Description of Instrument Commercial Paper
ISIN INE790114CR4
Issue Amount (Rs.) INR.60,00,00,000/-
Maturity Date 21/04/2023

Amount (Discounted) (Rs.) | INR. 58,85,54,400/- | Rupees Fifty Eight Crores Eighty Five Lakhs Fifty Four
Thousand Four Hundred Only

Issued by HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited

Issuing and Paying agent HDFC Bank Limited. Treasury Operations (TROPS), Lodha - | Think Techno
Campus, Building - Alpha, 4th Floor — Office, Near, Kanjur Marg Railway
Station, Kanjur Marg (E), Mumbai - 400 042

We do hereby declare that the credit ratings are valid as on the date of issuance and listing

4.2  CP borrowing limit, supporting board resolution for CP borrowing, details of CP issued during the last 15 months.
e The Board approved CP borrowing limit is Rs.1000 crore. The Board resolution dated 24t September 2019
for the same is attached as Exhibit A
e Details of CP issued during the last 15 months:

ISIN ISSUE AMOUNT | MATURITY |AMOUNT O/S IPA CRA RATING | RATED
DATE (Rs.) DATE (Rs.) AMOUNT
(Crores)

INE790114 [27/09/2021 | 10,00,00,000 29/12/2021|Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BPO Bank Ltd. [India Ratings |Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |11/11/2021 | 30,00,00,000; 10/02/2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BQ8 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings [Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 [31/01/2022 | 60,00,00,000, 29/04/2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BR6 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings [Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |08-02-2022 | 50,00,00,000, 09-05-2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BS4 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings [Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |14-02-2022 | 40,00,00,000, 23-06-2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BT2 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |15-03-2022 | 75,00,00,000, 12-09-2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BUO Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 [25-03-2022 | 60,00,00,000] 24-06-2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BV8 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings [Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 [22-04-2022 | 65,00,00,000, 19-10-2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BW6 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research |India
INE790114 [27/04/2022 | 110,00,00,00, 27/07/2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BX4 0 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research |India
INE790114 |06/05/2022 | 45,00,00,000, 02/11/2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BY2 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |12/05/2022 | 30,00,00,000, 11/08/2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
BZ9 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research (India
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ISIN ISSUE AMOUNT | MATURITY |AMOUNT O/S IPA CRA RATING | RATED
DATE (Rs.) DATE (Rs.) AMOUNT
(Crores)

INE790114 [23/06/2022 | 40,00,00,000, 26/08/2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CAO Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research |India
INE790114 [26/07/2022 | 50,00,00,000, 25/10/2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CB8 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research |India
INE790114 |10/08/2022 | 60,00,00,000, 09/11/2022)Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CC6 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |Ltd. &

& Research |India
INE790114 [26/08/2022 | 55,00,00,000, 25/11/2022)Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CD4 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |09/09/2022 | 50,00,00,000 09/12/2022|Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CE2 Bank Ltd. [India Ratings |Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |09/09/2022 | 35,00,00,000, 07/03/202235,00,00,000 HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CF9 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings [Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |16/09/2022 | 50,00,00,000, 03/03/202285,00,00,000 HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CG7 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings [Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |19/10/2022 | 60,00,00,000, 21/12/2022)Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CH5 Bank Ltd. [India Ratings |Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 [21/10/2022 | 80,00,00,000, 20/01/2023Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CI3 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |02/11/2022 | 65,00,00,000, 26/12/2022Nil HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CJ1 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |07/11/2022 | 65,00,00,000, 06/02/2023 150,00,00,000HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CK9 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings [Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 [29/11/2022 | 75,00,00,000, 17/04/2023225,00,00,000 HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CL7 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings [Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 (09/12/2022 | 60,00,00,000] 09/03/2023285,00,00,000 HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & [CRISIL 1,000
CM5 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 [21/12/2022 | 50,00,00,000] 21/03/2023335,00,00,000 HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & [CRISIL 1,000
CN3 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 [26/12/2022 | 50,00,00,000, 22/05/2023385,00,00,000 HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CO1 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research (India
INE790114 |10/01/2023 | 40,00,00,000, 10/04/2023425,00,00,000 HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & |CRISIL 1,000
CP8 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research |India
INE790114 (19/01/2023 | 40,00,00,000 20/06/2023465,00,00,000 HDFC CRISIL Ltd. & [CRISIL 1,000
CQ6 Bank Ltd. |India Ratings |[Ltd. &

& Research |India
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4.3

4.4

End-use of funds: Working Capital Purpose / Onward Lending / Repayment of Debt

Credit Support/enhancement (if any): Nil

® Details of instrument, amount, guarantor company

(i) Copy of the executed guarantee

(i) Net worth of the guarantor company

(iv) Names of companies to which guarantor has issued similar guarantee
(V) Extent of the guarantee offered by the guarantor company

(vi) Conditions under which the guarantee will be invoked

5. Financial Information: -

11

1.2

1.3

Audited / Limited review half yearly consolidated (wherever available) and standalone financial information (Profit
& Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) along with auditor qualifications, if any, for last three
years along with latest available financial results.

Financial Statements for the financial year 2021-2022, 2020-2021, 2019 -2020, Limited Review Financial
results for the quarter ended June 2022 are attached as Exhibit B, B1, B2 and B3.

In case an issuer is required to prepare financial results for the purpose of consolidated financial results in terms
of Regulation 33 of SEBI LODR Regulations, latest available quarterly financial results shall be filed.: Not
applicable

Latest audited financials should not be older than six month from the date of application for listing. -

Provided that listed issuers (who have already listed their specified securities and/or ‘Non-convertible Debt
Securities’ (NCDs) and/or ‘Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares’ (NCRPS)) who are in compliance
with SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015 (hereinafter “SEBI LODR
Regulations”), may file unaudited financials with limited review for the stub period in the current financial year,
subject to making necessary disclosures in this regard including risk factors.

Limited Review Financial results for the half year ended Sep 2022 is attached as Exhibit B4.

6. Asset Liability Management (ALM) Disclosures:

6.1

NBFCs seeking to list their CPs shall make disclosures as specified for NBFCs in SEBI Circular nos. CIR/IMD/DF/12
/2014, dated June 17, 2014 and CIR/IMD/DF/ 6 /2015, dated September 15, 2015, as revised from time to time.
Further, “Total assets under management”, under para 1.a. of Annexure | of CIR/IMD/DF/ 6 /2015, dated September
15, 2015 shall also include details of off balance sheet assets.

1. Classification of loans/advances given to according to:

a. Type of loans -(As on 31 March 2022)

Sr. No. Type of loans Amount (In crore)
1 Secured 858.23
2 Unsecured Nil
Total assets under management (AUM) * 858.23

b. Sectoral Exposure — (As on 31 March 2022)

Sr. No. Segment-wise break-up of AUM Percentage of AUM
1 Retail NA|
a - Mortgages (home loans and loans against property) NA
b - Gold loans NA|
c - Vehicle finance NA|

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Regd. Office: 9-11 Floor, NESCO IT Park, Building No. 3, Western Express Highway,
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Sr. No. Segment-wise break-up of AUM Percentage of AUM
d - MFI NA
e - M&SME NA

- Capital market funding (loans against shares, margin 80.53
f funding)
g - Others Nil
2 Wholesale
a - Infrastructure NA
b - Real estate (including builder loans) NA
c - Promoter funding 19.47
d - Any other sector (as applicable) NA
e - Others NA
Total 100.00

Denomination of loans outstanding by ticket size*: - (As on 31 March 2022)

Sr. No. Ticket size ** Percentage of AUM

1 Upto Rs. 2 lakh 0.00
2 Rs. 2-5 lakh 0.00
3 Rs. 5-10 lakh 0.00
4 Rs. 10-25 lakh 0.15
5 Rs. 25-50 lakh 0.40
6 Rs. 50 lakh-1 crore 0.76
7 Rs. 1-5 crore 4.83
8 Rs. 5-25 crore 37.21
9 Rs. 25-100 crore 56.65
10 >Rs. 100 crore 0.00

Total 100.00

* Information required at the borrower level (and not by loan account as a customer may have multiple loan

accounts)

** Ticket size at the time of origination

d. Denomination of loans outstanding by LTV*: - (As on 31 March 2022)

Sr. No. LTV Percentage of AUM

1 Upto 40% 1.44
2 40-50% 85.94
3 50-60% 5.03
4 60-70% 0.03
5 70-80% 1.08
6 80-90% 6.48
7 >90% 0.00

Total 100.00

*LTV at the time of origination

e. Geographical classification of borrowers - (As on 31 March 2022)

Sr. No. Top 5 states Percentage of AUM
1 Maharashtra 45.89
2 Delhi 39.02
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3 Uttar Pradesh 3.59
4 Andhra Pradesh 3.06
5 West Bengal 2.82

Total 94.38

f. Aggregated exposure to the top 20 borrowers with respect to the concentration of advances,
exposures to be disclosed in the manner as prescribed by RBI in its guidelines on Corporate
Governance for NBFCs, from time to time.

a) Details of top 20 borrower with respect to concentration of Exposure (As on 31 March 2022-
audited)-
Particulars
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of exposure to twenty largest borrowers to
total exposure to our Company

Amount (in Lakhs)
81,700.00
56%

b) Details of top 20 borrower with respect to concentration of advances -(As on 31 March 2022

audited)
Particulars Amount (in Lakhs)
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 62,825.74
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to 73%

total advances to our Company

g. Details of loans overdue and classified as non-performing in accordance with the RBI’s guidelines —
(As on 31 March 2022-audited)

(1) Movement of gross NPA* Amount
Opening gross NPA Nil
- Additions during the year Nil
- Reductions during the year Nil
Closing balance of gross NPA Nil
*Please indicate the gross NPA recognition policy (DPD)
(2) Movement of provisions for NPA Amount
Opening balance Nil
- Provisions during the year Nil
- Write off / Write-back of excess provisions Nil
Closing balance Nil

h. Segment-wise gross NPA - (As on 31 March 2022)

S. No | Segment-wise gross NPA Gross NPA (%)
1 Retail Nil
a - Mortgages (home loans and loans against property) |NA
b - Gold loans NA
c - Vehicle finance NA
d - MFI NA
e - M&SME NA
- Capital market funding (loans against shares, margin | NIL
f funding
g - Others NIL
2 Wholesale NIL
a - Infrastructure NA
b - Real estate (including builder loans) NA

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Regd. Office: 9-11 Floor, NESCO IT Park, Building No. 3, Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063. Toll Free No. 18002094477
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C - Promoter funding NIL

d - Any other sector (as applicable) NA

e - Others NA
Total

2. Residual maturity profile of assets and liabilities (in line with the RBI format) as on 31 March 2022-
audited:
(Amount in Rs. Crores)

>1 >2 >3
month months | month
Upto | — 2 - 3| s-6 >6 >1 >3 -5
30/31 | months |[months | month |months |years— | years-— ears Total
days S —lyear |3years | 5years y
Deposit * 19.42 9.93 - 0 10.96 0 0 - 40.31
Advances 47.95 13.75 7.40 90.89 443.31 104.68 | 150.25 858.23
Investments - - - - - - - 20.98 20.98
Borrowings 59.79 49.76 98.91 73.20 162.00 443.66
Foreign 0 - - - - - - - -
Currency
assets
Foreign 0 - - - - - - - -
Currency
liabilities

* Comprises Fixed Deposits

3. Any change in promoter’s holdings in NBFCs during the last financial year beyond a particular
threshold. At present, RBI has prescribed such a threshold level at 26%. The same threshold shall be
applicable or as may be prescribed by RBI from time to time. NIL

4. Others
a.Lending policy: Should contain overview of origination, risk management, monitoring and
collections — Attached as Exhibit D

b.Classification of loans/advances given to associates, entities/person relating to the board, senior
management, promoters, others, etc.: Nil —

6.2 HFCs shall make disclosures as specified for NBFCs in SEBI Circular no. CIR/IMD/DF/ 6 /2015, dated September
15, 2015, as revised from time to time with appropriate modifications viz. retail housing loan, loan against property,
wholesale loan - developer and others. Not applicable

For HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
FARZANA  cizaanavi bocron
NAVIL DOCTOR Date: 2023.01.20 10:41:08

+05'30

Ms. Farzana Doctor
Vice President Operations

Date: 20" January 2023
Place: Mumbai
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS OF HSBC INVESTDIRECT FINANCIAL SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
(COMPANY) HELD ON 11 NOVEMBER 2022

REVISION IN AUTHORISED SIGNATORIES

“|T IS RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all the eariier resolutions passed by the Board of
Directors and pursuant to provisions of Section 179, 180 and other applicable provisions, if any
of the Companies Act, 2013 including Rules framed thereunder and any
amendments/modifications thereto and the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer be and are hereby severally authorised
to borrow, from time to time, from banks, financial institutions, mutual funds, asset management
companies, insurance companies, individuals or corporate bodies in the form of commercial
papers for the purpose of business activities on such terms and conditions as they may deem fit
in the best interest of the Company PROVIDED THAT the total outstanding amount borrowed
through commercial paper shall not exceed INR 10,000 million.

THAT any two of the following signatories be and are hereby jointly authorized in the manner
given below to execute and / or sign any documents, agreements, undertakings and such other
papers as may be required under the Common Seal of the Company, if required, in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company and that they be further
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper or
desirable for the purpose of giving full effect to this resolution:

(1) Directors of the Company

(2) Chief Financial Officer

(3) Chief Risk Officer

(4) Company Secretary “

(6) Farzana Doctor

{8) Vice President - Credit Risk

(7)  Shreeja Nair

(8) Rajesh Ainkar

(9) Manish Mishra

{10) Jayesh Taireja

(11) Akshat Tayal

For HSBC investDirect Financial Services (india) Limited

VDA

Sneha Doshi

Company Secretary
Membership No. ACS 18001
Date: 17 November 2022

Place: Mumbai

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited

Regd. Office: 9-11 Floors, NESCO IT Park, Building No. 3, Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063. Toll Free No: 18042094477.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOR

* "The Board of Directors
© - HSBC InvestDirect Finanefal Services (India) Linited,
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“T'o the Members of HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited

Report an Audited Results

Board of Dirvectors’ Responsibilities for the Tinarné¢ial Results

These Financial Results have been compiled froms the financial statements. The NEFCQ's Board of
Directors are résponsible for the preparation of these Financidl Results that give a true and fair
Wew of the net profit and ofber comprehensive inconie and othier financial information, tlie
Statement -of Assets and Liabilities and the Statement of Cash Flows in accordance with the
fecognition and measutement pringiples laid down in' Indian Accounting Standards. prescribecl
under Section 133 of the Act read with relevantrules issued thereunder, the relevait provisioins of
the.Banking Regulation Act; 1949, ihe girculars, ‘guidelings . and- directions sstied, by-the Reserve
Bank of Hidia ("RBI”J from time fo time (“RBI :Guidelines™ and othér accounting prmmpies
generaﬂv accepted in India and in compliance with. Regulation. 52 of the Llstmg Regrulatous, This
l"E‘ipﬂ!lSlblllty also ineludeés Maintenancs .of adequate: accountinig recoris in accordanie with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 67 the: NBFC and for. préventing.and detecting
frauds and other lrregu%arltxes' selection and applicatién of appropriate dccounting policies;
malung judgtienits and estiniate’s that are réasonable and priident; anid design, 1mp}ementat:0u -and
mairtenance of adequate internal financial contrals that weres o peraling effectively for ensuring the
aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant fo:the preparation and presenhtmn
of the Financial Results that give a true and fair view and are free'flom rnater:al misstitement,
whether due to fraud orertor.

In preparing the Flnancmi Results, the Board of Directors-are responsible for: assessmg the NBIC's
ability to continue 4s & going concern, dlsdasmg, as applicable, matters related tor going coneern
and. using the going coneern basfs of aceounting unless the Board of Diregtors: either intends to
liquidate the NBFC or.to cease aperations, or lias no reahst:r, alternative but to doso,

“The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the NBEC's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results:

7.

Qur objec‘{lves are to obtaiti reasondble assittince about’ whether the Pinancial Results. as:a whole
are free Trom material migstatement,; whether-due to-fiaud or error, and fo issuean: anditor's report .

‘that includes oitr opinion. Reasonable assurdnee s a high level of assuraiice, but s nota goarintee

thatan.audit condieted in accordance with SAs will always detect a:material misstatement wheir it
exists, Misstatements.can arise {rom fraud or érror and are considered material if, individually or
in ‘the aggregate, they could reasonably bé'expeeted to inflience the econtmig décisiois of users.
taken on the husis of these Finaneial Results.

As part of an audit.in accordance with SAs, we esercise’ professions] judgmient and maintain-

‘professivnal scepticism thy oughout the audit. Wealso:

o Tdentify and assess the-risks of raterial misstatentent-of the financial resiilts, whether duete

fraud or-error, désign and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,-and obtain audit

evidenive that s sufficieit-and appropriaté to provide.a basis for our opinion. The tisk of not

detectmg a material misstaterment resylting from fraud s lngher than for one resultmg from

ervor, as fraud nay inavolve: callusion, forgenr, intentional bmissiots, mlbrepwsentatwns ‘or the
override of interral control.

+ Obtain an understanding: of intemnal. eontrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedives that are appmprlate in the citeimstarices, Uider Seetion143(3)(5) of thie-Act, we are

-also responsible for expressing our opinion on avhether the NRFC has adequate ‘initernal”
financial controls with reférénce to financial stitementsin place and-the operatin B éffectiveness:
of suehreontrols,

Evaluate the approptisteness of accounting policies used and the réasonablenéss of accounting
estimates and Telated disclosures made by the Board of Dirvéctors.
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‘HSRGInVBEMDI et Financta) Sarvicis {idia)

“Statement aF Fitantlal Rosults as at and for the year ended Macthi31,2622

148 armounts i INR thousaads, unlérs othenaize stated }

Quarter ended For the year caded
particalars - - s - - -
3x-03-2022° | 31-13-30 3L-03-202: | 31-03-30%1 31-03;231_1
. . {undnditedt | fieasdiedy | fuasidhedy | {Acdtied] | thisied] |
Agienu from aperatlans -
intetestincomie 13977 G343y 108;252 4187123 450,339
Reversel of imipalrment aivfinincls dssets | - < b - N 3
Het aim b falrvalin chang 2dead. 55161 . 38iy %304 _ 3d.gsd
Total revenue frem agerations: 12226 104,787 1337 33427 390,521
Othet Insome AB261 ¥ 3 ig;788 8
Total Income 138,507 104,749 111,173 449,713 480,528
Expensds. ) ) o
[Finsnce costs 38,047 25414 33,595 . 321E7E .160,90F
limpaiementnn hnancial assets 77 w05 i3 281 -
Employee Benotits expenses 13,320 10,785 5,531 LLEEY: 40;333
Deprechtion and amerilsation ror 5oE fi1:3 1,585 1188
Othersexpentes. 11,688 21881 8423 5238 A9;546
Tatsl exg h5,819 EL NI 515961 2an.500° 321,708
Profit hefare tax.. 72,688 A4,98 458,277 239305 | -238,820.
Income txexpenan; . . L
<Earrent tax. 14,073 13,474 10,858 55,000 (60385
.« Deferred tax 464 {5,340} <630 EEES 350
~IEnteys) provesion lar tax {13,224 i -~ {38,724 K
Total tax 14,182} 32134 11688 36,870, 60746
Profitfor the perind TH,BI 32,848 37,569 1572 334 178,074
tewa)]. R £05 {2981 a4
17,057 - - 17,857 -
H) Iricorme taw-relating to ifems thist will notbe rectaasilien to .
profires loes _ 152 {28} {2y 74 1104]
Crther comprehieastive profit/floss) for the perfad -16,603 5 603 25,835 310§
Tots| comprahensive income for the parind ‘83473 Er XY FT R Cr 208,170 178,384
_Ea_ini_ngs'ge{"n’quity shaf_e".[hipmfnal \ral_un p_f Rs: 10 per
chte] dhbe! i
"~ Banit and Dffoted (RS ni5z 0.22 G286 131 132
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HSBL:InuesiDiract Financia! Sefifces (India) Limited
Staternent of cash flows forthe year ended Ma rch31, 2022

LAl amuunts in IR thuusands, uniess othéryise: stated}

particutars

Ma_rn:h 31,.2023

March 31 2021

CASH FLOW EROM OI;!ERATIN_G.-ACTE\JiTIES-:

Prafit before tinc: 229,204 238,820}
Adjostments _
D'ej:ﬁ_re_{:laﬁ_owa_n__t_i Bmortisalion: 1,996: 4,113
Imipatrmant on filfaoial dssets 281 {5}
interestexpense on borruwlngs 59,101 135,113
intrest pald on borrowings {58,108 BtLEELY
interest expenseon: debtsecufities 19,850 45,082 |
Liability 1o Jonger fequirad writtén Back: {18,173] -
foterestineome tin bank' denushs 'Iiii-?ﬁ) 'IIH.IGBB}
Unrealised gali ofnivtuat fund {ra4} {42)
Ridliséd galn on.mutlal furid {17,160} {30, 145)
Operating profit before-warkingcapital changes 158,566 ] 233,149
Adjustincnts for working capital changes:
{Inr.rf-as /decrease by bank batance mher than cash and cash
S {555)
iersaselfdecrassnin fosng {2,618;632) 52,683
Incraase in otherfinangial sssets 56 140,016
{Iﬂcrease}/decrease i pittvar T financial-assets {1,757} 3
Adfustments fdr increase/’ {de:reasn] in operatihg Hahilitles
Trade payahles: 763) #0986
Tther financlal liabilties 18.752) Baa4
Provisiis 917 {15485)
Qither non:financiat liatinties 486 )]
Cashrgenerated from-operations 12,616,455) piersyal-n
Leg5.; Incometaxes paid nétof refurids) | 142,341}). {66,661}
Net tash inflow / {outflow) fromy operating attivities {2,460,230) 368,704
CASH FLOW FROM lN\!’ESTlNG ﬁCTlViTIES 4 )
Placment 6f feed defiost withihark {138,400} {231,600)
Proceeds from flkad denositwith bank: -140,000 50,000
interestintome.on bank depogits 15,278 21,685
" ‘Purchase af property;plantand equipment:and intangible. assets {2,909 {2,787
Investmant in mistugl fund. 7,102,500} {2,339,500)
Redemptioh of mutwat find 7037191 4,738,085
Notcash Tfow £ [outfiow) from investing activities {47,330) _ 1,275881 |
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Praceeds from borrovings: -
Repayment df horroiings - -
Proceads fram isiue.of deb securities 3,149,265 1.182,025
Repaymentof debt secutities: {650,000} _ {3,200.000}
Metgashinflow / {autflow) from-invasting activities 2,549,265: (2,017,975)
NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH ANDCASH EQUIVALENTS: 41,545, 1373,290)
Add :'Cashand tash equivalénisat ieginning.of the'vear {29,371) 344018,
=c=l'=a5h and.cash eguivaledtsatend afthe year 12,274, -{29;371)
Recondiifation of cashiand cash equivalents as perthe eadh floiv stetement;
Lash sind cash efidvaternits.as per dbovatamprise of the follpwing.
Particuldrs | Asat o Asar
. 3 ) March-31, 2022 March 31, 2023
Cash ang Cash eqDIvAlents 15,374 1,476
Bank overdraits; - {30,847}
Balanees:as por statermnent 6f cash flows: 12,274 {29.,373)

The abgve stateiment of cash fiows has been prepared under ihe Indlrect methad as Setoutin ind A5 7 on Stitement.

of Cash Flows.
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“To the Membiers of HSBC ThvestDirect Fiianclal Services (India) Limited

Report gh andit of the Firaneial Statenients
Page 2-of 4

Responsibilities of managenient and thosc charged with goveérnance for the financial
statements ' '

5

The Company's Board of Directors is respnnmbie for the: matters stated ih Section, 134{5) of the
At with respect to the preparation of these financial statenjents that give da tiuesand fair view of
the financial pésition, financial performande; changes in-equity and statement of cash flows of
the Company i secordance with the aceminting prineiples generally atcepted 1n India, ineluding
the- Aceounitinig Standards specified under Section 153 of the At This responmblhty also
includes mainténanece of adequate accouriting récords in accordance with the provisions of the
Actfor safeguardmg of the assets of the Compary and for preventing and-detecting frauds and
other it# egiilarities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments. and estintates thaf are: reascnable’and prudent; 4nd design, implementaton and
maintenarce of adequate internal financial controls; that were operating’ effectively for enisuring
the aceiwacy and completeness of the ‘atcounting 1ecords, relevant to. the preparafion and
presentation of the financial statements-that: givea true and fair view atid dre fige from material
nifsstaternént, whether due to fraud o error.

. In'preparing the finaneial statemients, management is-responsible for assessing tlie Company's

ability to continue asa going coneern, disclosing, as applivable, matters related to.going contern
and using the going-concern basis of accounting unless management either-intends-to llq\ndat&
the Comipany or to-cease ‘operations, or has. no'realistic alternative buf to do'so. Those Board of
Directors aré.also responsible foroverse¢ing the Company’s-finaneial reporting process.

Aiiditor's responsibilities for the audit of thefinancial statemeiits.

(2

8

Our objectives: are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from muterial misstatement, whether due to 'fraud or ‘errar, and to issue an
auditor’s: report that includes our.opinien. Reasonable assurance:is a High level of assurance but
is not 4 guarantee that anaudit condueted i accordance with, SAswill always detect a material
misstatement when: it exists. Misstatements can arise from fral_._lyjl or errer-and are- _cons_ldered
material if, individually-orin the aggregate, they could reasonubly be:expected. to influence the
economie decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

AS part-of iin audit'in accordance with SAs, weé exercisé-prafesstonal judgment, und. maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also::

+ Identify and assess the risks'of ‘matertal l'll__léib_t'ltem_&nt of the financisl statéments, whether
due tofraud or error, desrgn and perform-audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
:obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to prowde a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not détecting.a material misstatement résulting fiom. fraud is highe than for one.
resulting trom ‘epvor, as fraud may invokve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal eontrol.

o Obtain an-undefstandinig of internal control relevant to the audit in order-to design audit
‘procedyres that-are appropriate in’ the vircumistances. Unider Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we
are also..responsible for expressing our opinien on whether the company has. adequatc
internal financial contrels with reference to’ financial statements in place-and the operating
‘effectiveness of stich contidls.

¢ Eyaluate the appropriateness of aceounting policies used and the reasondbleness of
accounting estimates and rélated-disclosures made by management:







Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
“To the \Iemhurs of HSBC InvestDirect Financial Semces {India) Limited
Report o dudit of the Fifidneial Stdtements

Pageqof 4

ii.,

V.

"The Company has made provision, as required undér the applicable-law or accounting
standards, for material foresceable losses, if any; on loag-term contracts— Refer Note 5
and 36.1 to the financial statemients; ’I‘he Compariy did niot havé ‘any derivative
contracts as-at March 33, 2022,

There were 1o amiounts ‘which weie required 1o be transferied to the Invester
Education «iid Protection Fund by the-Compuny duting the year ended March 31,

2022,

* (a) The management-has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other

than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts; no:funds have been: advanced or
Ipatied or invested {either from horrewed funds or share premium or any othier
sourpes of kind:of funds) by the Company to orin any other person(s) or. entltytles},

including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, ‘whether
recorded in writing ‘or otherwise, that the Tntermediary shall, whether, dlrectly or

indirectly; lend -or invest in c:thm persons of entities 1dent1f1ed it dny. manier

whatsoever by er on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide

-any goarantee, security or the. like on behalf of the Ultimate’ Beneficiaries (Refer

Note:40..A to the financial st'ltements),

{b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge-and belief, other

thaz as disclosed i the notes to the aceounts; no funds have been received by the -
Campany from’ any person{s) or entity(ies), mdudmg f&re;gn entities (“Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recarded in wntmg or otherwise, that
the Company-shall, whether, directly or. indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or.on behalf of the Funding Party
{*Ultimate: Beneﬁc1arm~:") or provide any guarantes, sectirity or the 1ike on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer:Note 40. B-to the: financml statements), and.

(&) Busied. ori stehi- audit procedures that we considered reasoriable and appropsiate in

‘the circumstances, niothing lias conie to our notice that hds caused s to believe that
the representations-under sub-clause (a)-and (b) contdir any materia] misstatement:

The Company has not declared or paid any-dividend duringtlie year.

13. During the vear ended March g1, 2022 the Comipany has net pmd/plovldl.d any’ managenal
refmuiieration uridérthe provisigns. of Section 1g7read with Sthediile V of the Act. Accordmgly,
réporting under Section 167(16).of the Actisnot applicable to the Company: .

ForPrice Waterhouse Chartéred Accountants LLP:
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

RUSSELL  siuiiett woh paens
IVAN PARERA Bits 303285

Russell 1.P._a_1e1;a o

Partner’

Membership Number:: 042196

UDIN: 22042190AJ VREA 7708

Mumbai

May 30, 2o
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referted toin par; agraph 12(f) of the Indépendent Auditors’ Repott of évin date'to the members of
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services. (India) Limited on the financial statérnerits for the year

a.

e

_..t.nded March 31,2022

‘Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial -contrels with referénce to financial statements is’a process
desigried to provlde reasonable assirance fegharding the rehabllity of financial reporting and
the-preparation of financial statements for external purposes in aceovdance with generally
decepted accounting prineiples. A company's internal financial eontrols with reference to
financial staterments includes those policies atid procediues that (1) pertainfo the maintenance
of xrecords that, in reasonable detail,. accumtely and fairly veflect theé transactions. and
dispesitions of tlie ‘assets of-the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as negessary to permit preparation of financial statements in aceordance with
generally. accepted accoutiting principles, and that recsipts and expenditures of the rompany
are being made only in decordance with authorisations of managément and divectors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regardmg preve ention or fimely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or dJsposmon of the company's assets that could have a materlal
effect on the financial statements,

JXnherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
‘statements

Because of the-inherent limititiohs of internal Enanct:il controls with refererice to ﬁmnmzﬂ

statements, mcludmg the possibility of eollusian or improper management override of contrals,

material misstatements. due o error or fraud may occur aid-not be detected. Also, projechons
of any evaluation of the internal fingncial controls with reference to financial statements to

future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial comirols with reference to

financial siatements may become inadequate becaitse of changes in conditions, or that the

degree of compliance with the pnl:ues of procedires. may detériorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls syster with referenie to financial statements and such internal financial controls with

reference to financial statements were: operafing: effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the:
internal. control over financial reporting criteria éstablished by the Company. conmdermg the

esseritial comiponerits of internal control stated in. thé Guidance Note on Andit of Tnternal

Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporfing issued by the Institute.of Chartered Accountants

of India,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

RUSSELL- Dﬂ"“‘”*lﬂjﬁfﬂ:‘- .

Russell I Parcra .
Partner
‘\Icmbmshlp Nuniber: 042196

UDIN: 22042190 ATVREA7 708
Mumbai
May 30, Sosz
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Annexure B to IndependentAuditors’ Report :
Referred {6 in paragraph 11 of the Indepéndent Auditors” Report of éven date to- the: member_s . HSBC
Investirect Financial Services {Indm] Limited on the finaricial statements as.of and forthe yedr tided Mareh
31, 2@22

generated -in the normal course of the Companys ‘business. Fufther, except for the
instances whete there aré deldys or defaults in‘repayment .of punmpal and/ o1 interest and
‘in.respect of which the Company has recognised needssary provisionsin accordanee with
the principles of Indian Accounting Standards:(Ind AS) and the hmdehnes issued by the
Reserve Bank of Iridia {“KBI™) for Income Recopnition: and Asset Classification {which has
bieen. disclosed By the Company. in Note 42 to the financial statements); the parties avé
repaying the principal amounts; as stipulated, and are also regularin paymient of interest,
asapplicable, '

ﬁ(d) Inrespiéet of the loans, thereiare'ho amounts: which are overdue: for miore than ninety
days,

(e) ThHe Company’s principal business is to give loans and. it'is tegistered with Reserve
Bank of India (RBI)under section 45-1A:as a non-banking finandial company. Accnrdmglx,
the provisions. ofclauge 3{111](&) of the-Order are not applmable tothe Company,

{(f) Thie lodns granted during the year had stipulated the scheduled repayment of prinicipal

and: Dayment: of intefest afid the sainé were ot repayable on demand. Further, fio loaxis or-
advancgs in nature of loans were granted during the year to Promaters, related parties as

defined i in clausc (76) of scnhon 2-of the Act.

i “The Compan} hds not granted any loans of prm'lderl any gudrantee ‘or $ecurity in
‘connection with any lean taken by parties.covered under section i85 Therefore, the
provisions of section 185.are not applcable to the Compatiy, The Coripanyis regmtered s
‘Non-Banking Financial Conipany with'the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions:
of Section 186, except subsection.(1) of Seetion 186, .of the Act.are not applicable to the
Company. I’urther, the Company has not made any investment to ‘the parties covered under-
Section 186 of the Companies.Act, 7013 and aecordingly the provisions of Clanse 3(iv) of:
the satd Order in respeet of Seefion 186 {1}is Aot applicable,

V. The: Cump’my has not accepted any deposits. or amiounts which are deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of Sections 73,741 75 and 76 of the Aet and the Rules fiamed there
uridér to-the éxtent notified.

vi, The Central Government of India has-not- specified the maintenanee of cost tecords under
sub-séction- {(1):of Bection 148 of thie-Act for4ny of the products of the. Company

vii. (a) According tothe information and explanations gl\ en to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is. regular in dep051t1ng the undisputed
statutory dues, mcludmg goods and sérvices tax, provident fund, income tax; value added
tax, céss and: nthm ‘migterial statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.
Also, refer-note 29 fo-the financial statements’ regarding management's:assessment: on
certain matters 1elat_1ng to:provident fund.

(b

—r

Acegrding to the ififormation and explandtions given to us.and the tecgrds of the Company
examined by us; there are no staintory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not
heen dgpu;ute_dpn aceouint pf any dl,'s_pute_

i, #Aceording to the information and explanations given:tous and the records of the Company-
examined by us, there are no' fransactions in the books of account that has been
surreridered or discloséd as income during the vear in the tax aséessmients under the
Income Tax Act, 1061, that hasnot been recordéd in the'books of aceotnt,
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Axmexuchto :'ependent Audltors Repoirt
Referred. to in paragraph i of ‘the’ Independent i
TnvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited-on:

3_1, 2023

ix, () According to: the records of the Company exammed? by -us-'md the: mfurm_
. -explanation guen 1o us, ‘the Com ~loan
borrowings or in-the payment.of inteies

) _Aceordmg to-the information and. explanahnns
-by is; and 0r1.an over al.l exammatmn

-According to the information and explanation
'u_s, =xve.g'epo th tthe-Cnmpah;;-'-ﬂ' I nothave




Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Almcxure Bito IndcpendultAuthors Repml:

9, 202'* '

xiii.

xiv(a)-

As the Company is not'a Nidhi Cotnpany and the Nidhi Rules, 3014 aré not's
the reporting under clause: 3(xii) of the Order Isniot applicabletot

The: Company has: entered into transactions with related parties’in complance with the

provisions: 6f Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of sueh relatéd party transactionis

have been disclosed in the financial statements as required urider Indian Accounting
‘Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosin‘es specified under Sectibn 133 of the Aet;

‘In our opinion and according to the information and: cxplanatmn given to-us, the Company

_hias ant internal audit system commensiitate with the size ahd natiire ofjts’ busmess

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor-for the period unider audit have heen conéidered by us

XV

The Company has net entered into any non-eash transactions with its directars or persons
.connécted with Him. Accordingly, the weporting on: comipliance With the provisions of
Section 192 0f the Actunder ¢lause 3(xv) of the ‘Order is not applicable to:the Company,

xvi. (a) The Company is required.to-and has been registered under Seetion 45 -TA: of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 19734 as dn No#i Bankmg Binaticial: Company: — lnvestmiént dnd Credit
‘Compaiy, (NBFC -1CC),

{(b). The Company has .conducted non-banking financial activities during the year and the

Company holds a valid Certifieate of Registration from thie Reserve Bank of India as per the:
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1034.

(c) The Compariy is'not-4 Core Investment Company (CIC) as defiried in the reguldtions made

hy the Reserve Bankof India; Accor dmglv tlie reporting under clause 3{xvi)(c)-of the Order
is:not applicable to the Company.

{d):Based on the information and explaniations provided by the management of the Company,.

x¥ii,
Kl

Xix,.

the Gtoup has one CIC as part of the Group .as detailed in note 39 to the financial
statements. We have not, however, _separately evaluated whether the information provided

' by the management is accurate and Lomplete

The Company hasmotincurred any cash losses in the financial vearor in the 1mmeﬁlate1y
preceding financial year

Theve has heen rio. tesignation of the statuttry anditors: dnrmg thie yearand accordingly the

réporting under clavse (xviit) isnot appllcab]c

According to the information and explanatipns-given to us ‘and oivthe-basis of the financial
ratios (Also refer Note 43 to ‘the finaricial statéments); ageing and expected dates of
realisation -of financial assets: and payment of finaricial Tiabilities, other -information.
accompanying the financial statements; our: knowledge of the Board: of Directors.and
mandgerment plaps: and based on our examination of the evidence. supporting the:
assunpHans; uuthmg has. com@ 16 our atténtion, which causes 1s to believe that any-
nigterial tincertiinty exists as on'the date of the andit reportthat Company is riot capable of
meeting its liabilities-existing at. the date of balance sheet asand: when'they-fall due withina
period of one year from the ‘balanee shect date; We, however, state that this-is-not an
assuraiice as to the future viability of the Company. We further state ‘that our reporting is
based on-the facts-up to the date of the audit report and.we neither give any gudrantee nor-
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HSBCInvestDirect Financial Services (india) Limited.
hevet-ag at Mairch 31, 2023

Particulars

(All amounts in INRthousands, unlessothepviise statad)

Note

Asat

Nearch 31, 3023, |

~ Aear
Mareh 31,7021

|ASSETS!

Finangdial assets!

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance othér than cash and-cash équivalents
Lpanhs

tvestments

Cther financial assets.

Non:-finangial assets

Current tax dgsets {Net)
Daferrad-tag-assets {Nef)

{Property; plantand dquipment
mtangiblé assets under development
Intangible assets. o
Other:non-fipanicial assets:

g A St

a8

10
10

12,274
403,203

8,581,427

209,759
‘7,148

143,181

2,110

4,351

5,209

1476
405,313
5,062,056 |
110,080

1|

152,426
2,630
3,564
2,400

3.45 2

Tatalassets

11

5,664,110 |.

LIABIEITIES AND EQUITY -

UIABIEITIES

Flnanctal Ifabilities.

Favables

{j Trade payables

{iytotai cutstanding, dues of micro enterprises and:small enterprises
{ii) total nutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smalf
én_le_'lj_'pri'ses'

Debt secarities

Borfowings {other than debt securities)

Other Ainaricial liabilitias

Non=fipanéial Liabilities
Currenttas lizhiftios (Net)
Provisions
Githernan-Arancial fiabifities

EQUITY
‘| Equity share‘capitat
Other-equlty

12

13
14
A5

16
17
19

20.
21

9372228

"

10,700

2,816;565°
1,626,000

856

3,077
3,083,

1,462,847
3,456,800°

11,463

287439
1,650,847
9,538.

15,311
17,038
3607

1,462,847
3,246,920

Tota] équity

4,918,937

4,709,767

Totaliiahilitles and equity.

5,372,228

6,664,110:

The shdve balance sheet should be réad in conjunction with the:accompanyingiiotes.
This s the balance shegt referred tojn our reportof eyen date;

ForPRICE WATERHOUSE CHARTERED ACCOLINTANTS.LLP
Firm Reglstration Na:-D;-Z?Sﬁfi?NSUDGlE

. ) . Digitailesinet by
RUSSELL A iégh\wm :
VAN PAREHA bt :’bé'z.'usia_n

1906 £0530°

Russell Iﬁar_e_ra
Firtner
Merntbership No. 042190

Murmba
May 30, 2022

Far and on'behalf of the Bogid of Girectars of
HSBE InvestDirect Financial:Secvices {Indla) Limlted

;

DEEPAK-’;;;;; :

Deepak Sgrip-

Chalrperson

{DIN 03494760)

-SUNITA St

X T L
ALQK repe T
SAHDA

Sunita Sarda-
Lhief Financiat. Officir

Mumbal
May. 30,2072

SHANTAN S

Shantanu Shanksr
Wanaging Directar
N 0BOS 4525

SNEHA _Satinzes.
DEVANG Hereion
DOSHI  wiivierie
Sneha'Doshi

Comphny:Secretary




Particulars:

Retvenue from'operations
Interestincame _
Reversal af Impairment on financial assats:

Net gaini onfiir value chadges

revenye from gagrations.
Other income -

Totaliacorme

Expenses

Financa:costs

Impairment on firigncial ag
Emplayee benefits expesists
Depretiation and amortisation
Githers expenses

Totil éxpensas.

- [Profit befar

profitorloss
t benafit obligations

- Refrigasuremants _
| mants

 |-changesin

fnén'f'bfep[nﬁ;and.lpsg ,
ofes, o

Russell Baera-

Bartner
MembestigN5: 082190,




¢ Flnancial-Services ftn dia’ Umuted

Statement af changes In’ equlty asat March 31, ZIJZ!
(AII aragunts tn INR Hdusands, yiidss athanise stated}

A, Equity. share capital
1} For the year.ended Marth

31,208

Thie abovi stetementof changes fnéaqully:should bezead incanfunction vith the accompanying.nutes.
This is the Stateiment 6f chianges. In equity réfeired fo In ouf report of peen data,

For PRICE WATERHGUSE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (LP
Firm Aegistration No: 0127548/ NGE001E

PBLIGE Grgiaty sinred by
RUSSELL - HUSSELL VAN
VAN - Trmem
e D o5 35
PARERA, . wamiusie
Russell | Parera

Partrer

fidgmbershils Nei 032190

Murabai
May 0, 202%

“For.and un behalf of the Board of Directors.of,

‘HSBC InvestDirect Financtal Services {india) Limited

- Dezpak Sa.w'p'--

Chdirperzon

| DM 03434 7ED):

ALDK :‘- y
SARDA

Sunita Sarda-
Chigf Fiancinl

tdumbat.
. Mu‘l‘,r an, 2022

e

7L
riur&»s!!‘"

Officer

‘|Batanee at the baginning, {ChangesIn:Eqisity Res*lated balanee Changus I equlw Baléj'nl:e_'ati
of the currént reporting  [Share Capital dis [atd boginaing of the end 5f the
patiod- {o pilar. perivd thecureent duringthe current jeurrent
errors reportlng period  jyear regerting
peridd
L4b2,847. - - - 1463847
%) For the.vedr ended parchi 31,2021
|Balante at the baginning, Changes fn Equity [Restated balince {Changéslaequity |Balance at
oF the curtent réporting  {Share Capitat due. [atthe Seginning of{share capitat the end.of the
pariod. o priorperitd thie carrent during the currant {Current
BrTars. reparting period . {year reporting
) ) piriod
1,462,847 . - - 1451347
B: Dther Edulty
1 For'the yaar ended March 31; 2023,
’ Regerves and Surplus . . Tetal
SEcuritie: Géneral Roserye- Stawtur\! reserve {Impairment |Refalned Earnlngs Equiity Instruments.
[Pramium FESErYE: through Other
) . . . . Comgrah ensive ncome:
Aot Aphil, 2041 1,334,680 17.000 427,350" 24,507 B33.383 - 3,246,920
Total frcars {67 the. ]
currentyear . - - 0 152,334 - 192,334
fAgmigasiiremenisof post-
¢ | - {z21)
‘Changes tn Fair Vafue of )
Equity Instruments
throtgh Gther
Compretidnilve nedine; - - - - - 7087 17057
Transfer to retaingy ] . ’
RarnINEs - - - B.964° {B.964) - .
; Act: - - 33,467 - {ab.467 - -
) Asat March 31,2022 1,934,680 17,000 465,217 31,471 088,045, 17,057 3,458,088
2)- Fdr the yearended Maich33, 2023 . .
‘Reservas and Surplts: Total
Secutities General Reserve  [Statutory reserve: [impatrment  (Retained Earnings ‘|Equity instruments
_ _ 1 Premiui ’ reservi ) through Gther .
Asat A'Eﬂi'le'?.ﬂ'lﬂ 1,934,630 17,600 391,738 23479 701,641 - 368,536
Total Comprehensive ' o )
tngame for the cutrent
vear ) - : - - 178,384 - 178384
Transferio rataibed
drnings _
- - - 1028 10281 = .
Transtir td Special
Réseive undersiciion 45- :
. - 35,518 | - {35.614) =+ -
Asat March 31,2081 1,934,680 17,600 437,350 FLECERR B43.383 - 3,246,820

iy shfHa
i‘bw,l»k-ﬁ‘
Bk N

G OOSHI R
Snieha: Dashi

-CBmpany Secretary




HSEC Inyestoirect Financial, Smlm llnﬁls] Limlted
Statement of cash fiows for the year mded Masd'f 3, 2022

Partltulars

LASH. FLOW FRUM CIPERAT!NG N!‘ﬂ VITIES L

Profit bigfore tax:

Adjustments 1
Begreclationand am-fﬂisz':inn
-irrpalrrnem on Ymar,
Irterost 8z pm:e o ha:
tntereit paid on! bsrrmvlngs
intorest okpanse on dabtsecatities
Liability ho |ongor reguied ttton biadh

ilorealiied giln e an.-mﬂuai fund’
Realited gain o0 mutisl find

ga i

Operating profit before working cagita'l thaﬂges

Adjustments for workl

{incrasd se]{de_crca' . a

ﬂnu[\?alents

{znr.rense}{dr::rzase in inans 5
¥
i
13
is

Prumlon 17

Lither.rion lfasncial !:al‘.ﬂ]mes 13

Cam.sene_r_atcdImm.n_per:iaon:;. o
Lesxincomeitaxes pald foerof refi

Neteash lnflow / {Sithew) fram b

CASH FLOW FROM NVESTING ACTIVITIES 2~

. 'Hcdé.m'li.tinn of mistifal fumd . -

ihigt cash laflew . fouthioi) from i

Repayment ol debt s

' rm cashiniiow 7 (o eing’ uﬂumes

‘Reeandliation af.c £ash.a

.'Casham{cnsh' 1

‘[Cash and €ash 6ol
{Bank-overdrslts

Ma rch 31. 2022 -

|aslanées se ot sted

1 innes debt far st o thie peilods

Eusseﬂll‘aren
Fartnar
Marmbership No: 04

Kiamea:
t4ay:20; 2621

. anﬂa, 0%




HSBC ThvesiBireet ] Financiat Services {Indis) timlted
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Marchi 21, 2022

1 Bickground ’
HSBE investOiédt Findnclal Sérvices. Iindia] Umited (HIFSL ar thy Company'f is registerad a3 2 Non Banking Fnancial’ Cnrnpany PNBFCY {ncn-depotit actepting] o defiddd yhder
m:tlun 45414 of the Reserva Bark uf intia {'RBF) Act, 1934, The Campanyis a wh_:_:l!y..os\_r_ned.suhs_:d aiy.of HSBC fvestDirest fmdia} Umited,

The Company is damicifed in Ingle-and primacily ehgaged in the h:::im:l': of linancing agalfiss securitles nctuding aquity.shares, boned?, matsal funds, sevirdizn bisrds: Tredsury bil}
Government Suams‘mer.l As paf RB! eirculur dated feh ary 22, 1019 cn Hatmgnization & cﬂi!uunt :ategures aFNAFTS, the Campany 1§ dass:fed asan lrwes[ment Credl Camipd
INEFC i, Prirte \hu :ir:ular, tha Campa'!'f s £ ass_lfed EL3 :_a_ lt_:_arf Campany;

IA Srgnlﬁcant accounting policies
. tt-g Slg'\if cdny. zc.nunting B
pre;nnled Cnfess) utherm_e ..t;:ted

ies adipics Tn the.prégaration of these financlal statemrents, These-policies have been. conststently appkied tb Wl Fhig yeds

1), Basks of preparation

Cum pliance withind AS.
54t tateants cemiply v alt matenatagpects wth Indish Accouniting Standar a3 (e AS} ngttied indef Seetion 135 of the Compapies ACK, 2013 [thi Act) oampsntas {ihdiag
'A:;'Enh_ﬁti_ng_55-‘m!i-‘l'_d_5}.ﬁu!e 2015], other relevantgrovicians of the Act snd guidelinesalong with-circilies issued by the RBTfiam tinde to time:

Historical cast convention

The finansial daterments Five been| pregared 5n 2 histaricat cost basls, eurent for the fo! 1aumg,'
. terta‘fn finangiaiasteis and flaky fitins are measgnd 3t f.\irt:aur:; and

v defingd banefit plans - plan nisers ate measured.atfair valtie:

Rorent Atcounting Pronacncoments
The- Kiniztry of Carpdrate Affairs has vide notification -dated 23° March 2022 roified Compynies Undinn At i Standardel Amendment Rutes, 2022 which smends ceitain
Astguntng mndard:. and a7 v effaciive 1 Af:rul 202%, ) ' .

lad AS:1 _p_;«- gfgrgn;g o unceg;un Frametiork - THe:amendmenis spacifiy that o qual:fv far rasogrition 33 part of spplviog the:dequisitien rnet"md the identifiable Fssets. aequired:
and fiabflitiez sasumed must moeet the defifitans of sssets and. abilities. in the. forceptuni Premework. for Finanslal. feporting ander: Irdian Accaunting Standardz {Concepriial
Framewnrl:} Issued by the institute af: Chartered Azcountantz of india af the scguisition date: Thesechanges dosnat.sgnifi by change- the. redquirements.of fnd. AS-103. The Company-
does ritaxpedt tha amendmiant 4 havie Shy significant imipact in s finangial stataments. ) )

}_;j &,‘ A - Proipeity: Plarita and sqiipimeiit - The amendfment; clatifies. Lihat exelss of Ret shle Prateeds 6f items pioduced aver the caist of testing, it any, shalfs
profit or foss Hut deduited trém the diractly mmbutnb]e copts camldered a5 -part-af cast &f an
amendmpntfs annual-periads begining on ar. aher: Aprits, 2007,

ot be recagaiind in the
item of property, plant, and eqaipment. The effective daté for'adeption of thie”

Ind d A5 37« Proylsitng, Cantinkent Iahlli;les _Ag Conum;m ‘Assets-- The-amendment: spetiies.that the "dost o LUIAng’ 2 toftast totnprises the- wm that ¢
centragt, Costs that- re!!t: recﬂ‘,r 163 chintragk o ithar b incremuntal foss of fudﬂllnn that copfract !examp!l:s wcluid He. T, 7
1i~at rajate t.‘hl'\':ctl-,r Ter fulhl]:ng -*entracts !an tipile el b the allgeation. of the c‘gprecrannn :harge Kir anitér dF peopsr an: and cqulpment use
The etfectiva date. fnrﬂduptfm\ af thisamentment.is- annual pericds beginpingonaf after Aprd 1, 2021, ahtkough eatly.Sdoption lspe!rnmed.

late directiy {othe:

i Iulit!lina:;}i'n'cunk'r_a__crj_,;.

Ind AS10G - nnual'.lmgruuements-_l_nI_ng':g]zﬂil!-_ Thi amendment clarfieswhich fees t!n-éntily_;inciﬁdes:-.\rﬁen lt:appif.es-!.'ha 13 parcent® testof Iid A5-108 In asseusing whetherts.
derecognizé & fihantial Sabibty, o

Ind AS: EE__ Anngal- ]mgrnuamam 5 o fnd AS (2021): '{he amendments ¥ mavE the li’uslraltnn gth

roteritist conifusion régarding thic trestrment of feaze Zn:enm*E‘ tivat mgh;

reimbizsemofit of fussehiid imprafermsnts by the estar in order ig résalva sny
irize because of kew Maseingeotives vere deseribed i thay festeation.

Trese amendmenif iie not drpettad to Have a fhatehiatimeicr on the Company in the currentar fubvre reporting periads aid on forpseeable fulire rrandactians,

Preseaiation

“The Company.is coiered inthe definition of r'ic_:_r;-amking'ﬁﬁqncigi ampsny as defined in Comganies {lndian Actounting Standards) (Amenimeit) Rules, 2018, The Company présent -
its financinl statemerits n nceqrdance with Division I af Schedule {if-to-the Companies Act,. 2013, A matarity-analysia ofrecevery or saftfement of ascete.and flabilities within 12
‘munthe.after the rapoiting date and mare than 32 monthyafter the feporting date is presented in Note 34,

1] Segmient: repmtlr:g
The Larmpany! s_ bigns Kakat {CO0M], viho hazthe 3hllity to-tialuate pettormance and \iFl::catl:& IE.’.GU!!:E.S, is. thc Managing Director {MB). Ina: manner :nnmtcnt-_
\mh the mtemal r::uar*r-\g previded 1o the- AeDigrcorparale ganning, tHere are no- separale eeporteble segnients fineliding g ',._ segmants),

i) Beviperty, plant and Eqguipimisnt
Freehald [and |5 cardan at-histeres! cast, |tems ol planmv. shant snd equipment. are-stoted At histarical-cokt.Jess r.{eprecqat an. Historieal tost includes expenditure that iz directly.
attributable tothe scquisition ok the ems.

Subrequent-kdses dfeinchidst (7 the Haet's carryirpamouit or fdcognitéd-as o Separate dsset i agproprate, nnly swhen [t s Frokabla that §
thie Wam wilk figw.to.the. Cornpanyﬁnd thie ‘cozt of the Sem can e meaturad raliably, A other repaits and maintanance are eharged ta pr
which thay ete:incurred.

utre eedrinmmie benefits szsecated with,
t-and (o duringthe reparting period n

Begreciation methods, estimated usaful lives and res(dual value
Depreciation-an the fallowing dssets has béen based spithe’ rnanagar—.cnt’a estimate of-yseful fifaremaining Llserul Erfe Thar riesidual values 3re ngt move than 5% of the i:n_'];}nal' cost.
alfihe asiat, .

fay ¢ 8 fSnptember 2024, askets each costitig JNR 350401 oyf b mre depreclated 36180% 46 the year b tapltu!isaliam
W) Atetit e of other sssets {s eottmatid a5 undes;-
. FY 2021-22° i i
"Catepory of asseis Useful Hves fallowed by.company - | Usefulllves pres:rlbef.l n S:Imdule
] [years) Ml {\re.trs}

ChHice Foulpments ) ] ‘5

Daty Pratessing Equiptments - Laptop £ 3

Qatd Procesting: Enulbments < SEnvars. . . 5 &




‘HS8E IivestDisect Financial- Eurvl:es {Iadiaj Umited
"Mates to flnanclat stalelz:ums for the, yoare ended Mar:h 31, 2012 (Comd 1

T 3s4ely’ Feslduai vabves and useful lives drd reitewd, and adUsted i aparcidite, atthe énd of pih repodting eerind.

AT gust’s cierying dmatntls written dawe immedateiyto its recayarable agrauntif the:atsel's rarrying amountis prebter thin its sytimared cecaverabe 2ot

Ginsand losses on dizpasate aredotermined biv:

Intangibliy Aszéts areitated ot artulidion cosy, nat.of é*:c'urﬁhrifud amartizaticn. and at : ur
over their estimased ysniul tives: The amoreisation period .and the amartisation. moshed are, reuiw.ed t Tt
significontly different fmm pravious mtimates Ahe. -3 _omntlon perio:i iz changed a:;r.nm[ngha )

“Gaing or losies atising fram the rét‘rrément e dispaszlof }ntangi&!c azzétsare determined asthe. d;ffemnce hetween mz net i
and recagrised asinen e Gr axpense; inthe Statement of. Pmﬁt and toss.

.Arnm{satlnn mathads: ami pesivids

"Ehe- npany-drmariises

{#) the cazh fiow.ct

Ti‘se Cnmpmv d 3 i

fc) fséasis ;
Ar imst Feengn

etest Jrcoms froc iF




Wy Empla\reu Bengfits:

HEBC Ty nstl;lir i Flnan :Ial Serilces {Ind]a} llmltud
Notes to finandal statemants for-the year: ended’ March 31, 2032 [Cantd: |

Equity lnstrumients
Th cdmpany-subsequetitly mengures alleqitivinvestmerits ot fa
i nthur mmp'ehcnsive inconie, them 15 o submq;.anr. reJa:Jfrca i
such zmestment& e

luiz, Whete the.campa gerient has pected w progentfiir value i{nlnmn:f {osses of; eqmty investmaties
n-af fair \raluc g:ins :md [n*ses to pruflt af !u*s folimwing tha ::erl:cugnlmrl of the investment. Dividends fram
scopmised in profit.ordods asother inceme when the. sompany’s sight 4o receive payments s established;

Changéz in'thie {3l value of Hnancial 4
of impatrment losses) on equity invest

£ ut fair value throvgh profit or loss are tecégnicedin othar gainf llocius} i the statesient df profit and jogs, Impaliment fossos and rdvétsal
nts measured At FVGLT are ot réported separntely from mther chungexin fairvalie.

Finantial iabilitles and. equflv tristrement
Db and eduiyInztfuments issied by.the- Company are clhisilie a2 eiiber fnateiilliabifities of a2 €qulty atcafdance with the substance of thi contsactual arfangedments and the
defiriitians &g fimaricial ami:m:y and’ am equityd At rument ’ T ’ ’ ’ C ’

Enuity Instrement )
An pguity fnitrument iz ooy contract that evidences 2 residual interast in the pssats of an entity after deducting 8% of its Eabilities: Equity instraments.fzsued. by the Company jz
recognized at the proceeds: received, net of diractly attribinable tranzaition costs, )

Fina ndaE Hekllitias

methnd:ﬁegv applied dapen"s an e .w..'hé'lhm !here has-heen a ’-gmfu:ar‘t ingraase in cwdt rish. Kate 38 de.aié’ hew tha :ompany demrmmus whether thete s ‘::een #: sasﬁ:hcunt
intregse incredit risk:

The rampany held impairmant: él[m-';an;g."ns mq'ulmd-ii? ing A5, The company-also maistain the asetclastification andcampita provisions as per-extant prudential norms en ncome
Becognitian, Astet Glassification snd Provi: £ HRACPY m:‘ud'na Bartisver/beneficiany diee clazsif cation, provisioming for standard ds waii ase tru"_ru:r_:_d ajzets, NPA agélng,‘ete. 4
eomnpari : under IHALR i :mpmrrncm ai?nwan:us rigdahdat hg-AS 108 shouid ke disciisut by the e

etiveen provisions requiie

In line vith the regitrements of the Compant ‘Agtand RB guidelln - an ECL palicy i ﬂeslgurzd to-anceez-and pravide forbrpairment ai!uwauce o tha credm exposuies basad on'the.
‘prrjected 12 M exprctedd fose model, The provisionlag 1a u‘r.pr:naent b thie pretfolio ris, maturs of pm:[u:: ad lpas-dmipairmignts 3 d-Estlmales The. pailc'.r
broadiy defines the. methodology of the;ECE modsl, its impact-an the impairment provisioning and accounting restrment, its (mpart an ﬂ'lr mgulntﬂry capital-and. ratios, The. moded
campares the provisianingunder the RB! priduntial guideiinesand stapdard asset pravisioning guidetines o ortive. nt_l’au' estimate of provisioning of impairmentaliovance.

[e) Derecopnitign:
Financtal assefs
A finanzial assal is derecogrised anly witen
3. ‘I"\c:nmpanr.-' Pus translerrcd the rashis tu recefic cash f‘m-.: frnm the fnan*

Whare the entity has.neither lrunsfe@i'red_-_a}ﬂnnnciat-as-:el' nor retaing Sébztant]aiiv alk risks and rewards of ownership of the financial aszet, the Franciabasser is'derecagnised If thie
-campany.has-not retsined cantral of the financisl asset. Whera the tempany retaing contenf of the:financis) atset; the asset i continued to Be recognided 1o the exient of tonfinuing

involvemient inthe finatcial acset.

Finantial fiabilities

A f:n‘an:tnl iiab][l:v e dnr::nsmsud whcﬂ the.ohligatio ! ey the Babilityit d’ls:hnrged Eancefteid ar exp-res W‘hcn an Bristing finansial. Ilsbmy is: rep!:md by amthnr !mrn .
fendar &n substanvall\r di ferent. tesey, or thi térms af an emr.tjnp fial ligy are gub;_m_m!al_[v modifiad, such. an exchanze ar mndrrmt' 1t s tteated ag a dercccgqjtisn af the urlgmﬂf'
iakility sind the recognition & a new Hability, In this cuse, 3 naw financial lishitity based onthe modifind terms is recognisad at fair vaive, The difforance Batween the: carrying value-of.
the.ariping] financialflabdivy and the neve. ik il Hakylity with. migedilied taems is recagnised in probtand joss.

| ncame zecognition.

.In.LE!ES'-‘ incorme

tnterest income from financinlasets arfair valle throtigh profié orinte is discloge reame atidér revenue-frooy aperations. interast incame .
f:agiatsat FYQGis catestatd Using the effeitive interestmethied js rarog in the stiterm préfit and foss uricle! rgm ogcratians,
i3, caTcuSaled b upp!vtng 1'.he :Ifec.a\rc interast rate.to the gross carrying amcunt of a finan [t ‘user cxr.epl Tur finakicial asipte that subsequenﬂy hecnme cemdibs
impaired:For credit-impaead financial assets the effective interest rate iz sppfied Yo.the net carrying amount of the fnancial asser (after dedictizn of the foss ml:wuncej

a assers dt amd ised

“term nbllgatluru’

Liakilitins for salzries, mciudmg noriranetary benefits that are expected to be sattled whulll,r within 12 months-after theend of the periad tn which the employees reader the: rETated
-seivice. are fecagnised Ih respect wl-enptaye £ Servicasiup i the end: githe: repnnme geriad and wep measured al-the ur'aum expe,.ted teb bie: paid when the Babilities are settied.
The }mhﬂmgs are presentid. ai e'nplr:vm. hehfi abiigat ans o {he! bnra nee. hg_e_l_

K] Post empliyément obligations
“The Campany aperates the fol o

B past-empioymeant chemes:

».detined heneflt plans such-as gratuley and
wfefined comtribittian-plans such.ag provident fund.




HSBC InvestnlretiFinan:lalSarvI:es {ingiia) Tin
Nntes e Finaridlal; mmneats fcr the yiar) nded Ma:ch 31, 2022 {Comd,}

12} Definert benedit plans {Gratulty}
Th'e !i:h‘nit\i or ax :ét golsedinthe: *-~"-»-= :.heet in

?f

Ae); Bonus,
e Campany recognizesa pioh

vll); fntama T4

increase in the provi

I:umingmlllahﬂ L




iresiirec Financhal Seriices ({ndia) Lim: 'qd
Noles.lu finantia 5t'atements for the yar efded | Wiarch 31, 2022 (Contd )

i) Leases~ asa lessee

ritially measirad on 3 preseat.value hasig. ieasiliabiiities include the nit present faiue ot the folloving [éase pavments;
ents], less any fedsn inzentfvas receivabile
a\rment thatare hased orean inHes or a rate, initialiy medsufed: using the lnd.x of rate s atthe commencament date
* amouns tapecedto e payabie by the Company under residual vaive guaraniess
. thiz exeftrsc p* e ofd purchasn optmn frhe Company i teastnably eeriain'ia axarcisethar uptmn, and-
'Ry for terminating the iease, o the fease term riillugrs: tHe Camging exereising thnwption

Lease payments to be fide under ressonably tertain extensian opfions are Alsoingiudad in the meagirement 51 the Labiliyy..

Tra lsase’ pryments are:discavatad: ‘usging the intarest rate impticic in-thiz tnase. 1 th, rate-cannot be readily determingd, whlr;h H3 genera!ly thie c326! fnr eases I the Lampany, the
1é=see 4 ifereental horraw;ng rote is wted, tefng the ratn that the md.vmu.ﬂ fossee would. bawz 10 payito borpdw the funds nicessary td- ' LEYE as*et af’ iryatue 1o ﬂ-' nght-c‘
mami '_ ylranms w:th sirni]artatms, se:urtl\r Hh: cond‘tinns‘

To.deteriing fhe ferementat bcnowung rate, the. Company uses facent third: :party-Fnancing received by the' individual jessee as a starting paint,. adjusf.ed ta reflect. changes i
finaneing canditions since-third: paﬁyipnzncsng vras rezeived.

£ phntloE! and finarice cost. The timance éodt s thargdd to profit or oss over the fease feriod so'as 16 pradice 3 constont perndic rte of intarest
on thn rnmalmng bal:n:e af the tigbitity far each parfod, -

Right-of-itse asets are-measured at costeamprising the fo']!’uwirz_g:

v thie gmou nfthe,nmai -:m:m.oh.m;_f bifit)

. arw rmh al dlrect r.nsts. arsd
srestoratipnzosts,

Righteof-use assets 3re grrersty depreciated over the shorter-of theasset's btela) ife and the fease tern ana *tramht-!ine tras's, l‘ the Lommpary is réasonatly terlain to axkerclie’a
purchide vptign, the sight-of-be-deiet js. depvmuted ‘oNET the- unr!ari-,.ng nsse; 's azeful tite:

‘Fayments gasociated with shortddrm feasps of equipment and véhides and all leases-8F low-vafié ssceis-are recagnlsed on a straight-ine basisas an.expente:in profit or loss. Short-
‘term-{eascs afa leates vith a leaseterm of 12 months orless, Low-value assats comprice. T ogquipment-aad small lters-of effice furniture.

Loy the wa:ghted nvenge numbﬂr nf euity 5hare5 aumardmg dring ! thetinane Tab year, udjusted {ar'bunp: elampsics in snuity sharesissied dubng the vear

[b) Lilufed earnings per share
Oiluged earmr'gs per 5har¢ ad,usts thl: f:gures used

inthe. r.fetermmamr! of basic earnings pcr share ta take lntn Jecount:

nE thc convar:,urx of g dildivery Hotent: al ity shares,

xiit) Trade and mher payahles

?he,.e ampunts TeprEient Hakilitins. Tar gncds ANg: SeTvices. prcv]ded to the commpany pHof e the sndiof fipancial yedr which sre unpiid. Thee srmouits‘are-ynsecured and trade and'
other pavables are presented as fipancial liabilities,

*lv) tmpaTrmmtefassuts

s indéfinite Lseful-iie Sre Aocs
mdacnte that thtv m[sh_ ¢ irnpaired. e ‘aszpts.are lested fur impatimient whenevér evEnts or changes in lrcimifancesindicate hat the I:am,flng am_
Animpalrment foss & recognised for thn amaunt by which the asset’s CRITYINE-amount excends its recoveraizie amount: “The rrcoverd ble amount i the,

er-of an asset’s fair valus
jets ¢oats of-ditpozal and valus.in use. Far the- ‘purposes of asteszsing tmpalrment, atets aregrouped at the lowestlevais for which there are.separately | idéntifishle cash-inflows which:

are Iarzciy 1ndcpendbnr of the cash infTows fram other dssets ot groups of s¥sets :cn'h—ger'cratm; i

; ]_‘.N'niuvlina_r:_cfn{:;a':.';:ue'ts-_'t it Suffernd an impairment are reviewed-for pasibla’
the rmpzlrment at thy end 0 each repur‘mg senad.

x4} Borrowings -

nw;nis ate !nit.ﬂlly' rec"gnugd atfait valge, net of iransacticn costsincurred: Barrawings. are-subzequently mabsured at amurfised cost. Any difference b
arrnunt ix.fecogrilsed in pm[l: o JsE over the pitiad of the. baufrauin £ dlging r.l:t‘fertwe Intérest mnthad. Foes g
ietian cnsts af-the ioan ta the extent thatlt is probahie thit same dr all of the facility will be dra.r.rn v

‘Borrawlngs are dereognised wihen the uhiigation. spectflﬂd An.tha comraetis discharged, canceliad or expired. The: difference berasen the. carr\rm;—: amount; uF a fnanc[al hab{i!w that
hashesn axti nzulshed andthe tcn.{deratmn pald s remgnf'ed imprafit cr: [onz 34 other; gains{{la.se 1.







:H'SBIC"I'ﬁves'tljii'e::t financial Services (tndid) Limited
Notes to finaiicial statements-for the year ended March 31 2022 {Centd.)

{atl-amounti i INR 1hnu5and5, urilest-otherwise stated]
3 (Cash-and cashequivalents

Particulars Asat o hsab
o ) March 31, 2822 ‘March.31,2021 .
Balances with banks n curtent account 1327 1,476
Depositswith maturity less: than 3 mcnths - i,
Tota} 12,274 1,576 |
‘Bank balance otherthan cash and ¢ash equiviients
s A5 at -As at-
Particulars March.31,3022- ‘March 31, 2021 |
Deposiis with ritaturity moré thin3 months bist less 403,202 405,213
than 12 wionths {held 35 lien‘against overdraftfrom
l'sank'}'-"if'E
Total 403,202 305,313

““Inchides accrued Interest on: deposit with bank for March 31,2022:3,202; March31, 20213, 712
# Includes: depcsits which-ara held-as fien: agamst bani overdraft Asat March 31,2022 400 000: As ot March-31, 2021

40%,600

Loans {measurdd at amortised cost)

Particulars ) As ;t ) o Asat: .
T March.31, 2022. March 31,2021
Lbans agdinst securities® ‘8,582,285 5,067,653
Total (A) - Gross: '8;582;285 5,867,653
Lese): Impatrment ioss ajlowarice [A5R) {557}
Total {A) -Net ‘8,581,427 _ 5,962,056
Isecured. biy-tangible aséets {by way of pledge overseciirities} 8,582,285 5,962,653
Total (8) - Gross ‘8,582,785 5,967 653
iLess)rimpalimant loss aliowance: {858) {597}
T'clt'al-{'ﬂ':l-'-' Net B,581,427 5,967,056,
Loans in India-
= Pijbiig sectar . = -
~ Bthers 8,582,285 5,967,653
Total [C) - Gidss 8,582,285 5,967,653,
{Less): impalirrent lass allowance {858} {597)
Total, [C) - Net §,581,427 5,967,056 |

*includes Interest accrued biit not due for March-31, 2022 33, 131 March 31, 2031:.45,972




HSBC vestDiectFinanla Srsices {ndia) it
‘Notes to financial statements:far the year ended March 31, 2022/{Coatd.)
' {Aliamounts,
& Investments. .

£ait Valué thratigh profit]
Beloss. '

Aé at March 33, 2021
Matua! Fund '

-HSBE InvestDirgck Secuiritia
Total {A]-Gross

5 {India) Privafe Limited o

Investmentsioutside fidia
Inviestenents in India-
Frotat{e)-Gross

ffetal-Gross  © C
Aftess):Impatrment loss atlowaric

102742
T

THSBC:Investoirect §




‘H3BE InvestDirect Finandidl Services {Ihdia) Limited
‘Notes to fihdricial stataments for the year endéd March 31,2032 (Contd.)
) {All amounts:in iINR thousands, Unless otherwise §tated)
7 Other financia! assets

Asat: -Asat
. _ ‘Mareh 31,2022 | Marchi31;2024
[Security:depasits 6,998 45701
Margin-and other deposits 150, 1650
Receivable onaccount of saie-of eollateral securities - . 7.484.
Total ) 7,148 7 1473

Partliculars

S__ ‘Gurrenttax:assets (Net)

Asat i “Asat
_ March.31, 2022 Marchi31,2031
Adyarice tak snd tax deducted at sourte _ "143,181 152,426
fnet. of provision for tax 498,109; March 31:2021:550,643) _
Total | 143,181 152,426

Particutars-

9 Property, plantand equipment’

Qwn Assats’
Data processing
machineries-

Particulars Langh- Office Equipments Total

Gross carrying amount _ _
Opienifig gross carrying amount 37 5,418 726, 6,522
Additions . 2,787 - 2,787
Bisposal§ and:transfers . . - - - -

Closifig gross carrying amount: : 378 .. .B,205- 726 9,308

Accumplated depréciation
Opening:acctmulated depredation - 4,389 244 4,633
Depreciation ¢harge during the yaar “ 1012 390 4,113
Disposals-and fransfers - - b - . -

Closing accumuldted depreciation ’ . 5,401 344 5.745.
N2t carrylng amount-as at March 31, 2021 ] 378 ) - 2,804 382 3,564

Grogs carrying amotnt _ _ _
Openfng aross carrying smount 378 8205 726, 5,309
Additions o . 1,739 37 1,776
Disposals.and transfers - - . -

Clasinggross carryingamount 3781 | 9,544 763, 11,085

Atclimilated depreciztion
Opening accumilsted dapraciation - 5,401 324 5,745
Depreciation.charge dutidg the year . &85 104. 983
Dispdsals and transfers - . - . -

Closing agcumulated depreciation . 6,286 ) 448 | 6,738
Net.careyingamountas-at March 31, 2022 378 3,658 318 4,351

' The tom pany has a land-at Vatlgaan Pune, Maharashira which.is held In the erstwhile'namie i.e,, Tajir I_nvest'ments__.‘aq'd-__Prnpaniesﬁt_d‘.
Imow kasswn 3s HSBE InvestDlrect Financial Services {india}timited]



HSBC investDirgct. Financial Serui:es {Indla} L:mlted
Notes to fnaneidl statements iar.

10 Intangible asséts

ended March 31, 2022 (Ccmtd J

Porticulers -

Gross.carryling amount

. |Opening grass carrying amount .
-|Additions

iDisposals and' transfers

Closing grass carwing amuunt

|Clastng dctuimpated amurtisatmn

|Nétcarrying amountasak Mar31,2022 . .

Addmons :
] D:spnsals and: transfers




HSEC invastDiract Flaancal Sewices {India) Limited
Notesto finangial statéments for the year ended Mdreh 31, 2022 {Contd.}
_ B {Albamounts.in INK thousdnds; unlgssiatherwise stated)
12 Trade payables.

. Asat Asat’
Particilars. CMarch31, | Mareh 31,
2032 2021

* «Total ootstanding dues af micro enterprises and smal ' - '

entdrprises .
< Totat outstadidirig dues of creditors other than micro 10,700 13063
_ erterprises and small enterprises . .
Tota} : 10,700 13,453

The below thfdrmaticn as régquired u‘ﬁder'thé'M'icro?Sm'aﬂ ‘and Mediur Enterprises Develogment Act, 2006 {MSMED Act)
has been determined to the ritent such: parties have been identifigd on the basis of information: reteived from supplisrs
regardmg theirstatus under the satd Act a3 available with the Gompany.

_ ~ .Asat As at
Particulars, ‘Mareh 35; Mareh 31,
. . ) 2022 2021
Cutstanding principal amount and intatest due to suppliers
tegistered-under MSMED Act and remaifing unpaid-atthe year
end;
- principal amount - -
- Interest-dueitherson - .
Jriefest paid othier than undersection 16'of MSMED Act,to - -
suppfiess registered: ndar MSMED Agt, beyond theappointed day
during the porled:
Iinterest paid-under section 16 0f MSMED-Act, to suppliers - -
Teglstered under MSMED Act, béyond the sppainted day duiing
the'seriod, '
Amiotint'oFthe pdyment miade 6 suppliersreglsteréd uriger - -
MSMED:Act, bayond the appointed day duting the gerlod,
Amount of Interest due and payabla {where-the pringipal has - -
ilreddy biaen'paid but intereést has hot bEen paid). '
The.amount of interest acerved. and rematning.onpaid at the end < -
of eachi BCCOUNtIng year:
Tha amount offurthar interest remainlug due and. payable even in <
succeeding years, untit such date when the interest diesas above
aré-actually paidiothésmall enterprise; for the gurpose of
disalfowante as 2 deductible expenditure under section 23:0f
MSMED Act,
Trade Payables aging schedule . . . IO
Particulars Qutstanding for following petiods from due date:ofpayment.
As:at March 31, 2022 Less than B {1-2 yeats 2-3ygars Moréthan {Total
L year 3 years. ]
{if: MSME . - - R -
(i) Others. | 10200 - - - 10,700
() Disputed dues= MSME . . - . .
{(iv) Disputed dues - Othars. . =1 - L I N
Particulars S - | Outstandirig for following: pefieds from due dateof payment
As-atNarch 31, 2021 Lessthan T 11-2years  [2-3years  |Morethan |Total
year ' ' 3 years
{i}- MSME ' - b - - -
(if Gthers 11463 . - - 11,463
(i} -Disputed dues— MSME - - - N .
{iv) Disputed diigs - Othiers - - - - -




HSBC {nvéstDirect Findncial Services (ndia) Limited
Notes 6 financial statements for the: 9ear ended March 31, 2022 {Contd:)’

{AlFamourits in INR thausdnd's, unless; dt__he’rﬁx’s?iéei.sta'_{eti_}_

13 Debt securities

Particulars

At amortised tost .

Unsecured: i I
-Commeréal paper . : T PR+

Total{a) = o ) - saEiEses |

Ceht securitiesin India.
Debt securities outside Ind:a
(Total (B}

2816565

= Tnterast Raie |
_Range.[% p.a.}

- 4.60% 597,306
. A70%-. | 497582F .50
" 515% B
- 5508 487,972
8808 593,720

Rizpayable at:Maturity -

|Commerdtatpager. - RS
) L CU2AFAsed 250,000
247,435 1 250,000:

[

Diiring the year, there were no defaults inhe repayment of principal orinterest,

14 Borrgwings [6ther thin debit secirities)

Secured
Loan repa-(ah!e*on d err_\a n_d

a3, for FY
Towl (A}

Burrrowmgs
T‘atal [H}

rylly. setided. 3g30
“4The.tenor of the loa

hériowes Thls fodn is. now further extended for ém add:t{onal pernod nf36 menths w..

14.1 Dur:ng the vear, there were nod ) ftsin-the cegayment; onﬂnmpal arinterest,,
14,2 The company hBa used'the borrow gs-fr:om".bank or financ institutions far_ the-specif C purpase for. which Tt wastaken..
18,3 Thé companyhas not bisei declarad Witk defaulter By #ny bank gr finangial institutions.




N

iq

| HSBC invistOifect financial Services {iridial Limitéd - -

o financtal stitements for-th

eafanded March 31, 2022 [Contd.)

Borfowings (other thiai debt securities) {Contd:)

14.4 Registration of charges or satisfattion:with Registrar of Companies {ROC)

Béldw are the charges ragistered with.ROC, in respect.of wiich dues has bead repdid by 16 Marth 2002.and cutren

tiythere areno

;ﬁ.utSt_an'd:ih'E_"d_U.lgs'-. However, the.Company has niot filed the-refevant foris intimating the satisfaction of $aid.¢ afges.with:ROL and-
accordingly, the Company is in the:pracess of filing #n apnplication for condoination of detay. with' ROC. .

Charge I'd

tharge Holdar Name

Date of Creation

Date of

Modification. |

"'A'mo_u_rtt:

10131100
10115277
10096013

10687391

| ICEFS FRUST COMPARY LIMITEG

fL & S TRUST COMPANY LIMITED,
IL & FS TRUST COMPANY LIMITEDY
|18 F5 TRUST COMPANY LIMITER

1L07-2008.
07-08-2008
04-13-20G8
14:01:2008.

09-07-2008

26,450,000

‘22,550,000

5,500,000

145 Net debt reconciliation _ o _
‘This.section sets out an analysiy of net-dabt and the movements in net debi for each of the periods presented;

Particulars:

Asiat
‘March 31, 2022

Asat
‘March 31, 2021

Liguid investmients.

Cash znd cash equivalents, bank overdrafts

Debt.securities - commercial paper
Borfowings - loans frony related parties

12,274
182,742
(2:816,565}

{1,620,000)|

+110,088.
{247;429)
(1,620,000

(29,371}

Netdebt

{4,231,549)

{1,786,730}

Particulars:

" Cash-and-cash |

eguivalents;
-overdraft

Liguid
investments

Deht-secirities -

conimercial papér

Borrowings.- loans
from relatad parties

Net-debtas at-April 1, 2820

Cash flows movement (net)

Interest.expense. o

Iiterest paid

Cther non-cash movements.
- Fair value adjustments
~Unamortisdd discount

. - Acguisitions/disposals:

344,019

(373,390}
1443)
443

1478478
(1,368,399}

12,220,372}
1,973,066
{45,083}
44,909

13,620,000]
{115,113}
115113

Netdebt as 2t March 31, 2021

{29,371)

310,080

{247.439)

{1,620,000)

Cash'flows:movement (nat)
Intefast expinsa.
{nterest:paid
Other non-cash movements:
- Fair value adjustinants
- Unamaortised discount
- Acquisitions/disposals:

41,645
{4,175}
1175

82,663

{2,549;268]
{12,860)

{88,101}
98,101

Met debt as at Marchi 31,2022

12,274 |

192,742

{2;816,565)

.,670,000)

- - Dther finangial Hatillities

Particulars

As at:

s af
March-31, 2021

Employee benafits payakie:

- Moratariuni
~ Pending settiemert

Paydble to customer onaccount of

March 31, 2022

Bsa |,

1,338

811
7484

Total

~ BS&|

‘9,638




H5BC InvestDirect. Finapcial. Servll:&s {india}; Lirsited
Notes to financial statements far- the. year. ended Warch 31, 2022 [Cnntd 3) : :
{Alkamounts’in iNRthuusands, unless otherwlse stated} -

16

a7

18

1§

Current tax liabilities (Net. .

Particutars -

As.at

. March 31 2022

Asat

'March 3 ,-2021

‘|#rovisien forincanie tax,
. Inetafadvance tax NIL March 31 2021 377 295)

' 15,311

Total

Pravisions

Particulars

oaget

Pitilsion foremp
leave obligation
-Gratuity (Refer Nnte 30}

Froxision far propertvtax‘

' ": enefits

1354

| march31, 2002, ma

Total

* The movementin provision forproperty tax isas follows:

2,077,

'Partii:ui'zir's-

Opemng balance :
Additions during’ the year
Amuunts used

Uniised amounts. reversed

Clusmg balanl:e

Deferred:tax assets:(Net).. .

Farticulars

arch 31,2022 )

“Un reahéed gam cﬂi' ut.

Netdafervad thicassety (liabiity)

Othér non-financial iabilities .

iiar':j_cuiars

Statotary dise
tax- deducted tsour:e

 providend fund and

Tn :al




3 Fmancial Sen.r]ces (lndla] Llrmted

Notes to finaricial statements forthe vear saded March: 31, 2022 (Contd:)

20

b

{alk amounts in INR thousands, uniess btherwise stated)

 Equiity share capital
Asat As at
L March- 31, 2022 Iarch 31,7021 -
Particulars: . ’
Number of Number.of
. shares Rs. shiares Rs..

Authorised shajes.

Equity shares of Rs. 10 eaich - T4700R000 1,470,080 147,000,000 1.470.0t0.
Isstred, subscribed & fully paid-up: shares ’ ' :
Equityshares bf R, 10:weact 145,284,720, 1462807 | 146388, 720 1.462,847
Total 146,284,720 1,462,847  148;284,720! 1,662,847
-Recoriciliation.of the' mumiter of equity shares outstanding at the beglnning and at thia-end ofthéyear..

. Asat Asiat
L March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Particulars Fe 124 Mare 4
Number of Number of
shares Rs. sharas RSs.

Dutstariding at the bieginning of the year- 146,284,720 1462847 146,284,730 1,462;847
Sharesissued durlng the year - - - -
Dutstanding atthie éxid-of theyear 146,284,720 1,462 847 136,283,720 1,462,847 |

Terms:and rights attached to-equity shares

The cofpany hds oneclass of egiity share having & parvalue of Rs. 10 per share; fach. sharsholderis aligible for g vote pér

-share held, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors:is 5ub;er:: tethe approval of the sharehalders In thie'ensuing

Anmual Generai MeEt!!‘!g. excupt in the case of interim-dividend. In.the event of Houidation, the- equitv shareholders are
.eiigib'e o receive theé remalning assets of the Company afterdistribution of afl prefereritial amouiits, in-proportion tothair

shareho[dm_g

€} Shares of the Company held by the holding coinpany

Asat

df

Asat -
Equity shargholders March 31, 2022 _ March'31,2021
' i B Numbes of Number pf
. ) sharas.. % halding shares 2-holding
HSBC investDirect {Indiaj Private Limited, the 146,284,720 0] 146288720 100
holding tompany & its joint holders '
Details of sharehelders holding more:than 5% of the shares in the Camipany
T Agat-  Asat
e Mareh 31, 2022 March31, 2021
Equity shatenoldets: Number of Numberof
. . shares %5 hatding. shares 3 helding
HSBE InvestDirect [India) Private Limited, the 146,284,720 100 146,284,720 Ry
hdlding tompany & its joint haldats e )
-Shareholding of Promoters )
Shares héld by promotarsasat Marsch-31, 2022 % Change
. disring thee year
Promoter name No.of Shares | % of total shares
HSBC tnvestDirect [india) Private Limited, the 145,284,720, 00 -
helding. camgan:.r&fts;mnt holdears .
Total 145,284,770 100 -
stiares held by profriotersas at March 31,2021 % Change
_ _ disrirng the yedr
Promoter rame " No,of Shares [% oftotal sharas |, ’
HSEC investDirect {india) Private Limited, the 146,284 720 s -
halding company &:itsoint finldes . .
Total 145,284,720 1007 -
‘Far thé: Company's.capital management policy, refer Note 33




"HSBC InvestOirect Findnclal Services (India) Umited
Hotes to financial statements-for the year ended March:33,.2022 [Coind:)

21 othérsquily il amaunisin NRR
A Resorves and surplus : : o :

Partictitars.

Securities premivm
Opening balanes, .
Add 1 changes duritiz the year. ]
Clasing balance. L

General resere
Cpening Batance
Attd : chngex diirfop the year
Clasing balante .

Statutory reserve
Opning bafance
Adi's Yranshe uringmevea ;
C!asmﬂhafance :

Opening batanee
Add 7 transfer: dnringthev
Clos!ng balanre S

a_e_*tained earnings
Uriening hafanrﬂ .
Add 1 :hanges _uﬁng_the year

5.0f & orher ramp.'e i
) {Less} e

) Mmhaz 2021 -

ve-incame |

REVACT 2 R

Transter-of galn to ‘RmaIn r:d £am1l’t£5
: Tnlai othzr reserves 0T

17057

iTéltsf-'éthh’r’-ém.'lIl\i. L

Companlas Ar ZGSL

b} St_atutury.ras_?e rve

mins Act ft cafy be useilIn.’

the Imp ai'rx'-num EE.SENE shail " ot he mckn m_-d far regu[atnr; capitel,

4] EvOCH eqiity. Investrients




Nates to-finankiafstatamants for the year ended Mareh 31,2022 {Contd.}

22(a)

estDirbet Finaricial Sarvices {india) Limited

{All amounts.in INR thousands, uiiless othirwice statad)

Intérest intame.

Partictlars

Mar31,2032.

Mar-31; 2022

O financial asséts. méasurad at Ainbetised costst’
Interest on loans
Pregaymiént Feas-
Interest on.depositsvith banks.

395,845

#3799
‘Ba7
24,687

Total_

416,123 |.

r22(b),

Net géin-on-falr valire changes

460,319

Particulars

ar 31, 2032 .

Mar 31, 2021

Qthers

of logs

Net Gari/{lass) on financial instrament at fair valise through profit

17,304

30,187

Tatal {A)

37,308 |

30;187

Fair Value changes:
Realised
Linfealised

17,160
144,

30,145
4 7

17,304 1

23

Total (B)

Otherincomea

30,187

Particulars

Mar 31, 2022

Mar 31, 2021

Miscellaneous income
Lightlity-nb lenger required writfen back

113
16,173,

8

Tatal. .

16,286

8

2

=

Einancé costs

Particulars.

Mar 31,202%"

Mar31,2021 .

|onfinantlal liabilittes measured at amortised.cost:

Bankoverdraft
infer coFporaté deposits.
Commercial Papers

Other Borrowing. Costs

1375

199,101
19,860

1742

443
115,433
45,092

260

. Total

121,878 |

160,908

mpairment on financial instruments

| Particuldrs.

Mar 31,2022

Mar31, 2071

©n financial instruments measured at:Amertised cast:
Loans

261

i5)

|Total

261

{s)

26

_Employee benefits expenses

1Particulars:

Mar 31, 2022

Mar'31, 2022

Salaries.and wages

Contribiution to provident and other Funds {Refer nota 30)
Gratuity (Refer note 30) ' '

Staff weifare gepenses

39,556
1,845,
1,058
1,652

35,446,
1,653
777
2317

JTatal

ag,112 |

A, 143




27 Otier expénses

Particutars. .

Ratesand taxes,

Repalrs andmigintenance
- Otharg

insuranca charges

[Rent Refer Nate {c) helow]

Teavelliig and’ cnnveyanc:___'_;_"

| responsibility

But-of:po l:ker 8N pen sas

: Tutal

d March 31, 2022 (Contd




H$BC InvestDiract Fihancial Services {India) timited.
-Notes'to firidngial statéments for the year endéd Maireh 31, 2022/ (Contd.)
{all amountsin INR thodsands, ufiless gtherwise stated) .

27 Gther expenses {Contd.)

<J Shidrt terin laasa digélasures: _ _ _
The campany has elected niot to-apply the-fey u}_r'eh‘i_en‘t_s of Ind AS 11619 shortitermy leases of afl assets that
have & lease term of 13 months ar less.and. leases for which the-underlying.asset is of low vaiue. The lease:
payment assoclated with these Jeases are fecognised. 85 an-expanse of o straight-line basls over the fease.
term..

The company incurred INR 12,301 {INR 9,944 for FY 20-21) for the-vear ended March 31, 2022 towards
expense relating to short-term lease.

tese: contracts. entered by the company. majorly- pertaing foroffice- spacé taken on Iease 1o conduct; ity
Gusiness i the ordinary.course by using the existing infrastructure and utilities provided in:the building.. The
coimpany-does-not have anyleasé restrictions.and commitments towardsvariable rent as perthe contract.,

d) Struck -off companies _
The Compariy-did it have any transactions: with campanies struck off under section 248 of Companies At
2013 orsection 560 of Compa nTes'-A_c_t, 1956;




HSBC InvestilrectFinancial Services Uindta) timited
Nates to finantial statements for the yearended March 31,2022 {Contd.}

28 Income tax expenses

a) ‘The components.of. In:ame tax expense for the period ended March 31 2022 :md March 31 -1021 are';._
Particalais . j

Ciirrant tax.

Deférred tax

{Excess}/short provision for tax
Subtotal '

Daferrad.tax = Other :omprehensive ;nwme
Tatal. :

h} Reconclhation of. the.
The tax’ charge showi :
1ax rate A tecam:illat:o i

{Accaunting rofit Beferd tak.

; Tax atlndiassmutor\rincom :




"HERC frivestDirdet Findncial Sgrvices {indla) Lifited.-
_thes tn____nancial statements for the: year, ended Marchfii 2022:{Contd.,)

(Al arviptmts Tn INR.thausands, unlessotherwise stoted}

_ wm:h ara'fn:{uded ufidz mntrthutinn to nravldent and other fundS’

Particulin Mar31; 2022 1 ®ar3i, 2021
Pravident fund 1788 1562
Othars-- B 891

b). Befined heneﬂt plnns

The. Cumpanv has adelined: henefit plan for. post‘emplnyment berefits 1n the farr-of. Gratusty; The Campany cantributes to-the’ “rajuity

Truﬂ“

:Every empioyee is entitled to a:beneht equwalent 10 iy days salary dast drawn for each :nmplated year of service. The sdmiely

payabile at the time pf separatlnn fmm he Companv or retirarheit whichever is eatfiar. The bensfits vEst “after four. years and -ne

hundred ninaty days of coptinuous sepvice.

THe fal!awmg tables summiarise the companents: af et beneﬁt aNpEnse recugmsed in the statement of m‘of t.or iuss and.the funded status -

and amnunts recngn:sud [n ihe bislande. shecr far the respemve plang:

i Balance Sheat

qus__e rf::va{_u_e_ of | Falr valite ‘_?f‘FF‘“! Net affiount
. . . ‘ohiigatian: assets’ -
|as at Apeit £, 20200 412, FE0E 1,311
Current service cost 1,015 - hXOLE
(Intefest expehise fincome). %57 517 a
|Fotat armsuntrecognised in:Profit and toss 4,572 517 1,055
Rieturn.om pian assets excliding amountsincluded in interest expense}mcume. < 2057 {207
Actuariatfoss / {gainj anslig frum change in ﬁnantsal assumptipns 108 - 168
Actiiarial foss £ {psiry an)ging-nn secount of i experiencg changes {3154 - (315}
Total dmiount recognisediin Dthir Comprahensive Iicome {267) W7 1413)
Past service cost - plan: amendments {328} - {328}
gntributions- : 1812 {1,912
_ Biépefit paynients.. {763} {763} -
Bs at March 31, 2021 -B,686 9314 312
Curret strvice cost 1,040. - 1,049
53 517 i
Totalamaunt recognisad inProfit and Loss 1,578 517 1,058
Retuer on planassets sxcluding amauntéindlded i Interest expense/ihcome: - 434} 43-1
Eictuaittal foss /- (gai] artsing fom’change in fingadal assumptions, {aen - 8153
Actuarial lass / {galn} arising on-account of experience changes 14z, - 142
Tata amount recogmsed In Oth erfem prehensive incame {139) {434 55
Past service cost.- flan. amendme}nfs - - i
Empiloyer contribitions - it 318
Banufit payments {2,396} {2,396} -
As.at March 31,2022 . ‘B,72E. 73731 1,353
As at Asat
P*"ﬁ‘""" Marich 31,2622 | ‘March3i, 2021
Préisent value.of; pian Irabi!ities BT 9,586
Fair vaiue of plan aisals 7373 8374
|PTan lisbility net of plan assets 1,353 3124
Ii}:Statement of Profit.and toss
Partfculars ‘Mar31,2022. | Mard), 2021
Emplayed Bepaht Expetises:
Giiirent secvice tost 1,045 1,015.
{Total™ 1,049 1,015
Finarce.cast g 40,
Net impact tn the profit before. tax 1,058 1085 |
I_lerpgas_urgment n_f t_h_e ney Euﬁned'be_peﬂt fiabHity:
Returncwplan 3siels Exeluding omeunts ineluded ln'interest expensefingorma. 434 {207)
Actutiallogs /(gain) arising frem change in finandial assumptions (981} iy
Acturial{oss (gain] srising:on srcount-f wxperience changes. 142 {315}
Netimpact an the sther comprahensive incame Befors.tax. 295 fa1ay
:iii} Befined bonefit plons assets
Categary of assets (3 allocation)  hwa L Asat
- R B taarch 31, 20227 | :Miarchidl, 2021
- Insurer Managed Fund (HDFC Groge Unitlin plati - Gption BY :100% 200%
Total 100% 0%




assbrnpuntts under #nd

Particitars.

Discountrate ~ L B
{Salary escalatidn sate* N P .
** takes into acccunt the Inflation; seninrty, promotinns 'md other relevantfadurs o TR

v} Demugraphic asstimptions.

|Particulars’

al. assumptmns the: same methcd {zresent
the and of :he rcponlng perInd) bas hder

'-.anaws_.t.s e retiverie




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Servit
Notes totinantial statements forthe Vear ended’ March 31, 2027 {Cnntd ]
(Al amauns in !NR thousands, un'[ess otherw _

stated)
31 segrent (nformation
The Company is domu::led in |I“ldiil. The Company’s engaged Inbusiness’ of: fmancmg by way-of taans {non hanking finandial.
ser\rlces], wh;ch is. ccnmdered to be only reportahle segment {in accordance with Ind A5 108},

32 Earnings.pec share (EPS)

a)- Computation of basic & iluted eafnings per sharé s given below:

[Particutars Mar31, 2032 Mar31, 2021
Basic-& Diluted edrnings pefshare- _ -
Net profitafter tax avaflable for equity sharehaiders {A) {Rs. In thousarids). 192,334 178,074
 Weighted average number: of equity shares. (8} 146,284,720 146,284,720,
Basic & Diluted earnings per share (A/B}{Rs.) 131 ' 122¢%
Nominal valte pefshare.(Rs.) 101 10

33 Capital management

The.Company maintains an-actively managed capital base to.cover riské inherent in the business and is:maeting capital
adequacy reguirements of the local banking. supeivisar, Reservé Bank-of Irdia. (RBI). The adeéquacy. of the Company's
capital s vionitored using; amongst-Gther measures; the regulations Issugd by RBL Company has.complied in full with all its
externally imposed capital requirerhents.over: the reported period. The primary objectives of the Company's capital
‘mariagement policy are to ehsure thiat the Company: complies with externally imposed capital requirerrientsand maintains
strong credit ratings afid healthy capital ratios in arderite supportits bisiness and to-fakimise sharehaldef valie,

The Company manages fts eapital striciure and makes adjustments tait-accariding to changes inecoriomic. conditions dhd
the 1igk chardcteristics ofits activities. 1n order’ta malntain or-3djust-the cabital strdetyure, the Comaany may adjist the
amount of- dwzdend payment to shareha!ders, reruti capnfa! to shargholters or iisus cepital sécurities. Ng changes have
_b_een_:: made to theobjectives, policies’ ‘and processes fram. t_he.. Frevious years, However, they are undey constant review by

‘the Board.
Regtilatory Capital.

T iy o iAsat As at
Capitalto risk assets ratio (CRAR): March 3t; 2022 | March 31, 2021
Tier | €apital 4,875,685 4,679,188
Tigr Il capital -858 597
Total capital 4,880;543 4,679,785
Risk weighted assets 8,808,648 §,099,420{
CRAR (%] 55.41% 76.73%
CRAR ~Tier | capitai (%] 55.40% 16.72%
CRAR - Tier ) capital (%4} 0.01% 0.01%
Amountiof subordinated debt fonsidered as Tier Il.capital - -
Amoaunt raised b issue of ferpetiat debtinstruments . -




Notesta finaneiat state

‘34 Mty &
_ The-tatife bl

'ﬁa_r_t'l_r._u]ars

Within 12 months

J|Financiat assets

ashiand.cash equivalents’
HBank hatancanth
[irvEstmants® ;-

ef thaivedsh dnd tash equivalents.

12,274
ap3202

§032,300

Dthernsn {assets.

. 6,99

I1otat Nanfinancial astets|
Totai dssets (G5 AHE)

Othecfinancial liabliities

Total financial 1is5iles («




‘HSBE InvestDirect Financial Sérvices: (Indla) Limited

‘Notag tofifidndial stataménts foi the year erided March 31, 2022 {Contd.} B S
' fAllamaunts in {NR thousands; uh!esé’;“t’ithE_'r'\'ﬁir'i'sé.-_sta't'éd}_'-
35 - Falr value measurement’

a) Financial Instruments:by Category

St

The significant. accounting policies, incliding the criténia for recognitidn, the basis of nirasuremerivand thi basis o whilch Inicdme dnd-expenses
are recognised, 'ir_: respect of each elass. of financizl asset, financial liabifity and equity insttument are disclosed in-note 2A 1V t& the fingnclal
statements:

Particulars A% atiMarch 31,2022 As-atWiireh 31, 2021

' ' Fairvalue Fafrvalue | Arvortised | Fairvalug [ Fajrvalue | Amortised
through  |throughOCi|  cost through.  |thiough OEI ‘cost

‘Profit or Loss Profit or Loss

FinancialAssets: . L . _ o
Cash-and cash equivalents ' - - 12274 - ' B
Bank balakice ather thah.cash and cash : - 403,202 - - 405,313
eflivalents . .
|toans . e - - 8,581,427 | -1 .= | 5,987,056
investrents ' 192,743 17,057 « 1gose] o = -
Other financlal assets, - - 7,148 - - 14,7113
[Total Financiat Assets 192,742 17,057:| 9,004,051 110,080 - | 688558

Financizal Liabifities: ] ]
Trade pavables. - - -10;740. - - 11,463
Dbt securities - - 2816585 - - 247,438
Barrowings (ather, than debt securities) . - = | 1,620,000 s - 1,650,847
1Bther financial liabllities. S - 856 - - 9,638
Total Financial Lisbilifies - - - 4,448;121 |. - -] 1,518,387




'HSBC IrvestDitact Fingncial Ser

‘Notes to finaiiclal statements for the year énded

bY Filr value hicrarchy

e -
March'3l, 2022 {Comd.)

[¥indndial asset:
Invasimants

: Tatal ﬂnancla? ssats.

] A! atL'March 31,2021

118,080

'hliitles measured st.anortised.cost

. :130,080:

) Falrvatue of fiaanicial assets and

Partictilars

| AgatWarch 31,2022

Finanrial: assm
Loang

8,581,427

‘Carrylng Malue |

FairValug” 1. C

SaTamez|

£ 857,056

Total financial asset

. B5BLa27 | -

_ _”%;ﬂi.is’.:»'sraf .
‘1,620,000 .

4,'@136';555:\




estfiect. Financial Surdtces {(Adla) Lintitad

I'-Fotes to f:nanc:at'stammcnts ‘tor tha year. ended Merch 31, 2072 |Cuntd ).

fAll-amounts i MR thausangs, unfess atheivise stated}

‘36 Flnahoidl sk management

Thie-cémpany's activlities expiose B to market Fisk, Hiquidity Fisk:antd-chadit efsk,

The: cumpam,r‘s risk managament'ns catriad out by tie Company's Risk Wanagémient team ladbya RO} wender policies approved by the:board of directors,
The Cnmpnny hiog i idan polTr,y hich| pr es'gmdantes for avérall ik manigement, spectt“ iathy credit eish-and market risk, Theré is-alsolan interest rate.
puiicy 1o manage interestrate fst and Jig l.ifdlt‘{ rigk.

36:1 Credit fisk managamedit

-Cregit fisk {5 the risk of suﬁermg financis} logs,.should. any of the: fampany s Lustamers,: clients or. market counterparties Fail ‘to fulfilthelr comractual
obhgmmns to the mmpan?‘ Creit risk arises.malnly from 1aans and advanl:es, and Igaf eommitrents afisng from suth lending activitios,

Credit rigk. i the $inghe lavgest risk far the.company's Husiness; maragemont therefore: ccarefully manages its exposure to. credit risk. The credit sk
-management. and . cantrni -are cantrafised I 3 credit risk managemént team whicth repons In {0 the CRO. Assesstiant of lending propdsats nchides
assessment of Bairovers backgraund; financial strength-and levdrage; aperational & finandal performance teack record; cash-faws; valuation of collaleral
and. sirilar parameters.

The Company offers & single praduct which is 1z:nrnng -egalnst financial:secirities (LAS) I 5 more-thiart - 200% sedured produdt; with. regulatary rlsk weight
“agsignied §f 1{10 A réal tirme Figk munlmrmg systaracts put in plnce to assist the rigk: taamto initinfe tha necessary.margin <l Triggers.and take necassary-‘
-agtlon jacluding imuidatmn of culfaterais to pmtect aE2inst the prabakile. bad debits;

{a) Loans.and advances (inch. [oan commitments-and guaranteas]

~The-estimation of tredit axpnsurn forsk: maﬂagement purposés iscomplex and requires. theuse of: mgdels, ssthe expasum \:aruas with. changes inmarket:
conditions, expected cash Ravs, and-the. uassagc: of time, The assessment of credit risk .of a-porticlio of assets entalfs furdber estimations-as fo-the
fikefltnod of:defauity accurring, of the assaciated fass ratios and-of default cozralatigis: hetwien counterpdities, The-Campany. measures eredit vigh using:
- Pravabilify of-Defoull {PD), Expusum at Default {EADJ 1nd Unss Given: Default {!.Eﬁ) This is similarte: the: approach used for the pirdses ot fRgasuring.
Expedted Cradit Loss 1ECL:under Trid-AS 109, Refer tu note-36:15] f6f ore details,

-Other findrcial asvnts

The Company.hos-credit risk: expcsum In-cash ant cash equivalents, doposits with: harnks, angother financal assets: Cash and cash equivalents and Bank
depiosits.arg held with andy figh rated hanks/firtantial |nsttiunans ofily, therefore.cradit. risk Is perreived tohe low,

-Dther fi nanmat assels pertain: o securaty depns:ts for: rented premises, margin dapnslt‘ The Comgany dods et pitreeive any-sigrificant declne,In cradht risk
-of the-1éssors and hénce expected probahility of default is.considered as 16w

“Custgmar Risk Rating (CR&]

The: Company uses Internal GRR.rating. made) that.enables its.assessment of the pmbahlhw of dafault ot individunl ‘tounterpanties. Thn Internal CRR is-
taltdred to thevarints categories of countarparty. Snrrower-and. loan spedific. informatlon.coliected atthetime. pf. appilca:lﬁri uch a5 dlsnasahle incumc.
and Tt of- mtiaterai} T4 fed- Intc this rating mgifed. Th:s i supplemented with extirnal Hatd such.ps tredit burdat scoring information an lndbsidual
borrawers,

“The Intdrnal ERR Js calibrated such bt the risk of difault ncreases-exponentially.at each higler CRR.

Thi Company has its own nterial credit rating, Aramowork that is uses far rating af-the Barrowers at the time-of sanction.and during the annual re-rating
BXErCise. Ay othar known Infurmatmn abuit the borrower which impacts. their ereditworthiness < such g% Anemplayment, dnd previeds delinguency-
Histary-is a1su incorporated intothe annust PP AL GRercise, Based on the analyds dane. hy the- Compan\r, the ;:arameters i the rating.modek {boriower
strefigth, gpurating risk, market risk; financials, atef are guven astors between 1 {hughest} tp 10 (iowest); The internal rating ls*hased on-the:finat score
dertved’from the eradit rating mordel,

figfer rotable below for detakis:.

- Interal scare. Dascripilon.of the prade
0L 1327 i Defult RISk

21,22 Loy Diefault Risk

3,1, 3.2, 33 Satisfactory BefaullRisk
41,422,483 Fair.Diefatilt. Risk

51,52, 53 Moderate Tafault Risk

5167 Sipnificint Dufauly Risk

71,7:2 High Oefault Risk

8.1, 8285 [5oecial Managsmient .

818 - Detaull
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{i) Oefinition of défault and credit-

{4l drhounts Tn NA thoisands, uafess Btherwisestarad}

‘Borrowers for whidim the CRRhas Betuiioratsd 1o Spedal Management finternal scores 831, 872, 8.3} /-Oefault {internai scafe: 9, 105 4ré condidared 1o be
“credit-ivipaleed.

in the SICR section above, the patential inpact of fagtors beydnd the contrab.of thi Risk Managemizmt taaiti-has been enttmersted, Apart from the
uncnntmllahle factors, the Company, does nat foresae-a sééniria where the firancial nstrumentswould be:credit Imparred, by virtiie of oné or:mare of the
faliowirg critrias

»The Company i tonservativiedn its' eustomer selection oriter i

- The Camps "~,r obseris n_-':ntzrnal fating critdrta: tiefore anboarding naw customers-#nd Héfore renewine limits for-eidsting customers-

- The. Eompany accepts. caliatecal cover only. for-ghigible secarities, The criteria-for. deiermining eligible securities is-described in he léar:policy. for ead’
category of collateral {equity. shares, mutial furids; bongs ete)

- I the' past 3 years, HIFS. has ot witressed any Creditdefaults o CredIt iosses.an'thie LAS 858 product. All {Gané afa-Stoge 1'assets with a.satistactory.
mstoncai repavmenl behavhr

The Ioans-affered. have 2 contractual tenor: of 12.36 motiss, Loans with a contractuaf tenor nf mere thin 12 miuntts are 5uh]r.'ct in-annual review and

-'approual Al thiis: luans have.a. putféal. optiori-forthe. burmuer{ lender respecﬂvelv.

- A nandai calla:e_ re; va]ued ana conllriulna Basis vis-a- Vis the lnan exposure for. any shiartfull which are requ:red tabe ragutarised in 2 magimum, of 7
workmg day’s time. Eise the fingncial coliaterai-are subject:tosell off,
-An finznctal collateral showing quality deterloration.is requirad th beswappet with butter-qiality secority a4 advised by Risk.Ma
- Miigans are demand \gans recaliable with a-skbrt notice:

Nk es,

tin} Upgradatwn from’ hlgher stage-td lower stage

‘For-upgradation-fram. highiar: sfage 10 fuvier stoge {l:e. sohave: curedy ] ) ) _
toan and advances.is:notmoved from higher. stage to fower stage immadlately.ahter payment of averdus amount, fallowing codling off periot is.applied;

From; StagL Zto Stagel
~Contractiral payments are in Jower than 30 days gast due- Jar at fanst sie months

This-period:of sic-months has.begn. detem\mcd based an an dnalysis whith consitders the ikellhood of-a finantlal nstrurhent rétarnitg to difaditstatls
after tdre utlng diffecent possible cure-definitians.

1%} Mensuring ECL - Explanation:of Inputs, assufnptions and-estimation technigues .

The Expected: Credit Lods (ECLY 35 measured onelthir a 12:month- (12M) gr Lifetins: basis: dependmg an whethgr a slgnificant incredse if credit ik has
nccurred since irtial, recngninon ar v.hether an- asset s, considered {0 he credit-impaired. Expected credit fosses- are the discounted: product of the
Pmbahillw of Default {PD:, Exposure at:Default. tEAD} and Lissg Givin DefAult{LGDY, defined asfoliovs:

~The PO ropresunts the, 1fketihuud ofa hnrrawur default!na an: lls I'lnanclaF ubhgatiun {as per “Definitton.of default and cradie: qmparred’* shove}; either-over
the next 13maonths {12!41 BB}, oroverthe remsining ertlme (I.Efenme PD] ofthe’ ‘ohligation.

~ EAD is busad-on the amounts the Compary.expects 1ol b ovied at the timeof defaylt, aver_the next 12 moriths {120 E4D) or-over this remdining fifetime:
ll.}{nhrne EAD). Fir eaample; for a revolving somimitmen ‘the: Compary, inclutas the currem' drawn ha]aﬂce plusany fistther aifount lhal is.expected. ti bis
drawn up ta the-cliriant Conffactudl fimit by thu me.of de{ault, should it acour,

-« botsGiven Défault- ey :epresenls the Company's.expectation af the:extent of foss.on 3 defaulted exposure, LGD: varies by typeof counterparty; type
and senfority’ of dlajmi and avaitabliity of collatersd of othertradit suppart. LGUTS expresied: asa percentasu losg per. unit ofpipbsure-at thedtime of defalt
“{EAD]. LG5 palrulated g e 12-month br Yifetime. tasis, whers 12-month LG[) is-the per:antage of Inss erpecied th b piade.if thi defaidt-occirs fn-the
niixt- 13 months-and Lifetime LED-is the pefcentage of lossexpected to be:made if the defaull accurs-over the rematning expected hfehme_nf;he loan.

Ther ECL 1S ditdrmitngd Ly projécting the PO, {GD dnd EAD for. vach Tuturi mpnth. and for- each individual: enposum ar coltective segment These, thrag
companents.are milktiplied iogether and adjusted forthe hkclthaod of sunival {{ the exposure has-ndt pmpaid or defaulted fn én earlle medthy. THiS,
effe!:tiveiy talciiates an ECL for wack fiture rhanth; whu:h is. than ﬁlscnunted back o th& repnntng date ard summed. The dis:t:unt rate-used in the ECL
ealeulation is the eiiginal sHectveIntecsst fate.or an approvimation thereofs

Farward-laaking eeanoriic infaramifon is also ihduded in delermining the PR, EAD:and LGD. Refer-to nmte 36,1k v} for an explanation of forward-tooking
infdrmmion and its ncluglon in-ECL :altuhtions.
There have been no signtfﬂant changes in estimation techniques or signfficant assuniptians made during the tepgirting petiath

{v] Forwird-lagking information Incorparated in the ECL fiodd)

The assessment of. SiCR.incarporates- forward:looking. informatian, Al fhans: are Stage-1 asscis with.a- 5aﬁ5factury h:stnricat repayment hnhawuur, The
Campany's LAS portfuim confprises Righfi lquid fnanciai zollateral which sre valued on g ‘Eantinulng Basis vis-gwvis the baad e;;pusure faf. any shartfalt
hieh; arg required to bE Fegllarised in.a maklmumg nf? working.day’s time, Else, the. Snancldl calfateral are subfect to selt aff

in this SICR sectlon abave, the potential tmped- of factors beyond'the cortrol of the Risk Management team’ has been enumerated. Apart from-the
unmntmﬂabie factors, It Is unfikely that any- of iife Stage 1 pssetsiwould move ta Stage 20

- (hther forivard-lonking ronsiderations-not otharivise Incorporated within the shave seanarios, sach as the Impict af any regtatory, Ieg’tstatlve or pollticat
changes, which are IiPeIt,r e cuirnlna!é_mtu reductmn In reaficable valug of éollsterat securities are built i thiough the andual stress-tésting exercise {which
s cegulatory regulrement).. The portfaflo s, stemss-tested under varlous scenarios. 1o arrive-st.the. ‘impact analysls on the loan pdnfolio; but are not
deened 1o have a materlal impaet: and therelare no #djustment bas Heen matfe th the ECL (or siich farciars, This is rnwnw‘ad ‘and mnmtored for:
apprapriateness on arannust basls,
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Notes ta financial statements for the: year erided March: 31 ‘2027 {Contd }

i}

i)

uistDliract Flndngls) Services {Indid) Limited

{aN ambuntstn JNR thousands, dnless otkerwise stated)

Asset group:.

Ihternalrating prade

. AsatMareh31, 2021

Tota¥

Loaragatnst finantial seturities {LASY

Performing

Minimuih Default Rick
Low Befault Risk
Satisfactory Defaulk Risk
Fair Default Rigk:
Moderate Default Risk

3ignificant Befault Risk

High Defailt Risk .
Special Management
Default

Nan= performing
Individually imbaired:

- Stapel

5,531,005
436,548

-

Stage 2

“Staped

5,531,005
435,698

Total.

Total.

5,967,653

5,967,653

L‘ollateral

Thé amount and. type of collatéral required depands on an-assessment uf the cradit risk. of the counterparty; Guidslines: are<n- p]ar:p ovEring the

~Bants {sovereign and corporate}

-actEtabtity and- vaiuatmn uf-eachtype of rolfatéral.
“The Compan'.r ta i
.-coilaterai ahtainnd i part-of the: Inar. ar[gmat!nn profess. This askessmient |
~Listed stacks o _
-~ Units ‘of mutual fuirds (both equity & debt schemes Including Fixed Maturity Flans)

eptah:]:t of spicific dasies-pfivelfateral proreditrisk-mitigation. The Cormpany: prnpares a valuaﬂun of e,
réviewed. perlodi:all? The-printipat collataral types argl

The fiirvsiue of soltateral Affects the. caleulation af ECL. it i gunerally sssessed,at a minlmisn, at ince ption and re-assessed ':;n.-a:rég_pibr' basis.
As-pier the contractudl terms, colfaterdl is permitted 0 be sold of evitnt of défault (Refur Note 36.2(h) il

" Carrylng dmount-

_ Eross l:xposﬁrt; Impairmant Faifvalue of .
; — ;
Particulars. 1o credit rlsk. allowahce colizterai heldi
A% attharch 31; 2022 R o I
- Loafyagainit- Bhancial Secorities: lLASi B.582,785 {BSE) B58LH27 | 95,100,750
Total RB,582,285 [E.EEB . 3;53'1’!421 .. . 25.300,760
As at March 31,2021
~Loan agatast financial securittes {LAS) . 5,957,653 {597 - 5,967,056 170%,32%
. _Tl'-ilal- : Si'Eﬁ?‘ESB- . E_Sr?_] . 5,967 056 b '17"103"345

* Impalrment sliowance: 0154 for: Marth 31, 2022; 001% for- March 31,2021

# Fair value. of cal!aterai he!d indudes cailaterai amount -againt” which no loan is oitstanding asat March 33,202 and March 31, 2021

‘Loss allowance

The loss altovance recu[,n:sud in the: ;mrmd isimpacted by-a variety of fattars; #is deseribed below:

~Travsfers bistwaen stages due-to, ﬁnanua INStrUMENts ax| Hen:ln[,sigmﬂcant 3
o .Adr.lltfunal a!lnwancf.s tar new ﬁnancia! Instrumenu recopiised dufing (He period;

perind;

eases {ordedreasés) of uedit riskin the pertﬂd
Jiswell as releases. for financial instruments de- recugmsed In the

~ impact-of the:measurement of ECLdue tochangesiv P05, EADS and LG5 in thi: permd Arising from.reguler raffeshing of inputs to meidils;

.- Impacts arithe measurementof ECL due t6 cienges. madets mudels snd assumptions;

- Discount anwind within £¢L-dus-to.the passage oftime, as. ECkis measured ona-present valusa basis;
- Fnanoial assets derecognised dunng e period- and e cffs Df allgvangis Teiaked 10 assets that were wWHHER rJEf during the ierigd-[sed note 35.1{c)).
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Asset group. Particulacs

" |2pening bafancte.

Loans given

Losn.apatnst finaricial seeutitiés {LAS)  |tozns repaid {inc!udins partial
repaymphts} .

{losing halance:

Asset group

i emeasurement [+] HUSS
aarnwan:e

_-shall inlti t# api
-.tr._algsferred tof




Pmdent 1!qmdlty i
tommmeﬁ credlt fa

{All amovnis in INR thousands, unless othén

" The comgam,lI ‘had: accéss ta the foliowing undrawn berrowing facifities.. Includmg commiftad Hnes,-at the end of: the raporting: pertnd

Asat As at )
Mareh 31,2022 | -March:31;2021
Floating rate ) A
~Exgilringeithin bneyear (bank olerdraft dnd:other facllities, with renewal gpiinn) 1,230,000 1,099,153,
:Expiring beyond.one yéar {other facilities) . 1;130.000- 380,000 {

b} Maturity 6f fiiangiai assets-and financizl Habiites.

4 :s'e';éfa'ted}

anagement }mpiles alatainiig Sufflelent tash #nd marketable-securities and the’ availability of fund‘ng through. an adequate.-ameount of
a5 tu meet ubhgat!ons whl:n due and tt_: ciose nut market pnsltinns Due ta the'dyivasmic Raturesof the underlying Businesses, the Cumparw

The table below summiatises the maturity. grofile of the updiscountet sk flows.of the Company's: financial iabhittes as-atthe Year end. The amounts disclosed 1n
'the ‘tabla aré the cantractual yhdiseounted. cash Hows, Balances due.within 12 mofths- #qual theit-carrying balances as the-impact of discounting is nat slgnlhcant
The Company doas:nat have any “dérivativie financial llzbilities.

Agat Marih:31, 2022

Within 1% months -

After 12 months

Contractual rnaturlties uf finantial assats Garrying: Lessthan3 | 3menthsta ] Gmanthstol | Betweeniand3 | Betwaeni3znd 5 I
and fiancial (fabilities. Amount months & manths yeor years vEears Tata
Finarichal asséts: )
Cash and-cashequivalents 12,274 _azzia - - 12,20
Bask bafance other than cash and cash 03,202 295,064 13m 111,147 - . 407,512
equivalents above i - o o
Loans- 8,581,427 B31,180] 1,038,826 4599,110 1,363,401 1,603,318: 9,525,834
tAvestmiats 209;79% 182,742 . ' - - 17,057 209,748
Other finarclal assets 7.148 - - 6,998 - 150 7,198
{Totalassets _5,213.850)  1,33L2607 040,127 4717255 1,363,401 1,710,535 10,162,567
Finaneia) fabitities o _
{Trage payatbies’ 10,700 9743 130 13 - . 10,700
Delit sdcurities: ;818,565 2,100,000 750,000 % - . 2,850,000
Bofrowings {other than debf séturities) 1,630,000 24 713 24,590, 49,436 158,258 1,710,180}  -Z007:612.
Qther financial liakilities 855 i L P - < - | 856 .
Totzl lfabilitlas 4,448,121 2,934,451 T75.1200 51,1720 158,288, 1,710,180 4,869,268
As at March 35, 2028,
) Within:12 rnanths ‘After 12 months
|Centractial maturities of financial assets Ea'rwi'ng' lessthan3 | 3manthsto |-G monthsto.l]| Petwéenland3 | Batween3Iangs .
: : 3 e T : N Total
and financia) tabilitiss Amaount -months & manths year: years years
FIndncial assets.. _ ) o
Cash-and:rashequivalents 1,475 1,476 - - - 1,476
.lzl.ank.balanca ntherthancash and cash 465,313 257,833 1,287 110,378 _ a66,298
BRUvalents abnva :
Leians - 5,967,056 829,476|  L488,821 2,470,491 737,278 702,277. 5,428,343
InvEstments 110,080 - . - 13080 110,080
Otherfinangs| assets 14,713 9,584 - 4,739 - - 14,713
Totaldssets - 5,448,639 1,238,769{ 1,590,108 2,585,589 737078 | 812,357 ;964,111
Financial liabifities
‘|¥réde-payabigs 11,463 5,608 3270 1,585 - 11,463
Dbt securitios. -247.438 256,600, - - - 250,000
Barrdwings {other than débt securities). 1,650,847 60,048 29,522 58,403 1,737,447 - 1,085,420
Otherfinancial fiabilities 9,638 8315 - 1,323 9,638
[Total liabHities- 1,519,388 324,971 32,792, 61,311 1737447 | ‘2,156,521



-HSBC InvestDirect | Financia!Se vices;
Wotdsta financial statements. for the. yearended, March 81,7022 {Cuntd ]

363 Market Risk

forelgn-exchange rates-and price movemants.

a] tntérest'rate 'rlsf( . iend'l'ng

#):Mnterest cate nsl-: dxposiie;

.The axpasura nf thé Con X Iending pmrfuho A6 Ingerest rate chnng

) Farl:culars : | As 5t March31, 2022 .
Varable rafe faans® SBEELIRS |
Fixad rate ir}ans s A
Total 8,582,285

‘A5 atiarch 3}

Loans

rif_-SenﬁtM_ty
“Profitand-los

Year ended

March3l, 2022

{3g;263)

2,816:565|

286585 .

: :had lhefa!Iaw: gva.:""

Welglﬁed averaga

Barrewingsfothérthan debt setirtiesy ™ 7]

- 4,435E565 :' o
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{48 dmaurits I INR: thousands, bnless. otherwise stated)

il sansitivity

“Profit and ings Is sensiflve fo higher/ldvier interast incomay{espanselfrom varlable rate ivans #s'a resilt of changes in interest.rates.

Particufars, Impict on profit after tav-and equity.
) Yearended Yaiy ghiled
: March 31, 2023 March31, 2001
Interestrates —increase by 6U {March 31, it e
2021::50} tiasis points. {7224} (H138)
Intarest rates - decreade by-60.{March 315 1374 11118

2024: eu}'-h'a;i's points

The sensitivity s derived haiding all.other variables-constant,

£ IntErest rate fisk expasura - Investménts in debt ofiented mitual: funds
The Company is-exposed td intersst rata risk: fram invgstmianty held in debt afiented mutual fund- unlts, These funds invest In debt-securitles. This
“Expdsure tointerest rate ik i case of uaits Bathed by debt securiiies 5 mesared sisIng sensitivity analysis as-follows:

Partitulars Imipdct on profit afted tax dnd eguity;
" ‘Yearended Near ended
. . Miarch 31, 2022  Maich 31, 2021
91 tays T-biil - Increaze by 10 basis points- 4978 i 1044
‘1B days T-bitl --decrease by 100 basis palnts 13,978} 10043

dy Farelgn.currency Fisk

TheCompany does not have any forelgn :urrenqr denominated exposures in respect of financial assets and Tinanciai liabllities as arthe Bafance sheat:
date that vl resuft i in'net currency gaing or16ssus In the statement.of profit and 8ss due to thange foréign cirréndyexchangs. ratesl

&) Price risk-

The Company does tiot have exposures in respect of | nancial assets and Hnan:iai hab!tlﬂes as at balance sheet date that-wiil result 1. changes: i,

statement GFprofit or Joss.or éfjuity due io change in pri:es.




HSBE InvestDlzect Finantial Senrl_m {ingia) Limited
Notes to finansinl statemants for the.ye

';l?._:_ngthlzd-garw traq'sa_c_’tiia_n!_ !'{\_s'pg_t_lf_i_ﬁ_'ﬂ,s 24}
{a) Parent entities

The company is- :ummi!en‘ hv_e fulfnwlng em!t-,r .

endad March 31,2022 (Contd,)’

‘flame of; the enl' '

|H58C investdirect {indiz) Lirmtg_g

Alndia .

FSEC Seruritios 508 Caphal Markers ) Private Gied -

halding. _...F

g

The Hongkahp and Shanghat Banking Corporatio Umited

Intnfmed!ate

Hoffi:Kdng

- |hotiling e8
HSBE InvesiDirert Sdcuritlet findia) Private Umited ~ ~  [Subsidiaryef ™ findia
intarmediate '
. ) . hotding cotpgang. | e
HEAE Hnltﬂh@_;_s Bir, Ultlmale-haldlrg " itaited Kigdom

(bj Transnctiuns havn taken placa In the: mdinaw murse'uf-l

h busness {or. th.t:\reajr

Name of the. antixv

india Branches )

Hsae Eiettmnic Dita: Pm:essing India. Private Limh

Pt Emp!wemnm
Hanfit flan {P‘E&Pi

] ntermcda' g

[C} Key Mnnngerlal Per
r‘!r PRI ) .o' X

Mr. Ardind Sethi

{d) Téansactions durkig the yasr vith célated patlesr

Parent entltiﬂs

Farticutars; Fellovi Sibsiifiaries.
tnteceston line of Credlt c 191 : -

] . . 11531358 Rt
Professfonal fedy IS 17
i 41861}
Rent T1zatli -
- — {ﬂﬂﬁdl .
tmployee Shareavards, N

i

Regiair and M

#

Mistellansnus fxpinses

836
1,081}

Fixod duposits ghicement.

) :(i‘.‘szs..:aq}:

Fixed depgsit redediph

Birectar sitiing fees.

Secirity depsit places

Amaunts in btatkets represints amount relating 1o Friious year;




2022 {Contd.y

37, Ralited paity transactions {As per nd AS 24} [Contd))

_ {Ei Qutstanding balances at the yearchd wltﬁ-rélal‘eﬂ'parﬁes

Ao T Uimate halding: || Subsidiary of
Hartitulars Parentestities | FaliowSubsidiaries | CKMP pegp, | "Miesmediste halding) T pany o Intermediat
-company i i e L
G . . -Lpldfng -
Bank balanice {in cutrent acconnt}
' ' ITMarzl - 7 - - - - -
31:Mar2i - 636 : . - - -
Sucurlly deposiis . T '
31-Mar-22 - 5,558 - - < -
g 31-Mar:21 A 4574 | + - v : -
Margi deposits: i - “ - : '
31-fMar-22 - - - - - .
. 31-Mar.21 - - . -] . 2,500 T I 5 -
Recrivable of account sdfe of olatarat securties
: ' S 31-Mar-22 N . - - - -} -
A1-Mars31 . B - | 7484 . v
|mwvestments ' o )
ALifydr22 N : - - - - 7857
. 31Mar-21 - - . - - -
Borrawings ) o ) )
: 31 Ntar22 1,620,000 E - - - - .
IL-Mar-21f. 1,620,000 @ s - o . -
Teade payatiles- ) ) ) ’
31-Mar-32 . 3234 - B ‘148 - -
41-Mar-21 : 3,630 . - :132 . _ 151 -
|Gratuity Fayable to the Trust i ’
o 31:Mai22 . ' - - 138 - - -
31-hfar-21 - - - 312 - - -




H3BC Investbirect Financial Services: (Indja) Limited
Notes to financlal statermants for'the year ended‘Marchi 31, 2022 (Contd.}

38 EOVIDAS

The Company is in the by
has.mgde:an. assessment of its lias

_a:i:b‘u_tj__t' all ‘the possib




HSHC fivestDirsct Finariial Servites (India) Lirsited )
Nut'e_s'ta'-ﬁhancia’li_é'ta_temems farthe yvear ended March31,-2022 [Cantd:}

.42 Comparisan betwein pigvisions required urider iRACP.and impsirment ailowances made under Ind AS 109

JAlkantountsimING thousarids, tnless. ctherige stited)

As st March31, 2622 . e
Asset Classification as per RBt Norms. Asset glassification.  [GrdssCariving. . |LossAlldivzntes Mat Cafrylng Jisionszequired | Oiffeiénce betwdan:
' asperlhd AS'100  [Amountaspeérind [{Provisionsias  {Amount ‘|asper IRACE nomiis {Ind:AS 109
AS required under Ind provistoris afd IRACP
N A5-109 . narms
1 2 3 4. 5234 3 F=4E.
Performing Assets. : ) : - i
P Stage 1 4,582,285 _B58 _BSATALT [ 339 {33473
: Stage2 - - . - ] -
Subtotal ' 8,582,285 ‘asg 8,581,427 . 34,3297 (33,471}
Non-Parfgrming Asstts
Sabstandard B Stage 3 - N . - N
Boubtful - up 1o Lyear Stapa3 - - - - .
1103 years: _IStage3 - A - v
Meore than:3 yearé. Stape 3 - - - - -
‘Isubtotal for doubtiut
Liss Stape 3 B - - - -
Sibtotal for NPA: - - - 5 -
Other dtems “stich a5’ guarastees, loadlgya g .
commitrnents, ete, which are i the scape of — : - - d =
Ind A% 109 but not coveréd uhdet curréntStage 7 B . . ) .
infame Recoprition, Asset Classifieation and - -
Proﬁsionfng_(lHACPJ ‘nOrms Staga3
J5ubtotal’ - - - - .
Stage ) B,5B2. 205, 858 . B5B1,427. ‘34,329: {33,474}
Tatal Stage 2 - - i - -
Stage 3 - - 4 - M 2
Total. 8,582,285 858 8,581,427 _ 34,329 133,473}
Asat March:31, 2021 y — L S -
Asset Classtfieationas par RBE Narms: asset tlassification.  |Grass Carrying - LossiAflowances NatCarrying Provisions required |Différence between.
as per Ingd-AS 1'0_3.' Aprount as per thd  [{Provisions) as Amgunt as per IRACEborts |Ind-AS109,
o BT ) rediifrad-under Ind - provisions and IRACE
A5 109 norms.
} 1 2 3 4 5=34" ] 7215
Porforming Assets’ . 3}
Standaid _5.13.312 1 :5,95?;6.53_ _5??' 5:357.05% (23,871 (23.‘_1?4}
. Stige 2 — = . . - - e
Subtotal 5,957,643 597 5,967,056 123,871 {23,274)
|Non-Berforming Assots N3
Suibstandard . Staged - N - N n
Doubtfll - up'te 1yedr Stage3d - - - - i
1103 yoars: Stage-3 - - I - .
Wore than 3 years Stape 3 - - - . i
15subtotal for-doubthl . '
‘HLoss Stoged - - - - R
ASubtotal for NPA . B - . -
Cther jiems such as Buarariees; toan|Staps 1 - - - B N
carmiitments, eie. whith and i the scopeiofStajie 2 - - - .
ind AS 109 but not covered under aureent|
Hncome Recognition, Asset---élas_'siﬁcat_lcn._an__d L
Provisianlag {IRACP), nariis Sge 3
J5ubtatal . . " T :
Stagal 5:967,653 EEpd 5,067,056 . 23,871 23,274)
Total Stage 2 - - - - T
Stage 3 - - - - .
Total ;5,957,653 597 5,967,056 23,871 (23274}
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16 Ratings assimmod.

<roifit tating apancies and migraticd pfratings dbring the-ysar: )

insf.rumnnl':ategnrjr

Marchag; 2022 s Mnrr.h a1, 1[!21

Sharierm ekt
Long term debt:
Shortterm dobt

TRC-ALY. . - INO A1+ -
1FE a&a/ Strhie - : IND-AJ\&!'-SHHE& -

Fitch Rating. 5%P Glghal Fitch Auting .'S&F:GIub'al |

CRISLALe - LCRISH: AL+

iﬁ'"Prw%sic:m -and Contingenzies

Particulars.
Brogh.up of P

s ond-Eontly clex ' shown under the hesit Staternent.of #roflt and Loss

Frnm!an sovirds NPA
Fru—.rm 01 Fey

l’rmrwan. !cr depre :iil.rm on investmant

je-fowardy’ Incoms tix

50 and Ca nitingensles fwlth-detalls)

P madse fnr_wn paicrnant af tademar ks arangrments
Prptiinn far Standard Assatz

Mzich 31, 2021

348

.03

March 31, 2021

73

{o6)

18 Dy Down frem Hesarves;
“Thare hag bagrng grave dowa from reseras dur{r',uthn surrentond previau year,

18 Concantration of Advances and Evpostras:

Fartiewlirs’

Cunu: ntration el Advances

Teivat Bdvancies 1o bt
% of Advanees:

iy {argast barraweis
tiy Borppeesk Barsawers o, Total Advances

Canedniration of Expoisures:
Total Expastfe to uenry largest Borfawiers f customnes

% af Expotiiras 1o twe

Ccn:entratlan ofNPAS

W largeat. bifrowdrs f cligtarrrs to Tatal Evpasure

Total E_kpasure totop folr NPA accoants

Marchal, 2082

63835

T13%

RIT00-
5B

March 31,2021
51543
L

FiGian
B

Paniculars

Seetor-wisis NPAZ {% of TIFAs { Toia) Adiancés In that seetor)

Agn:qhuw & allied azti

Adicto, arinlfand médiom en-erprﬁsn*

Corporate barowars’
Spriices

WUnzecitred persanal iouns

#uta feany
ither gersonal foans:
Dihers

‘March.31, 2022

March 31,2011 |




HEGC inventDivect Fhantial Servizes ftivdia) Lmited
Hotes to f_f_rl__sn:la_l_s_tn_l:muri.i_ far.the year cnded March 31,2021 [Contd,)

43 NSFC disclpsires {Cantinced).
22, Direloiuie of eunizoer fofnplaintys
Partitulars.

Ha & ramplaints pending at the eginning. af thz war
INe. ufmmplalnts :ecnaue:! du riug the yoar .

TheCompany hat a fustomer GHovanca Red {-Mizchanizm far Warce of customebs ke fl!xT_H;!. Ralr £

Latllities;
5 “Lojris and advances aiaiad by 1he ner Banklng finzdiat comganyind u:lv
{n} Dubnniuru Eﬁll-er Ihmfaiitng thie the mezdcidgaf
crEmtured o
Lt Unsn;ured

H3 Def’um}d Creedits.
(:) Term Luans
iprate tzany end Borroving.

14 Breah-up of Leansand’ Muan:estu:ludlng -] re:elvab!es Tathar thatt thiise ind ulimi sn 14] bclew]
’ {a) Sue

2
,’}'I] Qm_.zis .m; g‘{ iﬂvgs.tmcnlg_
»urrerl!menmanu )
o Sglisiegd

'ﬁ?.sbams; : {aj Enuity
Iy Prelermce

{iij ‘Deberiures a0d Birmds

- fifY Uit of Motial Funds:

" {iv} tovernment ‘ucurltlel

v dthere

I‘ Shares; “{8) Equity.

’ o voib) Preferenza
( 'l Eebenlum and Bords.

- Unir st Murst, Fundk -

{iv} Couarnmepd Sacuirdtias

'.lai Equity:
1] Frufe'rerz:e:
{1;} nnhanmms anﬁ Bpds,

Z Unuuott:.l ~

(;} :mmr {a} Eqmt‘ﬁ?
(b} Froloresze:
tiJ} {‘iel:er-turnz and B:)n:f( -

 Inghuday inydstmiehts in HEECTheostDifary Secuitias Hndif Fritate Ureiied o RY Sowhich b fully provides!




-NE:u’ej'lni‘ina'rir.f:il'.s'!,a_;e inntdfor the ye #ed March '31;='2ﬁ'ziii:§ﬁtl.i_.lg

43 NeFCssclosyred [CEntiniEd)

iAemzint /n R¥.erore}

’ (5t Borrovier grovpwise.clastification of 2l Leased Assels, Stock b Hire dnd Losns and AdvancesSda Hate 2 . .
' ' h T Waich 3,202 WMarctidl; 2023,
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1t6) investor. roupriée chassification of all Invastrients {current and lang term) fir shares inid siciirtiles {bath Gustid snd vaguatsd] (Plrase soi Nots 3 below:
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“Yatat 19.27 inay ey r1
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

To -tl"a_a__Membqrs__g__f HSBC IntvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Reporton audit of the Finaneidl Statements T
Pagé 2 of 4

In connection with oyt auditof the finarncial staterénts, dur responsibility is to rénd the other

information and, in doing so, ‘considér wlicther'tlie:other information s materiallyineonsistent.
with fhe'ﬁnqncial'-statéinéﬁts or cizur_:}ﬁ_lib_w]edge.obt'ajne._d in the audit or otherwise appears to be-
materially misstated. If; based on the work. we have performed, we conclude that there is a-
matérial mhisstatement of this other information, we are requiredto report that fact. '

kS

‘We have nothing to report in this regéred.

Responsibilities of managemenit and those charged with.governance for e financial
statements '

5. The Company's Board of Diréctors is resporisible for the matlets stated in section 134{5) of the
Act with Tespect to the preparation ofthese financial statements that give a.frueand fair vigw of
the findricial position, financial performance, changes in equity -and cash flows of the Company
in avcordance with the: accounting principles génevally aceepted in India, includinig the
_Accounting Standards specified under section 193 of the Act. Thistesponsibility also ineludes
matntenance of adequate accounting records in aceordance with the provisions: of the Act for.
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for pres ntin ecting -' ;

irragilarities; selection and application’of ‘appropriate aceounting

_ > policies; making judgmients
and estimates that are reasonablé and prudent;and design, ihplementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively-for ensuring the ascuracy
and completeness-of the geeounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
thefinancial statements that give a-true and fiirview and arve figé from.meterial misstatement,
whether due to fraiid or etros. '

6. It preparingthe ﬁnajrmial-.sfc_'ate_ments; management {s respoansible for 'a's‘sé"s’sing-_-'thez'c_ampany's

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
eoncern-and using the going coricérn basis. of Accodiiting unless management githet intends to
Tiquidate the Gompany. of to cease operations, or has no tealistie alternative but to do su. Those
Board of Directors are also responsible for ovérséeing’ the . Company’s financial reporting.
process.

Auditor’s -re‘spdhsibiliﬁes-foi_' the wudit of thie finaneial staj;;:"m'ents-:

7, Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance: ahout whether the financial statémerits as &
‘whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror, and to' issue an
auditor’s repoit thatineludes our opinion. Reasonablé assurance is.a high level-of assurafice,

but is not'a guarantee-that an audit conduicted il aceordance with SAS will always detect a
malerial misstatement vrhen: it exists. Misstatements cin arise from fraud or errer and are
considered materidl §f, individually or in:the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

infliveiice the eponomic decisions of.nsers tak__en.qn..the_basis-..bf'thesta'finan'ci’al- statements;
8. Aspart of an andit in accordance with SAS, we exerci"s_e.-_prafés_sionaI"-ju'dg'rnf__:nf and mainfain
professional sceptieism throughoutthe dudit. We also: '

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemant of the financial statements,
whethet Aue to.fraud or-error, design and perform audit proeedures risponsive te those
visks, and obtain audit evidence that ¢ sufficent ziid appiopriate to provide a basis for-
our opinion. The risk of not detecting d Tizaterial- misstatement resulting from fraud-is
higher than for one resulting from- error, as fraud ‘may invelve coliusion, forgery,.
‘intentional omissions, ‘mistepresentations, or the-override of {nternal contrel.






Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountarts LLP

To t'_l_lgl\iember_s.of:.HS_'B:C TnvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Report 6n audit'afthe Financial Statéments.
Page4of 4

fe) Oh_thé basis of the written .repr'senf'é;ﬁi_QHS'.-fecei;i'f_i_eﬂ from thg:-_d:i_fcc?ct;__rs.as cn Ma't;ch 31
2021 takei on recaid by the Board of Directors, none; ofthe directors is-disqualified as on
Mareh 31; 2051 from being appointed as a director in‘terms of Section 164 {2) ofthe Act,

(f) ‘With respect to the adequacy of thre internal financial contrals with reference to financial
statements:of the Company-and the opersting effactiveness of such conirols, réfer to ouv
_separateReportin “Annexure:A’,

{g) With respect to-the other matters to be included in the Auditar’s Reportin acgordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in ofi¥.opinien and to
the best:of our information and according toithe explanations given to us:

i, The Comparny doesnot have any petding litigations which-would impact its financial
_poaitibri . )

fi. The Cotnpany has made provision, -as required under the dpplicable law or
-accounting standards, for material foreseeable losaes, if-any, on long-term contracts
— Refer Note 5.and 36+ to the financial statements. The Conipany did not have any
derivative contracts, ' '

iif. There were 1o amotints: which Were ‘required ta be transferred to:the Investor
Education and: Protection Fund by the Conipany during the year ended March 31,
2021 '

iv. The reporting on.disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes'is not-applicable to
the Company for the year ended Mareli:31, 2021.

13. Duringtheyear ejnded March 31, 2021the Company has not paid/provideéd any managerial
remuneration under the; provisions of Section. 197 read with: Schieduls V to the Act,
accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16} of the:Act isnot applicableto:the Company.

Far Price Waterhouse: Chartered Accountants LIP
Tirm Registration Numbet: 012754N/N500016
RUSSELL VAN ;SR o '
PARERA - G
Russell LParera
Partmer .
Membérship Number: og2100

UDIN: 21042190AAAACY1851

Mumbai
June 28, 2091






Price Waterhouse Chattered Accountants LLP

Aniiexure A to Indepéndent Auditors’ Report _

Reférred to in-patagraph 12() of the Independent:Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
HSBC InvestDireet Financial Services (India) Limited on the finarcial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2021 o : '

Meéaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6: A company's.internal financial controly with' referencé to {finaneial statéments:is a process
designedito provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting.and the
preparation-of financial statements for external purposes'in accordance with: generally accepted
accounting principles, A: company’s internal finaneial controls with. reference to fnancial
statements includes those:policies and procetiires that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faifly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasoniable assurance thiat transactions are vecorded as
necessary:to perinit preparation of financial statements it accordanee with gererally acoepted
aceounting principles, and-that réceipts and expénditures of the company are:bieing made only
in accordance with-diithorisations of inanagementand divectors of the company; and {3) provide
reascmiable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthiorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of ‘the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements,

Inlicrent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with réference to finaneial
statements

= Becduse of the.inherent lmitations. of internal financial controls with reference to finaneial
‘statemients, incliding the possibility of collusion;or-improper mana gement override-of controls;
.material misstatements.due to error or fiaud may oceur and not b detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with. reference to financial statements to future:
‘periods are stibject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statenterits may becgme inadequate because of changes. in eonditions, or that the degree of
-compliance-with the policies or procedures niay deteriorate..

‘Opinich

8. In-pur opinion, the Cempany has, inall material respects, an adequate internal financial controls:
" spstern with reference to financial statements and suchinternal financial contrals with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at Marcli 31; 2021 , based-on the internal
‘eontrol over financidl reporting criteria establishied by the Company considering the:essentidl
components of internal control statéd in the Guidanice: Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reportinig issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Tor Price Waterhouse Chaitered Aceountants LLP
 Firri Registration Numbér: 018754N/N500016
RUSSELL  soimivimeds
IVAN PARERASIeTn et
Hussell ' Parera
Partier
Membeeship Number; 042190

UDIN: 21042190 AAAACY1851:

Miumbai
June 28; 2021






Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Ammexure B o Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragra,

h i1 of the Tndependent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of

HSBC InvestDirert Financial Services (Indid) Limited on the financial statements as of andfar the
veatrendéd March 34, 2021 o S

X

xi.

The Caimpaiiy has tiot raised any -_m'on'gys-b'y xi'ay-off'in'iﬁal' public offer; further public offer
(iicluding debt instruments) and term loans, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of
thie Order are notapplicableto the Company. ' o

During the-course of our éxamination of thie bogks.and records of the Company; carried out
in necordance with the generally aceepted auditing practicesin India; and according to the
information. and explanations given to us, we:have: heiftier comeé agross.any instarice:of
material fraud by the Company or-on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year; nor have wwe beerr informed of any such case by the Management:

During the vear ended March 31, 2023, the Company has not pdid/ provided for any
managerial yemuneration under the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the

Act.. Accordingly, the' provisions of Clause 3(%i} of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Also refer paragraphi 13 of our ‘mdin-gudit report.

s the Company is not a Nidhi-Company and the Nidhi Ru.i:l_es_,_;z_m_ct,afe not-applicable to it,
the provisions:of Clasise 3(xif) of the Order are not applicableto the Company,

The Company has ‘entered into transactions with related partes in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177.and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transacHions have

‘been disclosed in the financial statemetits as required under Indiin Aecounting Standad

{Ind-AS) 24_,-Ré1éted Paity Disclosures:specified under Seciton 133 of the Act.

The Company has not-made any preferential allotmierit of pz“_i_vate-gpia_r_:em‘ent of shares or
fully-of partly convertible debentures during the year; Accordingly, the provisions of Clatse
3{xiv) of the Order-are ngtapplicable to the Company,

The Company hias not entered into aty non.cash transactions wifh_:’ita di'_re'ct_drs ar persons
connectéd: with them, Actordingly, .the provisions of Clause 3{xv} of the Order are not
applicable'to the Conmpany. '

The:Company is requived to;.and las Been registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve
Bank of Tridia Act; 1934 as a Non-Barking Financial Institution:

For Price Waterhouse Chiartered.Accountants LLP

Fien Registration Nugriber:. 012754N/N500016

Chartered Accountants
RUSSELL IVAN ;S iape et
L

" PARERA

0 JHESTRIEE
HCERY

Russell TPdrerad

‘Parther

Membership Number: 042190

UDIN: 21042190AAAACY 1851

Mumbei
June 28, 2081
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Balanice sheet as-at March 31, 2021
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HSBC InvestDiract Finaneial Services {India] Limféd
Statapient of Profitant:Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

_ (Al amounts i INR thousanids, unlass dthervise stated).
Paiticulars Note Mar 31,2021 | MarEl, 2020
Revenue from aparations, ' '
Infdrestincome 22{a) 460,329 bE8,6T5 |-

: Raversaiof mpairment-on f’nanc]al mstruments | 26 5 28,384
Nat'galn o falr vilid ehanges 1 z2th). ¢ 30487 . - 5336
Totalrevenue from opérations 890,521 F23;895 |.
Otherincome. 23 4] 28T
Total income i 480,529 | 748,176
Expenses: )

Einance costs 24 160,908 255,719
Employee benefits exfenses. s 40,243 140,554,
Dg pracidtion-and. amortlsation 9 &10 1,512 1,764
Others expensis 27 481546 1 51,204
Totai gxpansas: 251,709 ‘389,331 |
frofit before tay 238;8201 358,845
Ificamietak expense: |
: Curent tax 28 60,356 85,693
- Deferred tax; 28 350 9:624
Total tax expénsia “60,746 95,337
profitfortheyear . A7 ‘263528 |
1Dther comprehensive lacame.’ ) ]
iy’ iitams that will iot Besaclassifled to profitor 1oss
- Remaéasurements.of post-employment benefnt cbligatlons 30 414, {782

{- Changes In the- Fatr valué.of eguity Invaitments st FyOCi * - - -

_ {104) 197
fi}. core tax relating to,jtems that will nat be reclassified to profit-oripss . .

‘[Gther camprehensive profit/{loss) for the year . 31¢0. |585)
Total tompréhenslve Tncome far the'year 178,384 262,943

|E8rnings perequity share (Nominal value of 8s. 10°pér share)
- Baic and Diluted {Rs.) 1.22 180

=thare |¢nodeferrad tax impact o thiese fair value changes

The.above statementaf profitand 1985 shoild-he read in cohjunction with the ecompanying notas,

Thi'is the'State ma_'n'_t_nf:?mﬁtaﬁd ;dss_.referred"m. imour reportof even-daya.

ForPRICE WATERHOUSE CHARTERED: ACCOUNTANTS e
Firm Registration Nb: DlZ?S#NlNSﬂOﬁlE

JCCEL[. . Uigitallysigned by
RUSS E.LL USSELL IVAN
VAN ARERA
S Diteiz021.06.28
‘PARERA."  7103seos30
‘Russell | Parera,
Pirtner

" Mambership No: 042190
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Jung 28; 2621
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HSDC lavestDirect Findngial Servl:es [lndin) Limited
Staterent of cash flows for the § lﬂ:ar eided’ Mar:tl 31,2621

1AH 3maunts in IMA thousands, inless cthenviise stated),

Parv.lculm Note- tarchial, 2021 Wiarch3, 2020
CRSH FLOW FRDM OFERATING: ACTIVITIES § ) :
Profitbefors tax: 236,820 358,845
Adjusimants
Depreciation.and amerifsstion Fe10 1212 1,764
imgairmenton financiel instruments 26 ) tzs,as-s]
e deerued i debt securitiés o iy 3,744
“Inirest Indoie on bank dopdisis 23} {iiee3) 123,574}
Unreatlnd gt om mitituatfunt LAY 14,543}
Realized: gain on ititgial fund {30,454 12;293)
interastcn ineome tax refund: 23 : {23.723)]
Dperatin profit before: = WOrng capitat changes 188,2401" A02B35
Ad]ustmante forwordng capital changes;, ' ]
Leafis ‘ ’ s, 52,8435 1,275.363
Baik balance nther thian pash ond £ash equivatent. 3 |555) "{166}
Gther finantial asgets, 7 140,005 {150,156}
Property; plantand equipment -9 {2,787} -
Intangthle asseis under stevelopment 16 - [3.400)
Gther hary:finangiat asseks 11 a7 {1,525
at|ustmenis for Incregsef {decreasa) In pperating labllites: ) o
Trade paynbles 12 1,096 2664
Olher fmancial lishifities 15 B814. s}
Provisions o 17 {1,285} {2}
Othr np flabilities 19 b0 . s1
Céshi penerated fromy ppcrations 194,429 1,132,753
Less - Jicome takos paid-{net of refunds). {63,875) -{agig2h)
ret£ash-infipw / foutDow} froim dperating actlvitles: 323794 1,406,160
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES .
acement of Mgt deposit with bank (231,500} 13,914,950)
Praceeds from-ined deposlt; wrt_h bank 90,000 1915400
Intirest ingome.on bank deposiis - 22a). 21,683 " 9%574
vitchite of xadassels 8. {2,787 -
{nvestenent In mutual fond {3 338,504 {4,301,500)

‘Hodeniption initigs) fund 4,738,088 2,598,565
Nat.cash It owi/ (Butflow] from investing actlvitles 1,275,881 {La45, 001
CASH FLOW FROMIFINANCING ACTIVITIES T ]

Pracaeds from borrowings . -40;302,450 -
Repayrientol batrewings: - (10,169,858}
Proceeids fram tssie of debt seeurities 1183025 | 10,261,295
Reépairunt of delit sopurlfies - {3,155.0011 {9:785.237}
Net cushinfes £ (edtflow) fram Ananiing actidhiles - {5;8793,066] 488,662
NET IRCREASE/{DECTEAGE} IN GASH AND BANK BALANCES {373,390 456,802
_Add 1 tosh ond cash equivalénts ot eginning af tha yiar. 344,019 1112,784)
Jcash avd cush equivalonts-at.end of the yidar TEEEAN] 344,019
fieegnicliat on Bf cash-and cash equivalentsasper- thie ¢ashy Nlow statement
_Cash-and gath cguwmentﬁ as ger above domprise. ofthe follovibg
Arat ’ t-
Portiis: March 31, 2071 Mareti 33, 2020:
Cash and cash ggulvalents: 3 TAT6 344,019
Bankausrdrafts 18 (30,547)
{Batancas as-pér'statn’ih'!hf of cash flows - {29a71)] 344,018
Note:
t} Amount: :pent In cash towrards. Corpotate Socidl Responsiliity 15 INR 5,466 (March-2020:5, 455)
i Netdrbt: re:aﬂcilmnun
“Thits spetion sols it an anglysiced net dakt and the mgvamonts in net dnbt for each of tmwld. .

. Ay at Asat
particolis _ . :March 31, 2021 ‘Margiiat, 2070° |
Cashand cash eglivalents, bank everdrafts {28.371) 344, ms
Ligtiid investments 116,080 1,478,475
Debtsecurities- commerdial paper (24?,&3!3} (2,220, 322)
Harrowings ~jorng fram. refated parties 11,620, 000} {1,620,000)
thdeu: [1,786,730) {2,017,923)]

iofwith 1he F

“This above statemant ofeash figws sHould:be Fead-in ¢

Theaboye statement.of cash floves hos bedp pmpaled updey the Indimn‘t methnd n:.et autin

- Thigig the statement of cash lows: referred to)n puy répart of uvnn date

far FRICE WATERHGUSE CHARTE RED ACCOQUNTANTS LLP
Firm Registietion Noi (32750 wnsuoma

. Dightatly sigred by
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HEBE InvestDirect Fingnclal Services {indlaf Umited
Hotesto financiat tatements for the year ended March a1, 2523 [contdi)

The assets resldinlvalues dng tseful vds nre_mviu\-ved, and adjusied il appropriate,at the end of each reporting periad;

Ao asset’s carryirig amount 16 writteh down immedintaly o fissdeaverable amaiint iftie s3set’s catying aptaunt is greatar thar its estimated sécoversgle amsbit

Galns and Vosses-gn dispoants are detariined by.Eompining broteeds with risrying amatint. These are widhded in préfit or foss within'other wainsfilosted).

Iv) . Intingible. Assats
Intangikle Asselg are stated.st acquisition-cost, siat of accumulatec‘ amoization snd accumulated: iiripairment lassgs; i any: Enranglbh.- assots ara amortlsed an’
ayel 'lented s elu} fiips. The amartisation pared and the amontlsation.method arestaviewed at Jeast st edch. finsnctal yeor e;gd, if the ipectad u&eful life of':ﬁu asuet is
sipnificantly differnit from pravious estimatis, the arnortlsntien petiodis changed ac:crdirgiv’

Gains orfasses arising-from the'rétire ment of Hispasal of Intingitle’asséts are detefimied.ns shidiffecdnce between the net.dizposal proceeds and the carmying amed nt-of the passt -
and resggnised as income or-saperse in the Statement of Profit and Lass. ’

Amortisation methods.and periads
Thg compspy imartises mtang.hf = assets Using the strnizht-.:m: methad aver the folliwing pericds:

Catigoryaf assets tisaful lves followed by company -
T s - _tyears) i
Campiter Saftvares: . . 3 yégrs or ficenselife -

v).Investments Liathar nancial ssiete
'(a]'l:lasslflcatln.n _
Th nmpun‘,‘ glasstios Its{manc.sf atsets in the following meistiremant patdgorles;
1, rhase to rmoazirad sithiegimhlly at fairvalue {ehhar throuph other comperefiensive ifcorhe, ar thraugh profivor (osa), and
N thus:tu be mn:su;«.d at nmumsnd :usL

‘it either be Teearded:in profit of-fass ar ather comgre hensTve. incarme; Faf: investments b equity nétrumients,
o} zl the time-ef Thitlat recngmtmn to ir.ccun':for the eqnlwlnvewncnt ] {alnra!ue Yhraugh'athar sampre

thizwl|| dépend o
nelve iicame.

Far assets measired at fair yalie, gaing and fosee
whather the G v hogmade an |

=

Fur tnveitments in debt instramments, this wilk depe ridion tha classification of debt instruments depenting an:
pabiy’s E;urznr.ii madcl for-maneging the sstet) and
{iirthe casK Mo ciars e iof thc asiet {Salely paym ety of prm:ipal snd interest].

‘Tha.Campany datrrmines its business model at. the level that bost: refl hn\; it maAages groups of & al’ | aEsats to nnhle\r:: itz husingss ghjéctive.

The Cr‘mp.'.m,r ' husiniess moded iz.not as:cs::r.{anan instru mem-by instru ment basts, butata Hi jhar [pvat of npgregated partialios and iy fased on pbservable fackars 5wch as:
w Rkt the nsset’e perfaringnce and the business model s evaluated and reported 1o kay marﬂgemen’ 'ermnnci

o the-tigks thai aftect the perfarmignee af tha busmcss model znd hew thede risks arg sssesied and rnanasezi

* ok ma-‘agers Are cnmpenn!:d‘

As o.zecond step oll i classification. protess {he Company assésses the tonimictial termy af flna[}l:lal instrumeni-ta u:fnntify wheihar they mest, tha SRR L&t where the
madl:l it hold assets b collecy eontrackuat cash fovsier to :ollnct gentractial’ czsh ftnw: and zall, & ¥ the financial instruments cash fiows rzpmsem
yments’ of pdn:rpnl 2nd Iaterert {the "509; test') Jn.making this nssessmen hr.ther the ccntractua! wash fovis are cansi:tunt wlth a hnsm Ienﬁlng
[udas onl consideratien far:the time valus:of maney, erardl, rlsk th bn
tragtual | Lérms Ttrodute exgd sure 1o riak arvelatiiby: that 2re inconsisient with a-Ha%le Jending Irdangemient,

& :&Eated {manclal asset s :Iassmed nmi'.

The Chrtipatiy recleisties debt itvestme nts-when and onlj when itf bslhest mode} fer-mafiaging those assets changes.

(b Ricognition . o
Reguiar way of BUrchssk and gales of fdandal aisdtsare. rccugnised o tratie date the date on-which the Campany.tamirits purchiase or sale ot fidanclal asset,

(:} BAcazurament )
it inttizl recagnition, the Company measuresa francisl ﬂ..set at ts Fifr value. plag: iy thid case of 2 firancial astat ot ot fiir volie thraugh profi 13, transagtlon €osts-that afe
diretiyattribitable to lhe avquisition of the financiat asskE, Transactinn énats af financlabatsets -:nrr‘ed 2t Tair valie-through profic or fass are enpensed in prn!n or lass,

Flaencial assets:

Debt Instruments:

Subequint maasdrement of dabt instruments. depends o The ¢ol
ieasy ement categuriesmta whieh the tompany.classilies & dakt

peny's-business madel for'mshaging the aserand the cash flovy characterfstics 'of the nesét. Therd are three

PIMERLSE

-Aimortised cagh Azsetatha ‘arw:hicld for tollection of: mntm:tu;l eash flows w‘nere thase. cash fluws TE "sept selely. payimeiits.al” prlncipal znd iterast are: messived atameitizad
-eosl, Mterastineanye framy thiese { financial nssets it Intiuded in fingrice income g the a¥fciive 1nterest rate-meths Ing-on derecoanhlnn i recognised dirzetly
in profit or loss and ;ruscnted in u!h:r galns!llosses] Impairmisn a:ves are presented a5 separatefineitem in tie stateiment n[ profit and lasé.

Pugh: other toifiprehiensive inceme [FVOC]] “Asgets that are held for tellection dl. caftractuali :a:h fiows orfoe-selling the. fingnclal sgsets, whene thi.asiets” 3
if ofinctpal and Interest, ace measured at BVOCS l‘a‘uvernl!m the :arr\fir'g a'rn ‘are vaken through: o, cxcep: for the reconnadn &l 1o, )
u Iaz:::;, {niemn inceme g foreigm axchansc gains. apd Jasses which. are recusnised in prafit and \'-l'hnn the finaaclal ansel 17 idrd; the- cumulative g:nn or foss
prevmu;lv resognised in BLI is rec!as:uﬂud fromeduity 1& profit-or loss ‘and I‘Eccgnl‘ed in uther gaing/llskesh 5t intume front these ﬂnandnl as:.:ts 15 nelgled in other [ncome,
.nffnctive interest rata mathod, Fofesgn-exchange galns. and 1o.ses are presented in-other. smnfﬂlnsses} and tnpifrinent experises are fedgfted vy Ftparate lina.fam in
ant 51 profivand fose.

Fale vl

Fairvalue thraugh profit ¢ o lzigs- [FYTPLY; Assetx that do not-meet:the criteria for arnertised tost S BVEL are-migisured at fair value: thruugh prniil ar qus\ h g' ot fzs in 4 debt
investmiene that i subsié maasurzd il valie thioigh. profit or foss 4 recogolsed In-prafiv of [ and prnsen‘:!dnu: iﬂi'lhm ‘attinr gajns/{iaseai) ‘inshe period fn whick it arises.
intersstincome-brany the;e imanmal BasRs IS 1nclu ded inppfit and jass,
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HSBE lhvestOiract Finanﬂai Senvices (indfal Umited
Notes to finanéial statements.{or the ygar ended Mzzth 31, 2021 [Contd.)

{1 oefined beriefit plains {Gratlilty}
I ) re:cgmsed'in the bialanceshest in rospect af del\ped banelit gratuityplans istha‘present value of 1tie defined bepetitabligation’ akihie sad 6Fthe-raparting perisd
lass the Fair, w!ue of plan astats. The dafined benefit ol ails caltulated annualiv by adi fies using. the projocted unit’ ‘credit method.

The preséntvalue of the defined benafi bhilgativn #gnopfina c
the repotting petiod on government bonds that havetenms app(aximming to lhe tardy ufihe relate anIgu o,
The-netinterest sostis cal:u[ateu'hv applying the discount rate to. thenat Balanes of the defined benslic abligation-and tha tair value bf plen susets. This cast ls incllided in empliyee
beadfit gtpenst i the Staternent of Prafit and 1118

ateichfutiire cash cuiows By refeience:to markes yistds ot the end gf

Remepzurercent gainsiand lagses aridnig from exparience. adiiaments and chnnse: in-actuarial’ assumptlans ate recoprised [n-the periad i which they sedir, difactly I ather
cofprahiendvaintoms. They ard inctuded in retaingd edmings n the statement | of :hanﬁus in‘equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes [n thispresentvalde of the definsd bennfitob iZation resuling fram plagamendments.ar curmiments are rectigrlsed [mmediately bn prafitor Juss aspastepncecost.

12} Provident fupd

The Company favs proeldeht fund-contributions: to putlicly admintstarad provident fends-as: per fogol regyfationd, The; Company ‘has nn further- paymunl GbflEarions :ance the'
eontbitions hove besn il The €ontribiiutions ang aceounted for o dal‘ned contribution pians.and the contributions are racog) lbpd as employes benofitekpenss when, they aredue.
{€) gy ) o N o

The.Cmpany fecagnisds 3 pintlaih whire {t1¥ contrat Jully oligadorwhers there is.3.7an practice that has credled 5 ennutructive obllgation

ull) liicosie Tax:
Trie fcomé tak experse far the pardd is the vax fiayibieian the current perld’s takable incima ' based on tha-applicable income tax rate: 1ar gach-Jurisdictian adiisit by chingesin
deferred tax assets and lisbiites atributeble to lernparany différences and to unused tax Iams,

The cderant income 12X charge is ::h:uiatzd on the basis of the tai l.‘aws epacted o sybstantively enaeted at the end bf the' (rpoiting: perfgd in the sauntries where the company
nparams and genesafes taxabla.incorme. 4 i perodically evaluates posith - takes in tax lurn_ with-regpact te: shuuuuns in whlch apphcab'e ax reglfation I :ub,ecr 1

-inlerprctahan It establishespravisionswhere'd pprepriate an.the basis ol amaunts expocted torbe paid to'thi tuk au:hnrl'les.

{:ificeme tax Iz providedin, T, using:the Hablhivy- thathod: on- tenigargry diFe Fefites: arising hatween thie fax bases. of adiats 1ird Habifities and thelr carrylngemounis {nithe
Fteiments, Howvir, deferred tox Tabdlitios are not. recogisad if they arlse. from tha, irfitiat rncngnniun L} guadm: Déferred intome £0% is.alsp fiot a:cnunted for if it arises
froim iniflalrecagnition vatan sssetir linbilingdnia transal:tmn other tharea business tombination that.at the time. ot the: transsetion, a[fecis ithier: 7 grafit:ar mable prefit
frax Jossi: Defwrmd Tncarie tax I determined using tak mater fand laiwe] that huve Been | nr subetantiall icted by the xendof ttie rapartiig pericd andare; -enpeéisd e’ apply
whenherelied deferied incame 13 assetis :cnﬂsad ot ‘the. daferred. ingerme tax liablltiv 1ssettled

Delerrid g nstets afe ricognlsed forall deductibls femporery differencesand unused tax {nase oply if itis-probiable’that futire tixatie amaims wilt be avaliable b Ui those
temparary differendes and lostes, ' ’ ' .

Dufarreid tix.azsers and labllitles dre offset when there.isa legaliy enforceable. Aight ta affset curfent Ty Besets Fnd Hpkifiles ond when the defefied tak Baldntex relate 1o the seme
taaEan:autherisy. Cyrrent i assats and fux J]abilnh:s groffsob where th: &ntityhasa Ingally salapenshle pght toroffset and intands. elther to senfeons et basis, ar m redliss the
stcet ond setrle the Hablity smuftaneodily.

Earréntand deterred tadcreeognised in profit o7 s, except 1o the.axient Yhatidtralates to-iterns recaghised In ather camprahensivs income of ditectly In equiby; irv €518 zase) the tax
{salsa ;g:agn!sed in uthermmp'e _'nslwzm:umn of d:re:iiy in eqmtv, respectively;

wlily Cash and cash chulvalents:
‘Far-tho puegase al| presentnﬁan Inthe Stotement-of cash fisivs, caskand €azh aqilvalents: In:ludai cash an-Fend, doposits heid at callwith- fifancial. Institatiding, ether ghibrt-term,
Highty 1 iiquid investments viith-original. friaturities af three -manthsor s thatare’ reaidily sonvertible ta knavin amoums of cash and wikich are subjast to aninsgnificant sk of changes
I yabu; §k h.mi: avordrafts. Bank oyerdrafts are:showi \ithin boftevingsTn finaricial abiTities i the buiahie sheet.

15} Sgiectat e

riettinn 45-1C of bt RBI Act, | 1934, the Company reaies a reseive Tupd dnd transfecs therein 3 sufi fot [res thin tusnty percent of its net profit Getore any dividind
iz d:l:!zred By iy vedr endl, _=m_d L;_d;s_l:!as_:c! in the nz_h_er equity,

%) Provisiangand Gantingent Uahilivies:

‘Provisigns o . )
Pravislons are. recogrised when' the Company hasd prasent legal-er constrictive ohllgation &5 & resuic of paitevents, iths prababie that an outflow of resaurces will ba raguired ta:

settle the obtigation and the impyit tan ke relialili es'r.l mated. Frovizions are not recognised foir fufun GPEFath'IDSSES-

Whedts thereare o nurnber of similir obfgattons, th.- likailhaod thet b autiiow will. be ruqulmd in s::t{lemmt determined byconsiderinz the r.lass of ohligations as 2. who1e,
- provisian i vognized evén if thie Ikelihond of an cuﬂinw Viith gespect to'any ang emincluded in the ssme cluss.of skligatio s may |
‘Previsigng are rnu:lsur::d at:vhe grosedt velus. of manasement’« bRsk cérimate of the éxpenditure reguired'to setite the present ubilgation®at the: endof the. mpurﬂng peri
dlscuun até used to dererming. thie present value is-a pre-tax mte that- reflacts carrant market ssseseme e of the ﬂme valug:af money and the risks spexlfic to she. Tiabikty; The

T

incredse In e pra ___duetuthc ssage il time J fetog ‘as]ntere:t P

Cnntinzent Lialiities .
fiablities are dlrciotad when there s o pns'lbru otligetion arksive from past £6€nts, ggtnnie afwhish will be candirmed only by the.occureente grhdn-oteurrence of

are gicertaln future evirity not whlly within the control: of the Compgany: & presenf o _gntion thatarises rgm past events whete ftis’ sither not-probatie that an dutfiow of
-rcsaurcﬂ; will be reqmreﬂ o settieor reliehiie: ﬂrnate uf the. smount-cannot e mads, is fermed and disclosé as contirgentliabi ity
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HsBe :mst '_r_u: Flnantiat Services [lodiz) iimited
Nnte: tn linnu:iul statements for the year. ended March 31,2021 {Contd.}

-xvil) Rounding of Imounts o )
Al amaunts dizclosed in thie financizistiteniants and notés have baen rounded u'_ﬁ-;_q:_lh_e_'_n_earestﬂmus:‘mu‘s-a‘_s'pe_rthg requitement of Schedile-l; unless atherwise stated,

26-£ritlcat estimates.and ]uﬁgem ents

The praparition‘sl frianciat statements-rrquires tha use-al 2ecounting. estimates which, Ry defintiion, suill zeldom-equs) the st rigidles. fanigement alsh needs to exercise

]uugumt.-rn 1r~app!vin5 the Commpany's a::uuntlng_, alicies.

This rote.pravidas-an averview of the-araas tha mve!ved # higher degree of judament ar complerity, and'of tems which are moze likaly te-ba.
and ageumiplicns toming out to'ba differenat thin thase originally-asessed, Detailed nformatien about: aach:_ th 5='estimate, any; }uﬁgemenu_
-m&h Infareiation shgut the bais of calciatiop for gath affected line iteminthe financial statements..

Tne ataas lnvnlvlng :rTnmI estimates of ]udgemeuis are:

of Curksit kax expenseand current b “paysble

< Est matiun nideﬁned bene bl‘gntiun

-Re:.ognimn of daferred tak 3ssets for dairied forivard loy Iosses

~Estimatlarof expe ched credit tossss

ér‘t_;l]ly-adfq_.&tad deeto ustima_tes
iglisedid in rglavant notes together




HSBC InvestDlrget Finid
Notes tofinancidl stateme

3 Cashanid cash equlvalents:: ..

| Fartleulars,

: B'_iilahf:és-'.\'ith'b'a'nksf Cui
Deposifs-with: matirity less than
ot T




HSBE investDirect-Financia) Services' {lnd]a) limited

Notes to financial statérments for the.year endad March 31; 2021 tContd ]

6 Ipvastments:

{All-atourits i (NR thoussnds, unless.othenyise statad)

particulars AFairvalue t_hraug_h profit | Fairvahie thraugh ‘éther Total
o & lass comprehensweincome E

As at March 31, 2020 o
Nutual Fund 1,478;379 [ - 1,478,479
{-HSBC InvestDirect Securities {India) Private Limited - - -
Total fA) - Gross 1,478,479 s 1A7847%:
_l'n_\fest_meni;_sbutéide india - -
|investments in india’ o L7847 . . = | 1,478,490
Tofal (8] - Gross | 1,4781479 . L 1,478:479.
TTotal - Gross 1,478,479 - 1,478,479;
{iess}: impalrment lbss alicwante () - - -
Total (D)= Net ' ) . 1478479 . . .. < | LA478479
As at March 31, 2021 o : :
Mutual Fund: 110,080 - 110,030
HS8C investDirect Secirities {India) Private {Imited* - - | -
Total {A) -Gioss ' ' ' 110,680 ¢ T . 110,080,
Ihvestments-outside india - - -
Investinerits In Indla 110,080° = {... 110,080
Totsl {B)- Grass. 110,080 | _ -l 110,080
Total - Gross. 110,080 - 110,080
{Less} impairmint Joss allowance [C) - o=} -
Total [D] - Net 110,080, . e 110,086

* The Comiprany has maasired its. Investmantin HSBCInvestDirect Securities {India) Private Limited at-fair valug through-other
comprehensive income, since the Lompany is no longer an assaciate company as: par IND AS 28. The falevélue of thisinvestment,

on Inftial récognition s estimatet at- -Nil-amount.




westBiréct Financlal Services (india) Limited
Notes'to financial statemients for the yéar énded March

7 Otherfinantlal asséts:. -

Particulars

Securiwdepots S
© |Margin deposits.
cosldegosic

. | Dispasalsand trarsfers
B o

_ Blspusa!s and transfer
Jefosing aecumutate
Rt earaing




-Hs8L trvestDirect Flnandial Sarvicas inia) Liimist
fates:to Brancial statemeritsfor the year ended March 31 2021 [Cont .}

10

1t

Intangihle assets.

{AII amountsin:INR theiisinds, unless otheriwvisé stated]

P_articular's-

Computer softwares

‘|Grass carrying amadnt

Opening gross-carrying:amount
Additions
Disposals and transfars.

1,233

|€losing gross carrying amount-

Accumbiatet amortisation
Opening accumulaied amortisation
Amartisation during: the pe‘rin'd
Dispoinls and transters

1,233,

g8
251

Closing accumulated'a mortisation

Net carrying amount as-at March 31, 2020

1333

_Gp__emng _[;rpss ca_rrvmg,ammjht-
Additions
Dispasalsand transfers.

1,233

Closing gross carrying ariount

1,238

Accumulated amortlsatlun
Opening. accumutated amertisation

|amortisation dusing the period

Disiansals snd translers.

1,235

Closing accumillated amortisation

1,233

et carryingamount as at:Mar31, 2022

Iritangible assets -un_'d er development’

Grass careying amount
Qpening gross carryingamount
Additiens:

Dispasals and transters

3,400

tiosing gross carrying: amaunt a5 at March 31, 2020

3.400:

Gross carrying amaunt
Gpentig geoss carrying amount
Adiitions o
Disposals andtransfers’

3,400°

Closing pross carrying-amount as st March 31,2021

3,400 |

other non-financial assets

Particalars

Asat
Warth 31,2028

Asat

March 31; ZDi_D

Prepayments.

- 3,452

3,829 |

TBtal.

- 3as2]

. 3,829




HsBCAAvestDireet Fin
Notas to financial statemerits |

12. Trade fayables

[paiticitars

- Total outstanding duss

-Total q‘utst_an_‘;!i:jl_g-_di.:es}af,-gredifors'_q'th'Ei'"tJ'_i_'a_ri-.ﬁiicru:'en_t__ Foifises
_and small enferprises. . : '
Total =~




ract Fipprielal Sarvices Hndia) Liril led
Netos o Bnad tlat stateminnts fed the-' Mm:h 11, zumc-:nul ]

!Ml Mot ! IR thaous s, wrd :ss wibnrvisestarid})

33 Dbt skciiritice

Parilctilars

Ag at-

tarch31; 2001

Atamartised cost

Unseured: . ) )

.| . Comrrarcial mgar.’. 247,439, 2,730,37%
Total [A] 47438 2,240,832
Dbt zozinitlas In s 247435, 2,236,928
Dahke: Jz:nuti}de in:lin I P

“ITot 18] 247338 -1,':20&211 _

Terms of repayment sehedule of Bebrspeurites:-

’ ’ 3:-Mar2l
atcment wiih : infereatRote | Caplog Face Value
eyt birmis Matertydate ffange 4 pa.)|  ardunt
: l:amrm:rr:lai papes ] .
245142021 4.5 247 439 259,000
: 247,439 -250‘000
31-Mar-10°
Instririentavith- !'nlcﬂ:.':;_ g:_m: F#rmn_g Face Valve:
repaimenktenss | oAt One IRngettpisd)  ameunt.
Cotunarehal gager ’ .
Repsyible SEFASALY: -Q4-08-2028 7.50% 6708 Fen,Ho0
11062020 058 403681 " 5o0j660
. 22-04-2020° FHE 995,530, -1509,050
Total 2,210,332 2,250,080,
14 Barrowdgs jathiek thin dobt geeurtips)
Parlcidlars Agat | heE
N Ma:ch 31, 203t | March 51, 3020
Athfnbrt\sbﬂ L05t
Semed
I.uan !epiyab‘e Gndn ;nnnd
~Grdrdratt-Toar Bankh o ] 0B -
Interest fteranges fam 5.25% ko &8 for Apr 20 1o Mat 21 {Inteest rate j8
#1485 Yor FY 2018-10).
Un.suured
oang Froivn daatrdpa i -
Lnan trom the holding company 3 1,620,000 1,520,000
Interast rate ringes §.90% p.a.te 7.30% min fac.fpr 20 faher 21 (5540 P C
|na8% p.d, v F¥ 2015-20) e
Jletat{a) LASOE4T [ 1620800 )
1,650,547 1,520,000
TEEoEar | 12008

i Filly shcuTed sgainst fadd doposlt [t‘nlaﬂ}

S‘nw tenur af ik lunn 12 36 muntbs fram.he dale.of ep
whithe’ u_p;f_m of this,

swith et popymic

Hat debtsecen -
‘This seetinn Snix i 2natysty of hat debt and-the mevem nnls in net dabt for each of tho pérlads prosenied:
Bartigulas’ Asat A at
‘March3t; 2021 -rch 31, 2028
cashand eath aquhments Bank overdrofts {22,371] BA4019
d 110, DSII 1,576,478
SEr Tamit | . 247,430} 14,220.322)
Borrdiilemy - lgany frem rolated parties 131,620,080} (1,628,001
Het debt ’ _E.Eﬂi 330} il.ﬂ}.?,ﬂu! ]
saictar Comonerath | wwid | ok st | Donowgs- e
P inugstments. jeammerclal papet From related parties
Net dchhs atAgril 1, 2035, {112,784} - 11,730,527} 11,586,463
45,002 1,478,478 {HBE0E2) (33,6007
" “tg6ay B {218,501 f7s.701)
Hnmarest pald 458 = 194,764 T
Oither mbacash mevemants
= Faif vaiue adiUstments: - S - -
widnamogiised discount - = - -
“abquisitionsfdigposdfs . “ . - -
Fict dehtas ot Mazch 33,2020 i "344,019° 1,478,473 12.228,320} (1,620,000
Cauiflows mevament {ned] {373,390} 44,368,308 -
Intefestaxpents. ) - {115,213
Intarest paid . 443 . 15143
Cther nan-cash mEvemERts.
-Fal vajue adjustments . - B
- Unamarized dismaunt B . - .
- Acuisitiansfdlsposate - + - | . -
.lll.l_l debt g4 at-March 31,2021 | {?.9'_‘_3.!_1} 1!.0,0.!;2' . 24?.’&39! - - I.EZD.OUOt
15 Githei finaricial Habililes . _
. Agay A3 ot
Pariigulars tireh 31, 2071 { . Winsch 31,2020
" {emglayer herefits payahle 1323 I
Piijable t sutiamar anatrount of-.
- Moritarturn ' CT a3l “
-Ven:hng dedigment pxl:ch -
L__tnl 0,639 . 794




{netéf.advance
em

" provisions.




HSHC InvestDirect Financial Services [india) Limited-

Notes to financial statéments for the year ended.March31; 202-1"[Cnht'd;}_

20 Equity sharecapital-

{Atf amaunts in !NR thousands, unless otherwise stated} .

b) Terms andrights attached to equity shares

The conpany has oneclass uf equity share having &' parval

share held, The dividend proposed by she fivard-of Directors s subject to-the approval of thiesharehalders in the ensuing

Annial General Meeting, except in the case of liitériry divi

1o receive the remaining assets.of the Company after distrlbution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their

. Asat Asat

Particulars March 31,2021 o

’ Nt‘zmbé_r of | ‘Nuniter of

_ shiares Rs. shares - Rs.
Authorised shares _ ) j
Equity shargs of-Rs. 10 eath 147,000,000 1,470,000~ 147,000,080 1,470,000 |
issued; subscribed & fully paid-up shares’ ) 1 - B '
Equity.shares:of Rs, 10 23ch,. 145,284,720 1462847 |  1dezmagaofl. 4.467847
Total 146,284,720: T 1,482,847 146,284,720 1,462,847

a) Reconcitiation of the number of gquity shares outstanding at the'beginningand atithe end of the year.
As at Asat

Particulars March3d, 2021 _ Man_:.h 31,2020

Mumberaf | Number of-

. : shares. . _Rs. shares Rs.
Qutstariding at the begianing of the perfod/fyear 145,284,720 '1,462,847 146,284,720 1,462,847
Shares i¢sued during the-period/year = - - -
Outstariding at the end oFthe perlod/year 146,284,720 1,462,847 146,284,720 1,462,847

e bf 6. 10 pet shisre; Each shareliolder is eligible for ene vote per

derid, In the event of liguidation, the equity sha_i'_é_h_olders__a're_ eligible.

sharehalding:
cJ Shares of the Company held by the holding campany
As at Asat
. e arch.31, 2 ‘Narch 31,2020
Equity shareholders - March 31,2021 March 31,24
Number of _ Numbies of .
_ shares % hiolding __shares % holding_
HSBC IpvastDirect {India) Lim{ted, the holding 146,284,720 1000 146;284,720 100
corpany & Its nominees
d) Details of shatcholders holding more than 5% nf’th'e:shai'es'i'nthe'ctimpéﬂv
. Asat As at
Y s Aarch31, 2021 March31,2020
Equity sharehiolders . March 31,2022 .
Number-of Number of _
. shares % holding ~shares % halding
HSBC InvestDirect {india) Umited, the holding 3465, 284,720 00| 146,284,720 100
company & its poriinees .

For the Company’s capital managemerit policy, refer Note 33




Notes to-Hinancial statements

2 Othdt equity.
A Beserniné and surplus ©

Particulars:

Secrities prafmlum

Opening batance .
Add .+ Chiangas diring the yea
Closing balince

Stotutary raserve:
Opening balang




_Hs8CInvestDirect FlRandial Seruitas {Indfa) Uimited

"Notes to Rrianclat statements for the-year.ended March 31 2021 (Ctmts )

22{d) Interestincome

(Al 'amcunts in INR thousadds, unless-othervise stated)

Paitlculirs Mar 31,2024 Mar:31, 2020
On financial assits measured at. Amnrtlsed costsy
Intereston loans 437,793 666,101
Prépayment Fees 847" -
interestion depdsits With banks, . 31,683 22,574
Total ' 60,329 | . 688,675
22{5}.Net Ealn.on fair value changes .
pafticikars: Mar 31,2021 Mar.31, 2020
Others
Wt Gain/{loss)-onfinanciat ingtrumeant atfaic
yalue through.profit of loss 30,387, 6,836
Tatal (A} 30,187 6,336 |
Fair Value changes: ' 1
Reailsed’ -30,145 7293
Unrealised A2 4,543
“iTotal (H) 36,187 6,836 |
23°Cthef incore: oy
Pafticulars. “Mar31,2021 .| Mar3z, 2020
Interest onincaiie fax refunt ) T 23723
Miscallaneous intome: 8 558
Total 8 24,2811
74 Finance £osts .
Particulars Mar:31, 2028 Mar31,2020 |
On-financiat Giabilities measured at amurtlsed ‘ost: '
Bank dverdraft, 443 |- "958
Initer gorparate deposits - 115,113 73,701
: Coramercial Pagers 45,052 218,507
‘Other Borrowling Costs . . 260 2,543
Total 160,908, 295,719
25 Employie benatits expanses . . .
Particulars tar31, 2021 Mar 31,2030
calafiesand wages _ 35,445 | T 35561
Coptribigtion to provident and other funds:{Refer note 30). 1,653 1,654
| Gratuity.{Refernate 30§ 7. RN
Staff welfera xpensés- 2317 2,180
Total . ) 40,143 40,558
26 Impairment on financialinstruments . _
Particulars Mar 31,2021 Mar 31,2020
Un ﬂnancial instruments measured at Rmor’used cost:
Loans 15} {28,384]
Total |5} {28,384)




HSBC. InvéstDirect Finanicial Serv
Notes to findincial staterents

27 Other-expansas -




“HSEE InvestDirect Financial Services {[rifa) |
Notes to findngial staterients for the year er

| March 31,2021 {Cantd.} _ o _
{all amounts i INR thousands;unfess.otherwise.stated]  ~
28 Income.tax. gxpenses. . . - .

8] The components-of income fax exiensi for thpériaiefided Match 31, 2021 and March 31,2020 are:

Particlars | Mar3dl, 2001 Mfar31, 20207
Current tax B BOA8E | T T UBGE93
Deférred lox 3ol .. 0524
Sub-tatal’ 60,746 ) 85317
tiefeired tax - Other compreheénsive Income’ 104§ . M=
Total ' . . Te0;e50.] . . 95120

1) keconcilistion of the futet tax charge
The-ax ¢hirie shown I the Stagemant of-Profit end Loss differs fromi the tax chavge-thet wouls apply I all prafits had been:charped at-Indfa corporatd.
tax rate, A recanciliation between the tax.expense 4rid-the accotinting: profit multiplled-by tidia’s dbifiestic fax rate far the-yéarended March 31,2021
and March 31, 2020708, as follows: '

Particulars ) . . Mar3l; 2022 Mar31, 2020
Accounting profit bafore tay . . LU 238,820 .. ... 358,845
Taxat India’s stalutory-income 1ax rate of 25.17% (previois yeat 25.47%) | 60,111 ‘90,321
Tax elfect.of the ampintivpichare not taxable in tajcifating taxable incomie :

- Expensos disallowed ' h 7,280 1,443

- InganiEnot subject {0 tax “{11) (2,143}
" - {Excess) Short provision for tax of parlier yéars - 1557

S Other .. . . . : PRSP ¢ 71 ] . 3,088
Incame tax expense at efféctivetax sate - . 60,747 #5,316
EHective tax tate L . o ) ) N E B T-CL R 26,563

&) Defarrad taxassetsfiiabilitioy

The: h;Fa'm:jb_':pmprises-temporar‘,; differancas attiutahie to the helow jtenis:and:carrespondiig rovementin dé?_err_ed'tax Habliities / assets:

e i {Charged)/ credited to | [Charged)/ credited A5 AT
particdlars _ _ As 2k March 33, 2020 grofit an loss taiDCl “Mlarch 31, 2021
Deferrad tix linhility 3
Proparty, pntand sadipment - B - - ) ) -
Defaiiad tax assebt ’ v ) :
Depraciaticn/amonization - property, glant and 2,480 {380 - 2,120.
douipment/ Intangible asset N
Employei'stenefit-obligstions 260 g - 210
Prevision 140 - - 140
impairment-allosancd for financial assets: 150 - i 160
Net deferred tax-asset/ {Hability) . 2,980, Ny ) (350} = - L 2,630
| ) . . [Charged)] credited to | (Charged)/ credited | Asat
'Parlicglars . As:at Marchi3l, ;ﬂw | ¢ pruﬂt, and lass . to.0ct Mareh 31, 2020
Defericd taxasset t ) T
D_é;_:r_egiat_innfammiz‘atiu’:i « prapierty; plant and EEL {1,171} - 2,480
enuipment/ intangikie asset .
Empleyeels benefit obligations £ 150 -1 200.
Provision 162 g - F 140
Impairment-allowance for lpans 1 8441 | - ig;281)|: - . 160
Mot deferrad tay asset/ (Rability) . . . s B 12,604 . mel . . i 7,980
d) Taxilosses . . . . L
Particulars o AsjesmentYear Expiry ’ Asat. Asat
S . Assasiment Yeat March:31, 2021 March,31, 2070
Unysid Sfiort ferm-capital losses-foi X 2014:15 2022423 ’ o - 20,879
deferced tox asset has been ez ogiils
Patential tax banefit at March 31 2041 25.1 - 5,255
maren 31, 2020.25.17%,

28 Coritingent liabilities énd comimitments [t the extant not pravided for}

" Provident Fund _ o _
The Hbnowrakle Supferne Courthias ratently sravided 8 judgment.in case of “Vivekznanda Vidyamandir And: @ihers Vs. The Regianal Provident Fund
Commissioner {il]- West Bengal” and the related circular (Elreuldr No) C—Ifl{33)2’0’15,(\;i_vej;anahda Vidya Manidir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by thi
Eimployees’ ‘Provident Fund Organisation in relation. tg noa-exclusion of certaln. allowirices fiom the. difinition ol "aasic wages" of the refevant
. erinplayaes for the,purposes of determining conitribsition to prévidait fuiid uhder Wie Employees’ Provident Funds & Wlscelldngous Provislons Act, 1952,

in the assessment of the Managemint, the aforesaid matter isnot tikely.to have a‘signiNEatImpact.



wh!ch are mc?uded i

Particutars

) Prﬂuin‘en:fuﬁ-'d .




“WSBE InvestDitect Financiat Services {India) Limited )
Notei to financlat stotements far the year ended Mareh 31, 2021 {Contd.). _
{All amigunts in INR thousands, unlass ctherwise stated)

i} Aétuiarinlassumptions ) _ _ _ . _
Wit the objactive of presenting tha plan;assets and plan-fiabilitles of the defiried beneflks.plans at their fair velue ‘orithe balance sheet,
assumptions under liwd AS 18 are set'by Fefararice tg market cinditions at the véfuationdate, I :

Particulars As.at. Asat
_ | ‘Maretids, 2021 | . Murch 31, 3020
Discéuntrate ) T 6.4%
Salary escalation rate” . . 7.0% 7.0%

" * takes into agoount the tnflatign, sentarity, promotions and other relevant factors

v} Demagrephizassumptions

Particulars | Asat ' As-at i
_ . “March 31, 2024 |, Maich3d; 2020 |
Martallry rate LivesMortality  [Indin Assured
{2006:08] Lives Martality
- o Uktimiate {2006-08) Uitimate
Withdrawalrave. . . 10% 10%
i) Sensitivity )
' Changeln 1| acton definedbienafit abligetion
. - . pact-on ned:benefitabligatio;
Ag atMarch 31,2021 ::il::;:::: e B '
. . ‘Decrdase by |- ~Inceéase/ [DEcreédse}
Biscountrate, o i EE {ze5)l = 280
Salary escalation rate . . ) 0.5% 27T . (265§
g éhan ein . . . N '
e ass-umgﬁﬂbn Impact on defined berefitabligation’
As at March-31, 2020 'lm:réase"or. e |
. Décrease by Increase/ (Hecreass). ]
Discount rate - ’ CES% (276) 295
salary estalationrate : ) . 053 @88 {275}

1he gbove scnpitivity analyses are based on.a changs in.dn ‘assumption While:REIGIAE 41 othér-assurnptions constant. In practice; this Is.

_unlikety o -occur, 3nd- changes 1 soime-af the asslimptions, may ‘e correlated. When calcufating ‘the sghsitivity of the defined benefit:
abligatlen to significant actvarial assamptions the. sarne. method {present value of the defined benefit.obligation caiculated: with thi.
projected .unit credit méthgd. at-the énd of-the repocing period] has been appligd.as when calculating the deflned bencfit Hahility
tacognised In the balanceskieet.

Thie-methods and types of assumptions usgd'm-prepaﬁ_ng_the-sep_siﬂ__v_i;y._anaiv_sis_ﬁi'd notchange cum_paréd' o the prior periad,

vil) Maturity {unidiscounted]. _ )
The.deHied benafit obligations shefl mature after year.end as follaws:

B A% at As at :
Pasticulars 3 . March 3L, 2021 | Mareh31, 2020
TstFallowing ¥esr . 979 T
i Following véat : 2,700 By
g Folioveing Year 9351
4th Felfewing Year 1,082 1,030
5th Fellowing Year 1,327 1164
Sum aF 616 10 . 77390 _ 6892

The:welphted average d.u'.raticn. of the defined beneft obligatior is 7. yes ri'[previcusyear- 7 years)

vitl] Risk Exposuri
_Inmrest,_-rat'é- isk-1. The defined beneflt.obtigation ¢aleuidted uses 3°discaunt rate based on govarnmert bonds, If bond vields-fall, the
definad bapetic atillgation will tend 1o Increase:

saiary Inflation risk : Higher than expected Increasesin saiary il increase-the defined beneflt obligation..

Datriugiaphlc rish ; This s the: risk-aF variability of results die to.unsystematic nature ak decraments” that Include -morfafity, withdriial
dlsatllity and rétiferent, The. affact of these decremionts on.the defined benefii-obligation 1s.Aot straight forward and depends Lpon the -
eumbingtion: of satary increase, distaunt rate and vesting trterla. it is -}_m'p_nrt_ant'.nut"-_t_cr--nug_rsfaté- wllhdraysals. becase. jn the fihanglal
analysis the ratirgment benefitof 3 shor: career gmployee typically costs ks per year 35 compared to:a Tong $ervice emplbyee..
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HSBC Investbirect Financial Services (India) Limited

Notés tofinancial statementsfor the year-ended March 31; 2021 {Conitd;)

{Ali amounts in INR-theusands, tinless ctherwise stated).

32. Earnings-pershare (EPS)

a) Computation of basic & diluted earnings per share is giveri below:
paticttlars o

Basic & Diluted earnings per share. _

Net profit after tax available for Bquity sharetidlders (A (Rs. In thausands)

Weighted average number of équityishares (B) 145,284,720 | 145,284,730

Basic & Diluted earnings per share (A/B] (Rs.) R 180

Nomirialvalue pershare (Rs.) . _ L _ 1 )

[ War3zzoal | Wer3t, 2020

178,074 263,528.

33 Capital management
‘Tne Company. maintains an;actively managed capital base to-cover risks iiiherent.in. the business and.is meeting capital
adequacy reguirements of the focal banking supervisor,:Reserve Bank of India:(RBI). The adeduacy of the Company's
capital is monitoréd using, amongst other measures, the reglations issued by RBI, Company has-complied {n full with al
Its externally imposed tapital requiréments-over the reported:-perlod, The primary O_b]iac"tii.ﬂgs'o_fﬁ.thé"'(;or_ripany*é; capital
maragerment policy-are to ensure that the Company complies with-externally imposed capital req;_jire_mgn'ts-a'nd'-ma:i_ntain_s
‘strorig credit ratingsand hedlthy capital ratios in-order to support its Businass and to'maxirise shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structuré and makes adjustments to it according to changes'in economic conditions and
the risk _r;h_a_'r_agtfk%:ris__t'i'c_s of its activities. In order to méintain of adiust the capitaistructure, the: Company. may adjust the
_amoint-of dividend payment to'--_shafe_hdlders_, returi ¢apital to-shareholdars. orissue-capital securities. No changes have
been made ta the objectives, policies and processes from the previousyears. However, they dre under sonstarit review by

the Board,
Regulatory Capital

Capital to risk assets’ ratio {CRAR):

As at March:33,

2021

As at March 31,
2020

Tier | capltal
Tier1l-capital

4,879,188|
597}

4,501,524
602

Total capital

1,679,785

4,502,126

Risk-welghted assets

CRAR {54)

CRAR - Tier i capitat (%)

CRAR - Tier' (| capital {36} o
Amount of subordiriated debt considéred as Tier Il capital
' Amount, raised by.issue of perpetus! debt instruments

6,099,420

76.73%

76.72%
0,01%

7,654,679
58.82%
58.81%%

0.01%




- HSBE InveStoiract Findncy
Notas to financial statamen

34 Maturity arialysis of assats.
The tabie iieloy shiows 2

{Parifcutors

ivestmats’
-futians :
Othar. financtal assets.

" [Totdl Nérifina
" ITotalassats (€

1B,78

315170

531,383



HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services 1adia) Umited
Notes to finaricial statemients for the year-ended March 31,2021 {Contd }

35 Fair value measurement

) Fndncial instrumerits by Category.

-

(Al anouritsin (NR thougénis, Unless otierwise:stated}

The stgnificant Bccaunting’palicles, mclud:ng the criteria for- recegmt:on, the hasis of measurement ‘and the basis-on which. intome and gxpensas
dre-recognised,, In-respect of each class of f“nan:m! -asset, ﬂnanctai liakility- snd eqmtv instrumieat are disclosed fnnots 24 ()36 thefinancial

sta_t__ements_.
Particulars " As at March 31, 2021 _ AsatMarch 31,2020
) ' " -Fair value Fairvalue | Amorlised [ Falrvalue | Faifvalue | Amortised
through  ithrough OCH  cost. through  [through OCI cast
) L  Profit.oF Loss ' Profif or Loss
Financial-Asdats: . L
Cash and-cash efuivalents - - - 1,476 E =, 344,015
Bank balince cthierthan cash and cash - 405:313 - . -263,108-
|equivaiants. : L
Loans. - 2] 5,967,056 ) =< - 6019654
trivéstments At - s 1,478,479 - -
Othigr financial assets - - 14,713 P - 154,728
Total Fianancial Assets 130,080 6,388,558 1,478,479 |. 6,781,550
Finaneial-Liabillties:.
Trade payables - - 11,463 - - © 8387
Debt sécurities” - - 247,439 - - 2,220,322
Borrowings [other than debit securities) - 1,650,847 - - 1,620,000
Other finantial lizhilltles - 4,648 - - T
Total Financial Liabilities: - < 1,819,387 . - - 3,850,483
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B} Falk_va'lue__ljlei;;@hy" -

Thissection ._é;p'{a_i :

abisarvable market 4
thstrumant (s inchide

Yoas dgatnst f
Tatal financlal assets

Asat Mareh 31,2020 . ..

Loin againstTinancial sécurit]
Total finantial asséts

5,007,451




HSBE vestDirect Flnaneial Services {indis} Limited
Noiesta financial statements for the'véar endad March'31, 2021 {Contd:)- ] _
‘{41 aiviounts i 1NR thousarids, unless otherivise statad)

36 Financialriskmanagement:
The caripany’s activities expuse ft o markee risk, liquidity lsk and credit isk.

The company’s risk inanagementis carried out by the Company's fRigk:Management tedrs (lad by 2.CRO) undér pokicl2s appraved by the boart of directors:
The Company has-a-loarn policy, whidh provides puidanices for-ovaralt risk nanagement, spe cliizally credit sisk and market rigk. There ls-alse.an interest rata
policytn mangge intarast-rate risk and-liquidity sk,

36.1 Creditrish management

"EredIt riskils:thie fisk of stifferdng fnanclal tess, shoutd any-of the cqmpan_y?'s.-custamérs,.r.!Iem.s_' or market countérpartiss fail 1o flfl {helr contractual
obligations o the company. Credit risk arises-malnly #r6m toaiis and:advances; snd 1pan commitments:arising from such leriding activities,

“Credit risk s the singfe largest risk for the company's lhusinéss; Mmariagement” therefoce carefully managas Hs exposure to. credit risk. The credit risk
“ragagement and’ control dre Tentralised {n-a: credit risk management tean which fegiorts in to the-CRO;-Assessment of Janding. propesals: includes
assessmentof borrowat's backgroiund; flnancal stréngth and-teverage;operatioiial & findndal performante track record; cash flows; valuation of collataral
and stkis parameters. ' ' o o

The Company uffe_rs._-a single prodiet” which Is lending:agalnst finaficla) securities {LAS). It 15 rr_z'pre._than._1qd%"s_ect_xre_d':'pro#u:t- with - regulatory rlsk weight
“aséigned of 10p5. A realtime rigk monitoring system is-putin place o -3551_5;_:.t_he sk team to initlate the necessary margln calltrigpets. and. take necessary
- action including Hquidation of collaterals to pratect-against the probable bad debts,

{a] Loans and advanges{in. lpan:commitments and g_l.lar_a_n_tees_[- ) )
The.estimation of Credit.exposurs far risk mandgement piitaosés s coriplse and raquires the use.of modets, a5 the exposure varleswith changes in mitker
tanditiaps, expected-cash fiows and the passage of time, The assessment of credit Tisk-af 4 portfolia of assets entalls firthér esimatlons asto the fixe!ihood
of defaults occurring, of the aisgiclatéd tosgratios ani:of dafaulk coprefations betwe i counterparties; The.Company measures credit risk using Probability of
Ostault {PDJ; Expbsure at Default {EAD) and Loss Given Befault [LED], This i similarto'the dpproach used for the pirpuses of medsuring Expected. Credit
Loss (ECL) unider Ind A5 108. Reférto rioté: 361163 for mare'details, '

Qther financial asssts-

The Company has credit 'r‘}_skiequsure_'i_n__cash and:cash equivalents; deposits with: banks, dnd :ather finanglal assets. Cashi and cash potiivalents and-bank.
deposits are Reld with:only filgh rated Banks/Riancia) institutians iy, therefore cradit sk is. perceived to-be o, _ _
Oither financlai aiséts pertain tp-security deposits for reated prentlses; rargin deposit, Tha Company does bt percelve any significant dectine in credht ik
of the lessors.and herge expectad probability of defauit s considéred as low,

Custemer Risk Rating [ERR) _ _ ) L
The Company uses Internal*CRR rating mode! that &nables fts. assassrient.of the probatility of.defauit of individual counterparties: The internal CHE is:
tallored tothe varlous categories of totintarparty. Borrpwer and lodn specific;information collected: at the:girme of dpplication (such-gy.disposahie-incomea,.
sind level ‘bl <olistarat) isfed into this vating model, This Is stipplamented- with Bxtérnal data suth.as credit bureau scoring: tAformation on-Individaal
borrowers. N

“Fhe internat GRR is callbrated-sach that the risk of defaultiniréases exponentizlly.at each higher CER.

The.Campany as:its. éwn Intérnal credit riffing fravidwork shat i uses, for -ra_tlng-af'fhe borrowars atthe-ime.of sanction and-giring thet annval ce-fating
exertise, Ay-other knbih information about the harrower which ifmpaicts thel creditwarthiness - sichas ynemployment and previgus-dellaguency history
— 15 ato Incorporated Into. the ariusl fe'rdling ‘éxerclse. Based o the sinalysis done By. the:Company, the ‘paramieters jn-the tatlig madel {borfeiwer
sirangith, pperating visk, market rigk, ‘fancials, -etc. are glvenaseoré between 1-{highast) to.10 {lawest). Tha Internal.rating Ts based on the firal score
derlved from the credit rating model. i
‘Refer to tabie below for details:

" Iriternal scoré Description of the grade
0:l, 11,32 . Minjmurn Dafaulf Rlsk
21,22 Low Default Risk:
31,3233 ) Satisfacthry Defaulb Risk
41,4743 Falr Defatdt Risk.
5.1,5:2,53 Wodarpte: Default Risk
6.1,6.2 Sigafieagit Default Rigk:”
7.1, 7.2 ] High Defauft Ritk )
£1,82,83 _ iSpecial Manggement
9, 10. Default )
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“HSHC InvestDirect Financiaf Services indiaf Limite
- itotes.to finaricial satements for the year.esded March 31,2021 (Contd.}- ) )
{Akamouats in INR thousands, unless-otherwiss stitad)

{# Definitlon of defauit and credit-hmpaired dssets: L _ : .
Borrowegrs for whoin.the:CRR has ateriorated o Special Management {internal scores 8.1, 82,835/ Default {iméinal scarar9,.10), are ansidered to.bé
creditiimpairad; ' ' o
i the SICR section ahdve; the pétentlal impact of factoes beyend the contrdl: of the ‘Risk Management, team has ligeq edufnerated, Apart from e
uncontrellable factors; the Company does not-foresen 2 scanaris where thi finangial nstifents Watild Ge crédit-impairéd, by virtoe:of one or morz of the
Follthwiig criteria: )
- The Comipany fs consenvative tn its” customar sefe ction criterid. ]
~The Caripsay abiérves an Jaternal rating £ritetis befora cnboarding new eustomers and befara renewing litwits for. existing custoimers:

- The Conipany acgepls collatersl cover-only for eligihle securities. The criterla for determiaTng £igible securitids 35 daseribed in the (gait palicy forexc
category of callsterdl {equity shares, iutual funds, bungsiete) . S

- ini the past 3 years, HIFSL has hot witnessed any Credit defavits-ar Eredit {osses-an-the LAS &5 » product. All Iangare Stage’. essets with 3 satslactary
historical repayment behavior:

+ The. \dgns 6fféred have o-contractial teror of 12-36 months, Laans:with 3.contractual tenor-of mare than 12 months afe subject to-@nruval review-and
sprroval, Allthe ioans have a-put/cell option for the borroiverflender fespectively, _

- Al finzncial collateral-dre valued ofi @ continuing basls vik-a-is the Ipanexposure for any:shortfall which are réquired to b tequibrised in‘a maximim.of 7
workinig day's time. Else, the finandial collateral are siibject ta:sell off, . B ’

- Any finandial _cd_l'_i:ste[_ai showing guality deterioration Is required tof h‘g-‘s‘_w_apped'wi_:h better quality securityas sdvited by. Risk-Management tRar,
= Alliaans sre demand losns recallable witha shorf notice. o )

{iii} Upgradstion t ram kigher stage-to lower stage
Forupgiadation fram higher §tage 1o lowir stage (L.e-tohave:carad);
toan:ang advahces 1s:pot rivaved from higher stage to fowar stage Immediately after payment of gverdiesmodnt, followlng cooling off pericd i appliad!

“Fram Stage 2 to'Stage 1
<Cantractial payments arein lower than 30 ddys pastdus for at léast sie ronttis.

This periad of sl_x-_months.hasr‘heemdet‘er’mined-baseﬂ wn @t analysls:which-constders thé likglhood of a-ﬂ'na:m_:_ia_l I'r':s_tm_r_r}gn_t retoring to defzult status after
cifre-using different passible cure definittahs. )

{iv) Measuring ECL « Explanntiop: o inputs, asstimptiens antl sstimation techniques -

The Fxpetted Cradit Loss {ECU) Is: measured on sfther &.13:montty {12M) or (ifetime basis depanding an whether 3 sighificant Increase In credlt risk has
oeeurred since inftial recognition. or whthey. an-asiet is considared to-be treditimpalred. Expected ¢redit. losses are the, digeainted-product of the-
Prafatifity of Default (PD), Exposure.at Defaut {EAD), and Yos§ Givan Dafault ({60}, defingd as foliows:’

- The P represents the iikeilhood of a borrowver defaulting anits findndial sbligation {as.ger- "Definition of default-and craditimpatred*above), eiltier aver
the'nieat:12 months {120 POL, of over the remalning ifstinie {tifefime POj-f the obligation,

- £AD is based of.thedmounts the Company expects.to be-owed At the tme of difiult, over the fiext 42 months{12M. EAD} or over the remalning lifetime
{tifetime EAT): For example, for 8:revolving commitment, thé-Corpany inclydes the current drawn balance plus.any further armodntthat s expected to be
Sravis ip Yo the turrent cantractuat Timit by the tme of défault, should it occur. ' _ _ _ .
+Loss Glvan Defaglk (LGD) Fepresents the Company's expectatlon of the:extent of loss.on a defauited exposire: LGD vafies by ype of countérparty, type and

sepjorRy, of claim’ a_nd.auall'abliny. of coliataril.ar other tredit supiiort. LGN is expiessed as.d-percentdie Toss -per-;un:t’g of exposure at the:time- of defaolt
{EAD). L&D 5;calculated-on 2 12-month of Ufetinie hasis, where 12-manth LG iz the percentage-of {oss expected to be:miada ffthe default oteurs nthe.next
12 mgnths.and Lietinie LGD Js the percentage of loss expected to be mads if the defalt Goours overthe remaining expacted lifetime aftheloan:

Thie ECL is detarmingd by projecting: the PO, G0 and-EAD for. e'ac'h;:fqu_a manth and for ga:b:_l_ndlu,i’_d_u_a'! exposure or ce!lec’t_ive _5ég_méht..'1'hcse three
compunents. are: multiplied together-and adjusted for the Wikelihood of survival (ie. the exposuré has ot prepaid ordefaiiad i oo eariec month), This
-aFfectively calcuiates an ECL for.each future manth, which is then-distounted back to the faporting-date-and symmed. The discount rate vsed in the ECL

criculation s the drigiia] affdctive Intarest rate or an:appro¥imation thereof,

Fistward:looking seofiontic information is alse included It deteratining the FD, EAD and GD. Refer ta note 36.1{bi(v) for i‘a__n-e;pianat_ipn.o? foeveard-tooking
informationand its inclusion.in ECL talculations. L
There havi: hedn no-signilicant changes i estimation techniques or significant assumptions made:duringthe réporting petiod.

v) Foréardslseking informatlon incarporated In the ECL wiodel ) )
The-assessme‘nl'-_df S{CH incarptates forward:iooking information. All loans are‘Stage-1 sdsets With. 2 satisfactory hlstorical repayment ‘beéhavigur, The
Company’s LAS portfally comprises highly:Aquld financial collaterdl vihich-aie valied ofi continuing basis vis-a:vls thefoany exposure for.any shortfallwhich

are requiredto be regutarised Ina maximuim of 7 Working day's time. Else, the financlal collateral are subject to sefl Bff.
‘in the SIER section abave, tha potential Impact of ‘factors. Beyond {lie Taniral of the. Risk #anagement team has been -enumerated: Apart from. the
uricantroliabie factors, i is unlikely that any of thie §tdge 1 dssets would move to Stage d. ) )

-Other forward-loaking. considetations. nat atharwise incorparated within the above scenarlos, such as the impatt of say reguiatony; legislative ar palitical
changas, which:zre kely toculmingte into reduttion 1a véatisahls vahue of rullateral securitiesare bullt in'through.the dhnual stress:{gsting:exercise (which
Is & regulatary-rgalrément). The portfolio is stress-tested under varitus scanafios 1o arrive#t the impats. analjsls on thie{oan portfolio, but are'not deemed
totiove s materinl impact and thérsfore no adjdstment Has bsen made to the ECL for such factors. This is revlévied and monitored for apfropriateness on

#n annuah basis..
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HSBE, Investlirect Findncial Servizes (Irndig} Limited
Nates tofinancizlstatements for the year-ended March 31 ; 2021 [Contd:) _ _
&l amounts In INR thousands, unless othierwise stated)

Asset Froup Internal ratlng grade: s ...ﬂ__\_s_zta.-ja.r:l:h.-:fl:lf_z_ﬂ_zu e Total
— . Stogel - Stuged . Saged R
Performing ’ i -
Minifnirh Defallt Risk - - -
Low Default Risk - . - -
Satisfactory DelaultRisk : 5,949,803 . - 5,948,803
Faif Default Risk 70,483 - . 70,483
) T Muoderate Default Ai5k - - - -
. Loan against financialserurities |LAS) Sigrificant Befault Risk ’ . X 3
High:Defauit Risk - - : -
Special Management - - : .
Default - = . -
Non: performing
{nghvidualiyitipaired, . . - . -
Tatal . . ___ITotal ) 6,020,296 - . B 6,020,296

i) £allateral:
the amdunt sid type-of tollateral irequired depends on.an assassment of the-credit risk of the counterparty: Guideliies are In place cavering: the
sccaptability apd valsatidn of £3ch tvoe of colfateral, . B '
The Company has internal. policies on-the acteptebliity. of specfiic.classes of collatarglor credit sk mitigation. The:Company prepares a-valuation of the
collatera] ghtaiiied a5 part of the Indn ariginatipd process. This sssessment is:reviewed periadically.The printipalcollataraltypes are;
< Listed stocks .
+ Ginits.of mutuel fonds (both equity &-dib schermes Including:Fixed Maturity Plas)
f_ﬁbhdé {sovereign-and cGrporate). .

“Fhefair value of collaterst affects the cilcelation-of ECLs, It 1§ generally a¢sessed, at aminlmum; at inception and re-assessed on a.eguiar bisis,.
As per'the contrachuat terms, collateralis peeniitted to be sofd.on évent _af'default{R_efer:N_cte.as.-i{ﬁ}(_"’i';}}_

| -hmpalrmeit Carryirigamoint |  Falrvalug of

. . {iross exposure : y R S : ) J

Ttk *
Pardeulars to eredit risk allowance! colintdral heldt
As dt Merch 31,2021 . - . . .
141 panvdjgainit financial securities [LAS) 5,967 ,653: (587} 5,867,056 -17.103.345"
Total- B . L .. S86KE53 597 s;sﬁ?ggsi . 17,103,335
AsatMarch 31,2020 _ . o e
1 - Lofn apainst financial seclirities [1:A5) go0296( . . 1602 6,015,694 | 13,275,371
_ Tatal i _ . ] . B | is0zZp2eel {602 o 5019,890 | 13'!27.5-\371.

* lmp'alrmeﬂ]‘. allowancer 0.01% fof March 31, 7021; 0.01%fof March 31,2020

I Edlr value of colfaterat held incitides-coliareral-amountagaint which nolean 18 outstanding.ds 3t March 31, 2021 and Ma_r{:h_'_a'l;_. 2_('}20_,_

[Hi} Loss allowante o ) _ ) o
Thie loss:aflowinen fecognised in the period is impacted by.a variety of factors; as describid belaiw: _ _ _
Transters between stages due to-findnelal instrumnté éxgeriencngsignificant.increases {or decreases) of eredit Fisk:n:the ferod; ) _
- Additioma) alidwances for dew Hancial instruments recopnised during the-perlod, @ well a8 releasas for-financial Instrimeants de-recagnised in-the perfud;

-{mpactonthe n_‘lea'sj'ure_mi:nt.af ECL due to chianges.In.PDs, EADs and LGOx:n the pertd, arsing from regufar refreshing:of inputs to models;
-impacison the measutement of ECL dueto thanges made to models and assumgtions; ]
f d.oh a presentvalue basis;

~Biscount (pwind within ECL due to the passage of timi, as ECL Is.measur

~Finéncial assets derecognised during thie period and writeoffs of allowances relatad:ta. a5sets that ywere written:off during.the peried (see n_ut_e-?;s.i{gn'.:
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HsBC Ir!vn'stlfiire'::'t"F]ﬁa'nr:i"al'S'iér}iic'e_s {Ircta) Limited _
Notesta financia} statements for the yearendid March 81, 2021 {Conid.) _
i 1A]l amounts.in INR thousands; unless athendiss stated)

36.2:Liquidity risk and fundlng managament
Prudent iqulcln_.v rlslg rnanagementl plles maintaining stiffitlent cash and marketable securitles:and she avalizbility of funding thropgh an adequa:e amaunt of

tians; Duetg the: dynamlc ‘nature of the. utidertying bisinesses, the. Coripany

'8, Flnuncingaimengements
“tThe tam any had accéss to the folioywing untieawn bos

A5 atMerchdl, | Asat Maveh 31,
2021 ‘7p20
Floatingirate
‘Explring wlthin Gee year{bank overtrift and othier faclitfes, with renewal upucn) : 1,099,153 995,980
+Expiring bevond one year {otherfar.ilitles} . : 380,600 380:000°

The bank oyerdratefacilities may be-diswn dtany time and may be‘_'ter_mf'p_ated__:‘by the bank without fotice:

) Maturity.of financial assets apd: flnancla{ Hiohilitias

The taklie Below summarises the matarity: profile of the undiscounted ash flows of: 1he Compary’s: financial fiabiities #s:at:the year end, The amounts disclosed in
thie-tabieare the cuntra_ctunt undiscountad cash fiows. Batances due withi 12 Wénths edial thelt-carrying balances.ag the mpact- uf discoupting is.not: sigmi” L3Nt -

The: Cmi‘apany:dn ‘fiethave anydertvative finarcla) liablities.
As. ntMarchai, 201 . e e L L ..
. : “Within 12 months’ Afted’i? months .

Contractual m_at[,trl_ties' cf financial assets |Carrying tessthan3 |3 months to | 6months te1 | -Batwesn Land3: Between 3 and 5 s

snd finariciaf fishilitles Amount. | menths | Gwonths | yeer yeats yasts Totaf.
Flnonclatnssets B U : i

Cash epdicesis equivalents 1,476 -LATE - - - 1,476
B.mk baldance atherthah sl and tash ._ dosa13 287,533 1,287 110,379 . . 40,459
equivalents above s T i o i
Lonns 5.967,U56. 929476{ 1,588,821 2,470,491 737,278 702,477 - 6,428;343
iivestments 110,080 - s T - 110,080 110,080
Otherfinancigl nssets 14,71% 5584 - . 4,728 - - 14,713
‘Total assils . ) ' B,A98,638 1,238,769 1,590,108 2,585,559 . ¥37,278 812,357 6,964,111
Financlal liabtlitles

Trade payebles 11,468F 6,608 3,210 1,585 - 11,463
Debysecurities 24}39 250,000 - - < 250,000
Borravings {dther than deby securities) 1,650,837 60,048 29;522 ] 58,403 1,737,447 . 1,885,420°
Other financial #abllitles; 9,638. . 825 - 1,373 - - ;638
Tota) llabllities 1,919,387 324,971 | 32,79% 61,311 1/237,842. - | . 56521
-As:at March 31, 2020, ) .

o Within 12'months After-12 months,

Contractual maturitias of flnanclal adsets. | Garrying Lessthaind | 3'monthsto [:6monthsted Betweeni1snd3 | Belween3 dnds <ol

and financia) lizbilties Amount - “months Gmonths year- years years -
Finznglitl assets: N _ : _
Lashandcastiéguivalents. 344,019 344,023 - & - ) .. _3da,uzy
Bank'bafance other than cash-and cash’ 263,108 233,121 4 36,008 N . 263,133,
e_qui_ua_len_ts above . o B

Loans 6,419,604 1,11%,079 784,748 2,288,470 1,386,029 1,151,737 6,699,083
Investrients ’ 1,478,473 o - s - 1,478,479 1,478,479
' cmarfmamalassets 154,728 150,150 - 579 . =] asazae
Ig‘t_al assels; . ) 260,020, 1,844,373 784,752 2,324,057 1,356,029 ‘2,636,216 8,939,427
Financial lla bnllﬂes )

Trade payables 9367 5,203 3,784 380 - - 9387
Debt secuities 1 n20322 1,500,000 746,000 x oA - 2,250,000
Bnrrnwings lothat than ebl secutitles) 1,620,000 0,413 747, 60,826 1,864,306 - 1,986,202
Gtharfinanclal lablities 791 - - 794 K -. _ 704
Tota} ligbilities ) ) ‘3,850,983 1,535,616 783,531 62,000 1,864,306 . e -4, 26453




HSBC lipvest Birect Financial Serdizes {ind
Notes ta.ftnanclal datements for.tha yéar. ended March 31, 2021{Contd l

363 MarketRisk

Irised fate bans”
Tofai -

As st Nfch 31, 2020

Loans

i) ‘Sensitivity ;
Profit aind loss §s sedsitive

Varlalile ratié foaps .

Commerdalpagers.. . . o .
Fixed rate [oans




ASAC investDirect lridriclal Seniices Oniliz) fimlted.
Notes ta financtal statements for the yearended March 31, 2021 {Contd}

{ll amountsn 1NR thusands, unless othenilse stated}
Wi Sansitivity

profit gnd foss Is sensitive to-higherflower intérest fricome from \fa_rfaﬁ_Ie'rate laans s 2 result of thanges in/interest rates,

Partléulars Impatt on prafit after taix nd.equity
Yearended Yeer ented
; Narch 31, 2021 Margh 31,2020
{nterest ratas —Increase by S0 {fAarch 31, . j 4ot
2020: 18) badis points _ (1ai8) 2282}
Interest rates ~decrease by 90 {March 31, -
2020; 18} basis points 11,138 2,382 )

Thé sengitivity is derived holtlingall other varisbles constant.

¢} Interest rate fisk exposure - investmants in debt-oriented mitual funds

Tha Company Ts exposed-tointirest rate dsk from investrents held in-debt, orignted rutualfind units; These funds fnvest i debt Secuititles. The.
i case ofunits backed by-dibt securitiesis measured using sengitivity analysis ay follows:

-exposure ta interest rate risk

\mpatt on profitaftertax andequity

Farticulars
. Year ended. ‘Yrarendsd
_{ Marchr31, Fodl Marchi3t; 2020
91days T-bil - increase by 160 baals:puints ‘1,044 B758
g1 days T-47| - daceesse by 200 basis Fojnts 11,04) 18:758]]

~d) £erelgn currency risk

The Compuny doas not have-any {:_:ri_ﬂgn gurrency dengminaied expostres.
shect dpte thatwill resultin Reticurrenty gaing or losses in the statenvent.of

e) Brice risk
The Company d

sratemont of prafitor oss or equity dué te ciange infrices,

g nat have exposures in respect of finantlal assets and finahieial iabiies as-avbalerce sheat date-that WIZ@I" result in changes In.

in résgiece of financhl assets’and finangial. hatillties as at-the balance
profitand ioss dugtochange fareign currency exchange rates,



Sapaleand Main

Eoirecta Aitting fees .

. Stcurity deposils’

#3TC frvestolvect rinam:iu! smlm india} leltg:i
saesto financlal wataments !onhc :

37: Raloted pocty trnmnin_ns_(mpurlnd'g& -

[a} Pasrpnt antltfes

r nndeu Marr.h :-li 2081 [Contd.)

Tha company b mnkru "’dl’i Lhe follawtﬂg Rtity:

“{intermadiats:

}ﬂ’l‘i"!ﬂmﬂ

{k} Tranesktions have man glzmln the ordlnng ; the Sustness for ihe.!ep_c:

nelarlunshm

'mmz of b Eitlty.

Hsazinvestdirect Financhal.
Empieire Gratuity Trust. .

“Feltowd Subsldlary. - ... -

Emt‘mplwe;qunt

Hss.c-saﬁ_uﬂ_tféi #od Capirat 6

$tr. Wiadbur ialviva ~ Gin

Partim‘ﬂts

Heviput Sallan - Tiresior

inlesdzsan I.mnuf 1

Fetessional b

Rent

éfn’pioﬁ:a}!}n

Frozeeds fropm bitrowities

Fiaed depasiu g

Fixad dlipatite €

c;r_nm.-:_il{fhul'fum

Lonibutian ey nraltht]! s

>.aa’31r;dnnnt|t pl’n:ed

Margin dem:l‘t.i—afundéﬁ ’

i) dripsity

Mzrpin deposits

Aeseivatle on'sciount sale of colfateral secur|

Aerroeingy

Tradd fayeblod

{amiilby Paysble 1o tha Tryr




HSHC investDirect: Flnandiat Service. {Indm) Limfred
Notes to: findncial statements Tor the yearended March 31, 2021 [Contd i

(Al drintints IniNR thiouisands, unless otherwlse stated}

38 COMID-E9
The spread of COVID 19'has severely impacted businesses around the-globe. tn-many countrigs, Intuing. [ndia,. ‘been sevefe
distaption to- regular busIness operations due to lock-downg, disruptions i transportation, supply chain, trivel |
sozial distancing and othefemergency measures.

ans, -giiararitines,

Tha Indian Government,. the Résejve Bank: of India and other reguiators have anncuricatd various measuies and relaxations
acknowledginig the cirrent situation to ansure that there is enough liquidtty in the hands of mirket: partil:lpants and- provided
moratoriumisio the borrowers in terms af their repayments 1o the _Imanc_ial.ms'ntutapns_.

'The Company i in the business-of- pruvldlng toans agalnst securitiés and ralsing monies: through horruwlngs The- Cumpany has made:
ELE assessment -of its 1|quui1ty pcsitlun applying ‘sirasi“seeparlias. The Company believes thatit has takeo into Fecount at tha posslhle_
fmpact of known events arising from COVID-18 pantami¢ in the priparation: df the financial stataments. The, Company has further
assessed the recoverabllitv and carr\;mg value of its assets compeising Loansand advances, investments, fixed assets, othur recewahles
s at-balance sheet date;and has concluded-that there are no matarisl adjlistrients requlred Inthe ﬁnanc:al Staterants. However, the
impact dssassent of COVID-13 Is a-eontiniing: process gwen the uncdrtalniles associated- with Its nature and ‘daration. The Company
Vil eontinUe to manitar-any Materkal ;ha_n_g_es to futu_re. e;onnmw conditlons.

18 Cumrnercial Paper Listmg
The Company' was feguited. to dists ifs. Commertia! Papars - [CP] -on stock exchanges .as 3 result. of the SEBI eircular
_'SEBi[HU/iMD/DFZ}CIR}F/ZOlelOt} dated Dctuber 1 2018 which- mandated mutual finds to invest In cnly Hsted dabt nsfrurients
ncluding CPs. The Company; theredfter; has alss compiied with the reqitirerhents issuad by SEBlLunide the framaworkfor fisting: of CPs
ulde circular 5£BVHD/DDHS,:’DDH5KCIR/P}2019,’115 dated Qctober: 22, 2019and &8’ Imp!emented by stack exchanges.

Thie listing of CPs iy the Coimipany to’ compiv w;th the SEBI- reqmremants does rot gqualify the Cotnpany as a. “Listed Company‘ {as
defmed unter the Companies: Act, 2013) and to- substantiate the same; the Company has. abtained lagal opinian which confirms this
p05|t|cm



As-pt Maich 31, 2021

Asset Classification as parAB) Narms U

| Pcdnrming ets

Standard

Subitotal

gl

Nan ?erfarmlng Assets

ilstandard.

Dauht{ui =t ml\,ear :

I tn-3'yiesrs

More tan Y yads

Sultotal fur deubiful

?mwsi:)ning{ RACE narrns

Subtoti]

Total

-Asat Marghi3l, 20

Asset Ciassiﬂcatlon #s'pes RBE Nu

Pororming Assats

stangard: RFERE)
.Stlhtﬂm.[.. : (23-475, '.

RonPEGTming AREt,

1Substandart:

Raubtful. pte 1 yed

1 tpdyears

More: than 2

Prd'\.rls'_i::_:n'iﬁ'_'g'-_ﬂmt,?]-n s

Subtaral .

Total

. (2.3 474}

- ﬂl‘ﬁﬂ




REBC owestDfratt

: ) Lmied:
Hotes o Hisangial 1

_ad Mar:h!! ‘Tt {Coimd)

M-HBFC s es

L1 £ x!alm ﬁukns;nts Aatle [CRARS. -

+ . [mount in Re.croré) -

pdrticulars: Asot Marsh31,2021  AgatMarch 31, 2020
JuCRaR g 78735 BEBY
(6 CAAK Tier | Eanltal (5] TEIT. -
Belizhy L.01%
‘«'\ rrsa gty
" Partlculars, Ayt tAarch 31,2021 Aset March3l, 2000°
1] Greisevalus of nestenants
{a} inIndhe - 110 15785
(B} Outside:|ndin . .
{ili-Prodlifons for Depreciation *
[} Fvindia . .
{t} Gutside proia - -
L) et Vakadof Invéstmients _
o} dnindia 101 14785
A} Dotiide India. - -
i Medment of provisions held tpwards dnpr: ciatan on Inyastmaitts: *
o (il Opéninghaidncs - 4
. #dd s Pravlsiona made during tho year, - E
{15} Leas Yitite-cilf £ vorlfn-back of excess pravilons: dur!ngthn year - -
tudd' Clozing batanee- X . B

* Refer nata 6

3, .Dl;_l'.r_iill\r'es'_:
The i "

PR |

s Mamisctiora eibosusesih d

i3 Tin the gurrghtand gi_rg‘vla_us yaar,

-i D]s:imuresre!a!lng to Se:unmahan,
mpany has nouohi lu:n!. thratgh Eu: urihsahmz i the eufrent and gravinus year.-

&7 fatils of fituecizl axaniy salid L 2ezy
The Company 2§ pot 2! {manc{ai FErdts o

# ricapsteyction company for asset re
Siivsatlend R hies \

6. Delals éf piisignment transactions undmn_k’e m
Thu Campany hag net dndertokan

it trunsactions 7 the Eunent 1rd gretdous vime.

¥:Detaiie o nap-performing financial sssets Pusshiséd £sold:
The.Eampany has Rat purchased fiold fo-performing fivanziale assels Inthe Turreat and previoies year,

Tor astek racoastrustibnin the curient-and griavial year,

5. Azset Lilility Marvjamant Mavurlty patinen of castaliyilems of Assis and Jabilities

Rartlculars - idaystodofsy|  Overl “Ouér2 “Over3 -Over'6 Ovel 1-¥rars o, Quors. | Tousl
Qdapte? | Bdayreold .d';;,s-{dn:s Mentha kpta.| Monthsoptn {  Monlheto Henthsto- 3 Years Yrars '
days doys menth) . 2 Mn_mhs 3 Months i3 @unﬂ-m_ 1¥iar
R{ETEDT o
FEETRY B 9.55: 52.48 73 15151 23741 018 E3.25. - SBETE
& 2 2167 53.65 17,68 6847 it 19547 10806 - | poigs
tAarch 91, 20744 B . - - - - B - i1} kel
Elureh 31 3870 8 - e - oy - - - . 19765 | 14785
Fixad Bapasits it ’ ’ ’ :
Binks . . N
Margh 31, 2021 13 962 17158 - - : 1102 . . . 4ni3
Mareh3l, 30708 52.?2L ds@zf o . o~ 4 - 2 : 300 - - . 53g2
Burrmuvings. i
hiateh 3%, 2023 .08 B - - 474 : = 152 on - H
Wageh 31, 2030 . . ‘94955 - Agar .07 - 16209 . - -
Foraign curenty ’
il.'d-ﬁli
‘March 3t 2021 a . - - B - - - . - -
Warth 31, 2070t - s * - z - : e : - .




fiotes ta faaadi

54 NBFCdisclosures {Continued]

¢ Bipssires;
‘EXposure th Capltal Market

Panltulzis

i

7. Brew Bown
Thzre fias biggn pedrv dovn f

{8, Carcentratlenof Advitices and Evpo
Rarticulare o

{encontration of Advantes
Total ddvarzes b ti i
oot Advanca




e4'|[rilia) Lmited
b VEAE endaﬁ March 33, 2022 1I:uru& 1

43 MEFC isdbsdres (Continued)

; Digcloisyre of pupicrier comalaals:

tio, el eemplainte radra st durlnatl-a vear
Nu wteytplatnis parding A thie end of thi pear

{ashoint inHsierare)

“Maich 31, 2001

“FANED 31, 3030 |
Me-ofeampiaints

Tot &

2, arzordarice with: REI Mazter Diraztion DNBRPD 053/03,10 {19/dnis- 17 dated: September 1, 2016 {Updgpid upte May. 16, 2015j, the foli

¢ ha Catarier Cilevance Rediossal Mochantom fur comenancs of cust

Ao register thetr curnalaints and o7 the Company 10 méniior and redress tHem.

zre Hiraddtiotiaf disibeurat. irad

undar thix fapmistay praseribed vide prragrmph 16 of Non-Banking Fingncial Compnny — Syshe My impartunt Npm:Daporll taklrig Corheany, {Ruxuwe 82 n!c} Duaf.‘t nE 2016
Amgunt nutst:ndrng Amnuntauclﬁue .
_ Uishilias: March 33,2021 Mardi31; 2020 Warch 31,2031 March 31,2020
{1) Agans and ‘aféantes avalled by the non banking findncfal campany Indusive of Interestacery etl thereon but not uald

{2 enttrns fothar thai falling, withfn thn meaning af publls dagus-u}
ect.r_e:l_ u. . . -
Hnsedired - . N .
1h) Deforied Cradits. . - -
{e) Yerm Loans . - . '
{d} mmtet-Corporite oats and Barrowing 162450 - -
{0} commercial Pagar w7 7 -
i} Othirtdand. - - :
" liyShory Teri Lnang . - . &
i_ii)'E':_'nk verdratt 108 . - -
fii] tine of Cradit B . B o
Tatal : PLTEH 35403 - -
A Amuaint everduz
Mafeh 31, 2021 CMDRN3Y, 2021 March 332020
it Breakip offoens and Advances induding Eils recelvables ottt than thosadnduded in |-|] blow]: ’ ’
- {a} Savwved 546,77 E02.03 - _-
{i} Unsecured - - - .
-Anibunt gty ~Amount overdue’
. o ] o “MhEréh 31, 202t ntarch 31, 2020 March 31,3070 March 33,2020
43 Break up of Leased Ausets and stock barhire and other asrets rou nttrg towa il Adi t_'_Fin:m!'é [« y {AFCY attivitles
i Ledse n.scts ingf udlngTeasu fenialz under sundry debtors”
o] Finantial e - - K
{bfOnerating Ledza’ - - - -
v Fits udinz Hife: charznsunderwnir'r debicics
{at, mms an hire: = .- -
{8} Re pusan;md.au:ls - - - E
{iiid THbar loahs ta ingtoviaeds ApyatFlasnce Compafy artivitias:
&t Laans where Fzats hiva basi :gposnmad - - B
{h} 1oans otharthsn {a] ahove - By N .
Amount outslanding Amaount overdie
‘Mareli 33, 2021 Haaich 31, 2620+ Mapchi3s, 2021 #archdy, 3020
{3 ‘prgak-up ol (pwissteenle )
‘Curpaik ivestignta
1- it )
i} Shiaras: {a) Equity - - - -
) Pralfarente < - - .
[} Detaniuses and Bands - - - -
5)3 Units of Muguﬂ]Fund: 110t 147.85 - ~
(il Govarnment Secarities < - - i
v Githars = - - -
2 Lnountad-
3} Shares: 1u}:Eduity. - - - B
) (& Preferance . . . -
{ii} Dhensires and Bonds . - .
it} it of Wutual Funds - - - “
thv) Giwar nrmins _Ea:urltjru - - - B
). Gthers - - :
tong Territ Tiyatments’s.
1 Qonjad: -
i} §haras: - “laY. gRaity - N - -
) ¥ Prafarénce - - -
{1} Debentures and Bands ’ - - - .
(i} Unitz of Mutuat Funds - - -
{wih Gawa nmenr'erurltlas - R . -
v cﬂms - . -
L Upauated £ . .
Tl shares: (6} Eaeligd - - * -
 (b) Preferenza - . - -
[nl bebentures and Bonds - - - -
"M Uil of Mutustfunds - - - -
T} Boverpmant Socuekifas B “ - -
") Others - - - - -

#incluzés investments 1A HSGC invenDirect Socurities [id[a) Prlvate timited of Ag, 30 whick 16 falty provided:




HEBE InvestDirect Aipanctal Serviees findia) (b
fiotes 1 Hnincial statdimentx for the ves

A REECdIsdasurss [Loniinuod)

& T Borrower gioupwise SN
Catzgory

1

: .. Lyl
e} Mcvement af et WP

230m Ageardinte with BB Motficotiar HE..2,
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Hsacrnvesmlrm Elniin clal Seevldes (indla) Urnlted
‘Notes:to ancial statements for the yeor ended March34,.2021 [Cu nld )

ik} Fubt!c’_dEs_:__iagurz:pn‘thnirilw_r_i_'f,:l@

{1 Furding Concentration baséd onsignllicant rountespaity. (hoth degisis and borrowings)

{Amount in Rs. crore}

Afat March 31, 2021 .
Sr.-ha. . _Numbier of siginfleant countesparttes “Amsin{INR Créra) | sol Total Dagosll. 1% uf Total Lizhlitles *
1 Cc:mmurclat Papsr fromd Mutuat fudd compaiy. - . A5 THA . A2
_2lLoan fram hélding company 162 [MA 8285
- 3 Overdiatt fron) HOFC BankLtd: Y ES U AlEw
‘A at Match 31,2020
5t. No. ‘Mimiberof siginficant munter;:artius Amount(lNRCrure:u %6 of Tatat DRpostz. | Hof Total Uabilitles * |
1l commerclol. Paper froni 3 Mumnl fund tampanies 220 |MA 57.2%|
2t Loan front kelding Comipany 162 [HA AL7%
[ Tap.20aszed rposits (amoling X crore-and % of tetal deposits) - Not Agplicable’
{1t} Top 10 horrawings {amountin 2 crove and % of ot barrawlnigs). :
) e o . As.at Merchi34, 2021 AgatMarch 31, 2020
CENe. . . - Type of Borrawing Amgunt % of borrawings _ Ampunt 1 Befbowowngs |
1 Cornrner:ta! HopuF - 25 13:0%) .. . .222 . ST.E¥
2|Lowni from higfding cumgnnv 162 B5 4% . 162 AZ72%)
3{Orerdrak from Bank ' 3. Y - o o]
Towl 150]. 100%] TR 10004
v Fuiding Coneantration based on signifcant Instrument/product L o i
' ' ' s 2t Mach-31, 2021 e 5t M, 03T
SriNo . Nunthar 6f fnstuinient f pioduct AmcuntiINR Crors) | %of Totaf Latilitles* Arnmmt (s Crore). | 34of Totpt Uablities ? |
4 iCommarcial dapet: ~ 25 2% ) ‘2723] 57.2%
"2 1i0zn fromt olding campany 162 EFE N Cig2 4% Th
. 3twerdralt-from Bank 3 REEN ) - T -
- [v) Stack Ratios:
5ri-Mo. } . Particulifs March 31, 2021 rdaréh31, 2020
“1]commarcial Paper To Tetal Public Funds MNAY A
2 mmmern[nl kaper To Tetat Liabilities* 12:7% £1.2%
Ei[a2 i 1.7% 26:4%
4] HCE (erigiaal matarlty'< 1 yest] To Total Public Funds ‘NA NA
'S{NCD [drigia) maturity < iyeat) Tﬂ Trtsl Lizhifitles® NA NA
B NL'D {udalnal matifty <1 year) T tetal Absats HA - NA
7| totticr. shortaterm Sabhities T Tatat Public Funds NA NA
8] Other shori-term tiahifities To Tobal Lidluilties* - 1.6% 0.7%
410t sheirt-term Ushllities 'I’n Total Assets: 1.1% 0.35%

(ul] instiwilonzl gét-up for Itgutdity | risk: ‘management
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent auditors’ report
To the Members of HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HSBC InvestDirect Financial
Services (India) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March
31,2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income},
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2020, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit
and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw your attention to Note 38 to the financial statements, which describes the
management’s assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on
the business operations of the Company. The management believes that no adjustments
are required in the financial statements as it does not impact the current financial year,
however, in view of the various preventive measures taken (such as complete lock-down
restrictions by the Government of India, travel restrictions etc.} and highly uncertain
economic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods
is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Other Information

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board of Director's report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Board of

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Nesco IT Building ITi, 8t K
Gate No. 3 Western Express Highway, Goregaon East, Mumbai - PNER )

T: +91(22) 61198000. F: +91 (22) 61198799 %@i@ibﬁ
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Report on audit of the Financial Statements
Page 2 of 5

Director's report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board of Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and
regulations

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
Financial Statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

———



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Report on audit of the Financial Statements
Page 3 0of 5

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in grder to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

11.

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Report on audit of the Financial Statements
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12.

13.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {(11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”,

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2020 which
would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2020, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any,
on long-term contracts - Refer Note 5 and 36.1. The Company did not have any
derivative contracts as at March 31, 2020.

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March
31, 2020.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable
to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Report on audit of the Financial Statements
Pages5ofs

14. During the year ended March 31, 2020 the Company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration under the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Act. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership Number 118522

UDIN: 20118522AAAACR6124

Mumbai
June 25, 2020
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
HSBC InvestDirect Finaneial Services {India) Limited on the financial statements as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2020
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 13(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited on the financial statements as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2020

Page 2 of 2

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finanecial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Also refer paragraph 4 of the main audit report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sharad Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 118522

UDIN: 20118522AAAACR6124

Mumbai
June 25, 2020



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited on the financial statements as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2020

1.

ii.

iit.

iv.

vii.

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management at the
year end and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 9 ~ Property, Plant and
Equipment on fixed assets to the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said
Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, to the extent applicable, in respect
of the loans or investments made, or guarantees or security provided by it.

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security, in connection
with any loan taken by the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. Therefore, the
provisions of section 185 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections
73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues in respect of Income Tax, though there has been a slight delay
in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
provident fund, income tax, cess, goods and service tax and other material statutory
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty
of customs, and duty of excise or value added tax or goods and service tax which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and

explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings to any financial institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders
as at the balance sheet date.
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ix.

Xi.

xii.

xdii.

Xiv.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has not paid/provided any managerial
remuneration under the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
Also refer paragraph 14 of our main audit report.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it,
the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions
havebeen disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is required to, and has been registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 as a Non-Banking Finance Institution.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

D

Sharad Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 118522

UDIN: 20118522AAAACR6124

Mumbai
June 25,

2020




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020
(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

i Note As at As at
Rasticukirs March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 344,018 758
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4 263,108 262,992
Loans 5 6,019,694 7,266,673
Investments 6 1,478,479 -
Other financial assets 7 154,729 4,579
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) 8 141,689 180,711
Deferred tax assets {(Net) i8 2,980 12,604
Property, plant and equipment 9 1,889 2,835
Intangible assets 10 - 251
Intangible assets under development 10 3,400 =
Other non-financial assets 11 3,829 2,304
Total assets 8,413,816 7,733,707
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables 12

{1} Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smalf enterprises 9,367 6,703
Debt securities 13 2,220,322 1,730,517
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 14 1,620,000 1,699,942
Other financial liabilities 15 794 1,200
Non-financial Liabilities
Current tax hiabilities (Net) 16 10,686 6,296
Provisions 17 18,637 18,033
Other non-financial liabilities 19 2,627 2,576
EQUITY
Equity share capital 20 1,462,847 1,462,847
Other equity 21 3,068,536 2,805,593
Total equity 4,531,383 4,268,440
Total liabilities and equity 8,413,816 7,733,707
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For PRICE WATERHOUSE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No: 012754N/N500016 HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (india) Limited
7 .L,/—/ ]
[;
Sharad Agarwal Sharada Sangekar Shantanu shanka:
Partner Chairperson Managing Director
Membership No: 118522 {DIN 07788255) {DIN 08054929)
Mumbai U;é/ )
June 25, 2020 8
Sunita Sarda Sneha Doshi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mumbai

June 25, 2020




MSBC InvastDirect Financial Services {India} Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated}

Particulars Note Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Revenue from operations
Interast income 22(a) 688,675 512,790
Dividend income on financial instruments at fair value through other - 2,015
comgrehensive income
Reversal of impairment on financial instruments 26 28,384 -
Net gain on fair value changes 22(b) 6,836 23
Total revenue from operations 723,895 514,828
Other income 23 24,281 74,066
Total income 748,176 588,894
Expenses
Finance costs 24 295,719 160,938
Employee benefits expenses 25 40,554 38,855
Impairment on financial instruments 26 - 11,167
Depreciation and amortisation 9&10 1,764 2,516
Others expenses 27 51,294 50,581
Total expenses 389,331 264,057
Profit before tax 358,845 324,837
Income tax expense:

- Current tax 28 85,693 86,921

- Deferred tax 28 9,624 (2385)
Total tax expense 95,317 94,536
Profit for the year 263,528 230,301
Other comprehensive income
i} ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 30 (782) (187)
- Changes in the fair value of equity investments at FVOCI * - (1337)

197 56

i) income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year (585) (1,468)
Total comprehensive income for the year 262,943 228,833
Earnings per equity share {Nominal value of Rs. 10 per share)

- Basic and Diluted (Rs.) 1.80 1.57

* There is no deferred tax impact on these fair value changes

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For PRICE WATERHOUSE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS LLP
Firm Registration No: 012754N/N500016

g

Sharad Agarwal

Partner

Membership No: 118522

Mumbai
June 25, 2020

/,’

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited

Sharada Sangekar

Chairperson

{DIN 07788255)

-

Sunita Sarda

Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai

June 25, 2020

Shantanu Shankar
Managing Director
{DIN D8054929)

\pDess

Sneha Doshi
Company Secretary
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HSBC investDirect Financial Services {India)} Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Prafit before tax: 358,845 324,837
Adjustments :
Depreciation and amortisation 9&10 1,764 2,516
Impairment on financial instruments 26 (28,384} 11,167
Interest accrued on debt securities 23,744 14,184
Interest income on bank deposits 22(a) {22,574} {18,415)
Unrealised gain on Mutual Fund (4,543} -
Interest on income tax refund 23 {23,723) {72,244)
Sundry balance written back 23 - {1,427)
Operating profit before working capital changes 305,129 260,618
|Adjustments for working capital changes:
Loans 5 1,275,363 {2,814,359)
Bank balance cther than cash and cash eguivalent 4 {166) {480}
Other financial assets 7 {150,150) {889)
Intangible assets under development (3,400) -
Other non financial assets 11 (1,525) {691}
Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade payables 12 2,664 1,209
Other financial liabilities 15 (406) {1,400)
Provisions 17 {178) (437}
Other non financial liabilities 19 51 148
Cash generated from operations 1,122,253 {2,816,899)
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds) {18,929) 107,380
Net cash inflow / {outflow) from operating activities 1,408,453 (2,448,901}
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Placement of fixed deposit with bank {1,914,950) (359,000)
Proceeds from fixed deposit with bank 1,915,000 359,300
interest Income on bank deposits 22{a} 22,574 18,415
Proceed on sale of investments - 47,816
Investment in Mutual Fund {1,473,936) -
Net cash inflow / {outflow) from investing activities {1,451,312} 66,531
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from borrowings 10,203,450 8,771,600
Repayment of borrowings (10,169,850) {8,219,400)
Proceeds from issue of debt securities 10,261,299 5,395,129
|_Repayment of debt securities {9,795,237) {3,678,796)
Net cash Inflow / {outflow) from financing activities 499,662 2,268,533
NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH AND BANK BALANCES 456,803 {113,837)
Add : Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year {112,784) 1,053
Cash and cash ﬁulvalents at end of the year 344,019 {112,784}
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents 3 344,019 758
Bank overdrafts 14 - (113,542)
Balances as per st of cash flows 344,019 (112,784)
Note:
i] Amount spent in cash towards Corporate Social Respansibility is INR 5,466 {March 2019: 4,975}
ii} Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods pr d. Refer note 14,
As at As at
Rastlasias March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts 344,019 {112,784)
Liguid investments 1,478,479 -
Debt securities - commercial paper (2,220,322 {1,730,517)
Borrowings - loans from related parties (1,620,000} {1,586,400)
Net debt {2,017,824) (3,429,701)

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows
This is the statement of cash flows referred to in our report of even date,
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India} Limited
Naotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1 Background

HSBC investDirect Financial Services (India} Limited (‘HIFSL or the Company'] is registered as a Non Banking Financial Company ("NBFC’) {non-deposit accepting) as defined

under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India {‘RBI’} Act, 1934. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC InvestDirect {india} Limited.

The Company is domiciled in Indla and primarily engaged in the business of financing against securities including equity shares, bonds, mutual funds, sovereign bonds,
Treasury bills and Government Securities. As per RBI circular dated February 22, 2019 on Harmonisation of different categories of NBFCs, the Company is classifed as an
Investment and Credit Campany {NBFC - ICC). Priar to this circular, the Company was classifed as a Loan Company.

2A Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been cansistently applied to ali the

years presented, unless otherwise stated.

i} Basis of preparation
Campliance with ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies

{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015], other refevant provisions of the Act and guidelines along with circulars issued by the RBI from time to time.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
« certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value; and

« defined benefit plans - plan assets are measured at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing April 01, 2019:

« Ind AS 116, Lease accounting

* Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments - Appendix € to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes
* Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement - Amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits

* Amendment to Ind AS 12, income Taxes
« Amendment to ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs

The Company had to change its accounting policies as a result of adopting Ind AS 116. The other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Presentation

The Company is covered in the definition of Non-Banking Financial Company as defined in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016. The Company
presents its financial statements in accordance with Division || of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. A maturity analysis of recovery or settlement of assets and

liabifities within 12 months after the reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date is presented inNote 34.

i) Segment reporting

The Company's Chief Operating Decisions Maker (CODM), who has the ability to evaluate performance and allocates resources, is the Managing Director {MD). In a manner

consistent with the internal reparting provided to the MD for corporate planning, there are no separate reportable segments {including geographical segments).

iii} Property, plant and equipment

Freehotd !and is carried at historical cost. items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is

directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during

the reporting periad in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on the following assets has been based on the management’s estimate of useful life/ remaining useful life. The residual values are not more than 5% of the

original cost of the asset.

{a) Mobile phones included in Office Equipments are depreciated at 100% in the year of capitalisation.

{b} Assets, each casting Rs.5,000 or less are depreciated at 100% in the year of capitalisation.

(c] Useful life of other assets is estimated as under:

Category of assets Useful lives followed by company Useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il {years)
(years)
Office Equlpments 5 5
Data Processing Equipments - Laptop 3 3
Data Processing Equipments — Servers 3 6

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reparting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {india) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)

iv) Intangible assets:
Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cast, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The amortisation pericd and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the
asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of intangible assets are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amartisation methods and periods
The company amertises intangible assets using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Category of assets Useful lives followed by company

_lyears)
Computer Softwares 3 years or license life

v} Investments & other financial assets
{a) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
1. those to be measured subsequently at fair value {either through other comprehensive incame, or through profit or loss), and
2. those to be measured at amortised cost.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss ar other comprehensive income. Far investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income,

For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the classification of debt instruments depending on:
(1) the Campany's business madel for managing the asset; and
{in} the cash flow characteristics of the asset {Solely payments of principal and interest}.

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business abjective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher leve!l of aggregated portfolios and is based on cbservable factors such
as:

» how the assat’s performance and the business model is evaluated and reported to key management personnel

» the risks that affect the performance of the business model and how these risks are assessed and managed

* how managers are compensated.

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial instrument to identify whather they meet the SPPI test, where the
business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the Company assesses whether the financial instruments cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the ‘SPPI test'). In making this assessment, the Company caonsiders whether the contractual cash flows are
consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes anly cansideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that
is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms intreduce exposure to risk or valatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit and loss.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(b) Recognition
Regular way of purchase and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date the date on which the Company commits purchase or sale of financial asset.

{c) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCi): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows or for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FYOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or |osses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCi is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/{losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/{losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCi are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/{losses) in the period in
which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in profit and loss.
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.}

Equity instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value, Where the company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
irvestments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses ta profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the campany’s right to receive payments is established.

Changas in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ase recognised in other gain/ {losses) in the statemant of profit and-loss. Impairment tosses {and
reversal of impairment losses) on eguity investments measured at FVOC) are not reported separately from other changes in fair vaiue.

Financial liabilities and equity insirument
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
is rerognised at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial llabilities
Financial habilities are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts are determined based on the EIR method. Interest expense is recognised in profit ar loss. Any gain
or loss on de-recognition of financial liabilities is alsa recognised in profit or toss. Undrawn loan cemmitments are not recorded in the balance sheet.

{d) Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses an a forward locking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment
methedology épplned depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 36 details how the company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit nisk

The company held impairment allowances as required by Ind AS. The company also maintain the asset classification 2nd compute provisicns as per extant prudential norms
on income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP} including borrower/beneficiary wise classification, provisioning for standard as well as restructured
assets, NPA ageing, etc. A comparison between provisions reguired under IRACP and impairment allowances made under Ind AS 109 should be disclosed by the company in
nate 40.

'n hne with the requirements of the Companies Act and RBI guidelines, an ECL policy is designed to assess and provide for impairment allowance on the credit exposures
vased on the projected 12 M expected loss madel. The provisioning 1s dependent on the portfolio mix, nature of product ad !oan impairments basis sound judgment and
estimates. The policy broadly defines the methodoiogy of the ECL model, its impact on the impairment provisioning and accounting treatment, its impact on the regulatory
capital and ratios. The model compares the provisicning under the RBI prudential guidelines and standard asset provisioning guidelines to arrive at fair estimate of
provisioning of Impairment allowance.

{e) Derecognition

Financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

1 The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

2. retatns the contractual rights %o receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially alt risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such
cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially alf risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not
derecognised.

Where the entity kas neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially ail risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecagnised
f the company has not retained controf of the financial asset. Where the company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent
of continuing invalvement in the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelied or expires. When an existing financiai liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of 3 new liability. in this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference
between the carrying value of the original financizl liability and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit and loss

{f) Income recognition

Interest income

interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1s disciosed as interest income under revenue from operations. Interest income on financial assets at
amortised cost and financial assets at FVOC! is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss under revenue from operations.
Interest income is calcutated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

X Mumbal




HSBC investDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.}

vi) Employee Benefits:
{a} Short-term cbhligations
Liabilities for salaries, including non-maonetary benefits that are expected to be settied wholly within 12 months after the end of the periad in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reparting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Post emplioyement obligations s
The Company operates the following post-employment

schemes:

» defined benefit plans such as gratuity and

« defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

{1) Defined benefit plans {Gratuity)
The ligbility or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting pericd less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit methed.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outftows by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms appraximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets, This cost is included in
emplovee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service
cost.

{2) Provident fund

The Company pays provident fund coatributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment cbligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

{c) Bonus
The Cornpany recognises a provision where it is contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

vii) Income Tax:
The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate far each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and fiabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the
company operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where approgriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial staternents. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit {tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws}) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses anly if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right ta offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Currént and deferred tax is recognised in profit or [oss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive incame or ‘directly in equity. In this
case, the tax Is also re¢ognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

viii) Cash and cash equivalents:
For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash an hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly figuid investments with original maturities of three months or |ess that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
nisk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

ix) Special Reserve:
In accordance with section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934, the Company creates a reserve fund and transfers therein a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit before
any dividend is declared every year end, and is disclosed in the other equity.
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H5BC investDirect Financial Services (India} Limited
Nates to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.}

x) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:
Pravisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive abligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an autflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recagnised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect ta any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present cbligation at the end of the reporting period.
The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed and disclosed as contingent liability.

xi) Leases - as a lessee
Till March 31, 2019
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases [net of any incentives receved from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments
are structured te increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the essor's expected inflationary cost increases.

With effect from April 1, 2019
until FY 2018-19, leases of property, plant and equipment were ciassified as either finance leases or operating leases. From April 1, 2019, ieases are recognised as a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is availahle for use by the Company.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present vaiue basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following iease payments:
» fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

» variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

* amounts expected to be payabie by the Company under residual value guarantees

= the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are alse included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic enviranment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period 50 as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

* the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

* any lease payments made at or hefore the commencement date less any Iease incentives received
= any initial direct costs, and

» restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally deprectated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

xii) Earnings per share
{a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
1 the profit attributable to owners of the campany
2. by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

{b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

1. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

2_the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have b_gen outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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HSBC investDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.}

xiii) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liahilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and trade
and other payables are presented as financial liabilities.

®iv) Impairment of assets
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or mare frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recagnised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less casts of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest |evels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

xv) Borrowings
Borrawings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amaunt is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Borrowings are dereognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/{losses)

xvi) Standards issued but not yet effective
New standards or amendment to existing standards are effective only when notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). As at the date of this publication, there are
no new standards or amendments which have been notified by the MCA but not yet adopted by the Company.

xvii) Rounding of amaunts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousands as per the requirement of Schedule 1), unless otherwise stated

2B Critical estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seidom equal the actual results. Management also needs to
exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies.
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those onginally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calcuiation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas invelving critical estimates of judgements are:

- Estimation of current tax expense and current tax payable

- Estimation of defined benefit abligation

- Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward tax losses
- Estimaticn of expected credit losses
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)

(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

3 Cash and cash equivalents

icul As at As at
i March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balances with banks in current account 16,969 758
Deposits with maturity less than 3 months 327,050 z
Total 344,019 758
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

: As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less 263,108 262,992
than 12 months {held as lien against overdraft from
bank)*#
Total 263,108 262,992

* Includes accrued Interest on deposit with bank for March 31, 2020: 3,108; March 31, 2019: 2,992
# Includes deposits which are held as lien against bank overdraft. As at March 31, 2020: 260,000; March 31, 2018:

262,992

Loans (measured at amortised cost)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Loans against securities* 6,020,296 7,295,659
Total (A) - Gross 6,020,296 7,295,659
{Less): Impairment loss allowance (602) (28,986)
Total (A) - Net 6,019,694 7,266,673
Secured by tangible assets (by way of pledge over securities) 6,020,296 7,295,659
Total (B) - Gross 6,020,296 7,295,659
(Less): Impairment loss allowance (602) (28,986)
Total (B) - Net 6,019,694 7,266,673
Loans in India

- Public sector - -

- Others 6,020,296 7,295,659
Total (C} - Gross 6,020,296 7,295,659
(Less): Impairment loss allowance (602) (28,986)
Total (C) - Net 6,019,694 7,266,673

* Includes Interest accrued but not due for March 31, 2020: 32,986; March 31, 2019: 49,171




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
6 Investments

Fail h fit | Fair value through oth
Particulars wir vahie through profiki el - .o ) Eoxiney Others # Total

& loss comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2019
Mutual Fund - = - -
Associates
-HSBC InvestDirect Securities (India) Private Limited - - 300,000 300,000
Total (A) - Grass - - 300,000 300,000
Investments outside India - - -
Investments in India - - 300,000 300,000
Total (B) - Gross - - 300,000 300,000
Total - Gross - - 300,000 300,000
(Less): Impairment loss allowance (C) - - (300,000) (300,000)
Total (D) - Net - - - -
As at March 31, 2020
Mutual Fund 1,478,479 - - 1,478,479
HSBC InvestDirect Securities (India) Private Limited* - - . - -
Total (A) - Gross 1,478,479 - - 1,478,479
Investments outside India - - - -
Investments in India - = - -
Total (B) - Gross - - = -
Total - Gross 1,478,479 . - 1,478,47%
(Less): Impairment loss allowance (C} - - - -
Total (D) - Net 1,478,479 - - 1,478,479

# The Company has measured its investment in associates at cost as per Ind AS 28.

* The Ccmpany has measured its investment in HSBC InvestDirect Securities {India) Private Limited in the current year at fair value through other
comprehensive income, since the Company is no longer an associate company as per IND AS 28. The fair value of this investment on initial recognition is
estimated at Nil amount.
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, uniess otherwise stated)
7 Other financial assets

Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Security deposits 4,579 4,579
Margin deposits 150,000 -
CDSL deposit 150 -
Total 154,729 4,579
8 Current tax assets (Net)
As at As at
Particuars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Advance tax and tax deducted at source 141,689 180,711
(net of provision for tax 588,143, March 31 2019:
604,590)
Total 141,689 180,711
9 Property, plant and equipment
Own Assets
Particulars Ltand Data processing Office Equipments [Total
machineries
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 378 5,358 219 5,955
Additions - - - -
Disposals and transfers - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 378 5,358 219 5,955
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation - 1,043 52 1,095
Depreciation charge during the year - 1,864 161 2,025
Disposals and transfers - - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation - 2,907 213 3,120
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 378 2,451 6 2,835

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 378 5,358 219 5,955
Additions - 60 507 567
Disposals and transfers - - - -

Closing gross carrying amount 378 5,418 726 6,522

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation - 2,907 213 3,120
Depreciation charge during the year - 1,482 30 1,512
Disposals and transfers - - - -

Closing accumulated depreciation - 4,389 243 4,633
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 378 1,029 482 1,889
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

10 Intangible assets

Particulars

Computer softwares

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount
Additions

Disposals and transfers

1,233

Closing gross carrying amount

1,233

Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation
Amortisation during the period
Disposals and transfers

491
491

Closing accumulated amortisation

982

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019

251

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount
Additions

Disposals and transfers

1,233

Closing gross carrying amount

1,233

Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation
Amortisation during the period
Disposals and transfers

982
251

Closing accumulated amortisation

1,233

Net carrying amount as at Mar 31, 2020

Intangible assets under development

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount
Additions

Disposals and transfers

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2019

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount
Additions

Disposals and transfers

3,400

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2620

3,400

11 Other non-financial assets

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

Asat
March 31, 2019

Prepayments
Others

3,829

2,293
11

Total

3,829

2,304
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India} Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year endad March 31, 2020 {Contd.)
(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
12 Trade payables

. As at As at
Partiplars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali enterprises -
- Total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises 9,367 6,703
and small enterprises
Total 9,367 6,703

The below information as required under the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
{MSMED Act} has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
received from suppliers regarding their status under the said Act as available with the Company.

! As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Particulars

Qutstanding principal amount and interest due to suppliers registered
under MSMED Act and remaining unpaid at the year end:

- Principal amount ' ’ -
- Interest due thereon ~ 5
Interest paid other than under section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers - -
registered under MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the
period.

Interest paid under section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered - -
under MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the period.

Amount of the payment made to suppliers registered under MSMED - -
Act, beyond the appointed day during the period.
Amount of interest due and payable {where the principal has already - -

been paid but interest has not been paid).
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of - -

each accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in - -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are|
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act.




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)

(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

13 Debtsecurities

Particulars Asat Asat

i March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
At amortised cost

Unsecured:

- Commercial paper 2,220,322 1,730,517
Total (A) 2,220,322 1,730,517
Debt securities in India 2,220,322 1,730,517
Debt securities outside India £l -

Total (B) 2,220,322 1,730,517
Terms of repayment schedule of debt securitias:-
31-Mar-20
Instrument with ] Interest Rate Carrying Face Value
repayment terms Maturity Date Range {% amount
p.a.}
Commercial paper
Repayable at Maturity 04-08-2020 7.80% 730,708 750,000
11-06-2020 6.60% 493,684 500,000
22-04-2020 7.20% 995,930 1,000,000
Total 2,220,322 2,250,000
14 Borrowlings {other than debt securities)
Particulars .- Asat
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
At amortised cost
Secured
Loan repayable an demand

-Overdraft from Bank# - 113,542

Interest rate 15 8.14% for Apr 19 to Mar 20 {Interest rate ranges from 7.85%

p.a. to 7.90% p.a for FY 2018-19)

Unsecured

Loans from related parties

Loan from the holding company $ 1,620,000 1,586,400

Interest rate ranges 5.94% p.a, to 7.98% p.a. for Apr 19 to Mar 20 {6.75% p.a.

to 8.20% p.a. far FY 2018-19)

Total {A) 1,620,000 1,699,942

Borrrowings in India 1,620,000 1,699,942

Borrrowings outside India - -

Total (8} 1,620,000 1,699,942

# Fully secured against fixed deposit (note 4)

$ The tenor of the [oan is 36 months from the date of respective disbursement with bullet repayment on maturity

or 2t the option of the borrower,

Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented

Asat As at

paciunam March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

Cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts 344,019 (112,784}

Liquid investments 1,478,479 -

Debt securities - commercial paper {2,220,322) (1,730,517}

Borrowings - Joans from related parties {1,620,000]) (1,586,400}
{Net debt (2,017,824) {3,429,701)

Cash and cash Uiquid Debt securitles - | Borrowings - loans
Particulars equivalents, . commercial from related
investments
overdraft paper parties

Net debt as at April 1, 2018 1,052 - - (1,034,200)
Cash flows movement {net) [113,837) - (1,716,333} {552,200)
Interest expense [545) - {85,388} {75,005)
Interest paid 545 - 71,204 75,005
Other non-cash movements

- Fair value adjustments - - .

- Unamortised discount - - -

- Acquisitions/disposals - - - -
Net debt as at March 31, 2019 (112,784} - {1,730,517) (1,586,400)
Cash flows movement {net} 456,803 1,478,479 (466,062) (33,600)
Interest expense (968) - (218,507) (73,701)
Interest paid 968 - 194,764 73,701
Other non-cash movements

- Fair value adjustments - - - -

- Unamortised discount - - - -

- Acquisitions/disposals - - - -
Net debt as at March 31, 2020 344,019 1,478,479 (2,220,322) 1,620,000;

15 Other financial liabilities
Particulars Asat Bsat
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Employee benefits payable 794 1,200
Total 794 1,200
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.}
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

16 Current tax liabilities {Net)

X As at As at
Hariaers March 31,2020 | _ March 31,2019
Provision for income tax 10,686 6,296
{net of advance tax 277,222, March 31, 2019: 181,164)

Total 10,686 6,296
17 Provisions

i As at As at
Fartictilars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Provision for employee benefits

-Leave obligation 553 554
-Gratuity (Refer Note 30) 1,911 1,306
Provision for property tax* 16,173 16,173
Total 18,637 18,033
* The movement in provision for property tax is as follows:
Particulars e Anlk
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Opening balance 16,173 16,173
Additions during the year - -
Amounts used - -
Unused amounts reversed - -
Closing balance 16,173 16,173
18 Deferred tax assets {Net)
Particulars At A% i
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciation/amortization - property, plant and 2,480 3,651
equipment/ Intangible asset
Employee's benefit obligations 200 350
Provision 140 162
Impairment allowance for loans 160 8,441
Net deferred tax asset/ {liability) 2,980 12,604
19 Other non-financial liabiiities
Particulars s Agat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Statutory dues payable including providend fund and 2,627 2,576
tax deducted at source
Total 2,627 2,576
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.}

20 Equity share capital

[All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated}

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars
Number of Number of
shares Rs. shares Rs.
Authorised shares
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 147,000,000 1,470,000 147,000,000 1,470,000
Issued, subscribed & fully paid-up shares
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 146,284,720 1,462,847 146,284,720 1,462,847
Total 146,284,720 1,462,847 146,284,720 1,462,847
a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.
As at As at
. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars
Number of Number of
shares Rs. shares Rs.
Qutstanding at the beginning of the period/year 146,284,720 1,462,847 146,284,720 1,462,847
Shares issued during the period/year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the period/year 146,284,720 1,462,847 146,284,720 1,462,847

b) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The company has one class of equity share having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for ane vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in the case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their

shareholding.

c) Shares of the Company held by the hoiding company

As at As at
Equity shareholders March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Number of Number of
shares % holding shares % holding
HSBC InvestDirect (India} Limited, the holding 146,284,720 100 146,284,720 100
company & its nominees
d) Details of sharehoiders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company
As at As at
Equity shareholders March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Number of Number of
shares % holding shares % holding
HSBC InvestDirect (India) Limited, the holding 146,284,720 100 146,284,720 100

company & its nominees

For the Company's capital management policy, refer Note 33




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2020 (Contd.)

21 Other equity {All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
A Reserves and surplus

As at As at

Rarticutars March31,2020 | March31,2019

Securities premium

Opening balance 1,934,680 1,934,680
Add : Changes during the year - -
Closing balance 1,934,680 1,934,680
Statutary reserve

Opening balance 339,030 292,856
Add * Changes during the year 52,706 46,174
Closing balance 391,736 339,030

Impairment reserve

Opening balance = -
Add : Changes during the year 23,479 -
Closing balance 23,479 -

General reserve

Opening balance 17,000 17,000
Add : Changes during the year - R
Closing balance 17,000 17,000

Retained earnings

Opening balance : 514,883 304,120
Add : Changes during the year 263,528 230,301
(Less) : Apgropriation in special reserve {52,706) {46,174)
(Less) : Appropriation in impairment reserve {23,479) -
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retoined earnings

(Less) : Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax {585) {131)
Add/(Less) : Transfer to retained earnings of FVOCI equity instruments - 26,767
Closing balance 701,641 514,883
Total Reserves and surplus 3,068,536 2,805,593

B Other reserves

As at As at

jeul
i March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive income

Opening balance - 28,104
Add/{Less) : Changes during the year - {1,337)
Transfer of gain to Retained Earnings - (26,767)
Total other reserves - -
{Total other equity | 3,068,536 | 2,805,593 |

Nature and purpose of other equity

a) Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This is to be utilised in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act,2013.

bj Statutory reserve
Special reserve represents appropriation of retained earning as per Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. No
appropriation of any sum from the statutory reserve fund shall be made by the NBFC except for the purpose as may be specified
by the RBI from time to time.

¢} General reserve
The general reserve is created by transfer from retained earnings as per the provision of the Companies Act. It can be used in
accordance with the grovisions of the Companies Act,

d) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to shareholders.

e} Impairment reserve
As per circular number RBI/2019-20/170 dated March 13, 2020, an Impairment Reserve is created when impairment allowance (
under Ind AS 109 is lower than the pravisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning}, the company shall ||

appropriate the difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate Impairment Reserve. As per the circular, the N\ ';'

talance in the Impairment Reserve shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital.

f) FVOCI equity investments
The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other
comprehensive income. These changes are accumulatetl within the FVOCI equity investments reserve within equity. The
Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the ralevant equity securities are derecognised
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

22{a) Interest income
Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
On financial assets measured at Amortised costs:
Interest on loans 666,101 494,375
Interest on deposits with banks 22,574 18,415
Total 688,675 512,790
22{b) Net gain on fair value changes
Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Others
Net Gain/{loss) on financial instrument at fair
value through profit or loss 6,836 23
Total {A) 6,836 23
Fair Value changes:
Realised 2,293 23
Unrealised 4,543 -
Total (B) 6,836 23
23 Other income

Particulars

Mar 31, 2020

Mar 31, 2019

interest on income tax refund 23,723 72,244
Sundry balance written back - 1,427
Miscellaneous income 558 395
Total 24,281 74,066
24 Finance costs
Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Bank overdraft 968 545
Inter corporate deposits 73,701 75,005
Commercial Papers 218,507 85,388
Other Borrowing Costs 2,543 -
Tota! 295,719 160,938
25 Employee benefits expenses
Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Salaries and wages 35,591 34,712
Contribution to provident and other funds {Refer note 30) 1,654 1,604
Gratuity (Refer note 30) 1,129 1,119
Staff welfare expenses 2,180 1,420
Total 40,554 38,855
26 Impairment on financial instruments
Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2015
On financial instruments measured at Amortised cost:
Loans 28,384) 11,167
Total 28,384) 11,167
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HSBC InvestDirect Financiai Services (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
27 Other expenses

Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Rent {Refer Note {c) below] 11,790 12,573
Rates and taxes 1,236 1,794
Repairs and maintenance

- Others 8,743 7,943
Insurance charges 956 565
Travelling and conveyance 756 1,016
Printing and stationery 87 155
Communication costs 434 687
Advertisement and business promotion B 16
Professional fees 10,151 6,760
Directors' sitting fees 825 675
Licence and fees 478 384
Stamping and Franking Charges 150 6,111
Membership and Subscription 736 702
Storage Charges 3,054 3,045
Contribution for corporate social responsibility 5,466 4,975
(CSR} [Refer Note (b) below]
Auditors' remuneration [Refer Note (a) below] 6,014 3,032
Miscellaneous expenses 418 148
Total 51,294 50,581

a) 8reakup of Auditors' remuneration
Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Audit fees 3,029 2,889
Other services 2,800 -
Certification 65 65
Out-of-pocket expenses 120 78
Total 6,014 3,032
b} Contribution for corporate social responsibllity (CSR)

Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Amount reguired to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 5,466 4,971
Amount spent during the year on:

(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset -

(i) On purposes other than (i) above 5,466 4,975
Total 5,466 4,975

c) Short - term lease disclosures

The company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease
payment associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

The company incurred INR 11,790 (in 000's) for the year ended March 31, 2020 towards expense relating to

short-term lease.

Lease contracts entered by the company majorly pertains for office space taken on lease to conduct its
business in the ordinary course by using the existing infrastructure and utilities provided in the building.
The company does not have any lease restrictions and commitments towards variable rent as per the

contract.




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {india} Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.;

28 Income tax expenses

{All amaunts in INR thousands, uniess otherwise stated}

a) The components of income tax exgense for the period ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are

. Year ended Year ended
AEieiary March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current tax 85,693 96,921
Deferred tax 9,624 {2,385)
Sub-totat 95,317 94,536
Deferred tax - Other comprehensive income (197} (56)
Total 95,120 94,480

b) Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax charge shown in the Statement of Profit and Loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at India corporate
tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31 2020

and March 31, 2019 is, as follows:

PartiTilars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Accounting profit before tax 358,845 324,837
Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (previous year 29.12%) 90,321 94,592
Tax effect of the amaount which are not taxable in calculating taxable income :

- Expenses disallowed 1,443 1,598
Income not subject to tax (1,143) {587)
{Excess)/ Short provision for tax of earlier years 1,597 (1,135)

- Dther 3,099 68

Income tax expense at effective tax rate 95,317 94,536
Effective tax rate 26.56% 25.10%
¢) Deferred tax assets/liabilities
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to the betow items and corresponding movement in deferred tax liabilities / arsets:
(Charged)/ credited to | {Charged}/ credited As at
Parti s Asat March 31,2002 profit and loss to OC| March 31, 2020
Deferred tax liability :
Property, plant and equipment =
Deferred tax asset :
Cepreciation/amortization - property, plant and 3,651 {1,171) - 2,480
equipment/ Intangible asset
Employee's benefit obligations 350 {150) 200
Provision 162 (22} 140
Impairment allowance for financial assets 8,441 (8,281} - 160
Net deferred tax asset/ {liability) 12,604 {9,624) - 2,980
(Charged)/ credited to | {Charged)/ credited As at
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 ‘ profit and loss to OCI March 31, 2019
Deferred tax asset :
Depreciation/amortization - property, plant and 4,533 (932} 3,651
equipment/ Intangible asset
Employee's benefit obligations 331 19 350
Provision 166 {4) 162
Impairment allowance for foans 5,139 3,302 8,441
Net deferred tax asset/ {liabllity} 10,219 2,385 - 12,604
d) Tax losses
Particulars Assesment Year Expiry As at As at
Assessment Year March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Unused Short term capital losses for which no 2014-15 2022-23 20,879 20,902
deferred tax asset has been recognised
Potential tax benefit at March 31 2020: 25.17%, 5,255 6,087
March 31, 2019: 29.12%

29 Contingent liabilities and commitments {to the extent not provided for)

Pravident Fund

The Honourable Supreme Court has recently provided a judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund
Cormmissoner (i) West Bengal” and the related circular {Circular No. C-1/1(33}2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the
Employees’ Prowident Fund Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain aliowances from the definiticn of "basic wages" of the relevant
employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.

In the assessment of the Management, the aforesaid matter
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.}

30 Employee benefit obligations
a) Defined contribution plans
The Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss towards contribution to defined contribution plans

which are included under contribution to provident and other funds:

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Provident fund 1,575 1,508
Others 79 96

b) Defined benefit plans
The Company has a detined benefit plan tor post-employment benetits in the torm ot Gratuity. The Company contributes to the “Gratuity

Trust". Every employee is entitied to a benefit equivalent to thirty days salary last drawn for each completed year of service. The same is
payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after four years and ane hundred

ninety days of continuous service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status

and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

i) Balance Sheet

Present value of | Fair value of plan
o Net amount
obligation assets
As at April 1, 2018 7,961 6,425 1,536
Current service cost 1,061 - 1,061
Interest expense/{income) 502 444 58
Total amount recognised in Profit and Loss 1,563 444 1,118
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest expense/income - 32 {32)
Actuarial loss / (gain} arising from change in financial assumptions 128 - 128
Actuarial loss / {gain} arising on account of experience changes 91 - 91
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 219 32 187
Employer contributions - 1,536 [1,536)
Benefit payments {2,720) {2,720) -
As at March 31, 2019 7,023 5,717 1,306
Current service cost 1,081 - 1,081
Interest expense/{income) S13 465 48
Total amount recognised in Profit and Lass 1,594 465 1,129
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest expense/income . 13 {13)
Actuarial loss / {gain) arising from change in financial assurptions 486 = 486
Actuarial foss / {gain) arising on account of experience changes 309 - 309
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 795 13 782
Employer contributions - 1,306 {1,306)
Benefit payments - - -
As at March 31, 2020 9,412 7,501 1,911
) As at As at
IR March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Present value of plan liabilities 9,412 7,023
Fair value of plan assets 7,501 5,717
Plan liability net of plan assets 1,911 1,306
i) Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Employee Benefit Expenses:
Current service cost 1,081 1,061
Total 1,081 1,061
Finance cost 48 58
Net impact-on the profit before tax 1,129 1,119 /-
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit Hiability: ( 3-(, Chartered AC ounian’is /5
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest expense/income {13) {32) \\.\ NG 3 . N v
Acturial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 486 128 e LRI 7
Acturial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes 309 91 = Mumbst )
Net impact on the other comprehensive income before tax 782 187 o
iii) Defined benefit plans assets
j As at As at

Category of assets (% allocation) March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
- Insurer Managed Fund (HOFC Group Unit link plan - Option B) 100%, 100%
Total \ 100% 100%




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India} Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.,
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

v} Actuarial assumptions
With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the balance sheet,
assumptions under [nd AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Discount rate 6.4% 7.3%
Salary escalation rate* 7.0% 7.0%
* takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors
v) Demographic assumptions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Mortality rate Lives Mortality  [Indian Assured
{2006-08} Lives Mortality
Uitimate {2006-08) Ultimate
Withdrawal rate 10% 10%!
vi} Sensitivity
Change in .
assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
As at March 31, 2020
Increase or
Decrease by Increase/ (Decrease)
Discount rate 0.5% (276) 291
Salary escalation rate 0.5% 289 (276)
Change in .
assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
As at March 31, 2019
Increase or
Decrease by Increase/ (Decrease}
Discount rate 0.5% {212) 224
Salary escalation rate 0.5% 224 {213)

Ine above SeNsitivity analyses are based On a change In an assumplion wnile NoIQING atl other assumptions CoNstant. (n pracuce, this (s
untikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
prejected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period} has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability
recagnised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

vii) Maturity {undiscounted)
The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end as follows:

] As at As at
Particolir March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
ist Following Year 946 638
2nd Following Year 996 817
3rd Following Year 2,652 861
4th Following Year 1,030 2,201
Sth Following Year 1,164 975
Sum of 6 to 10 6,892 6,453

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7 years (previous year - 7 years}

vili) Risk Exposure

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the
defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.
Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,
disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the

combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial
analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs fess per year as compared to a long service employee.
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.}
{Alt amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

31 Segment information

The Company is domiciled in India. The Company is engaged in business of financing by way of loans (non banking
financial services), which is considered to be only reportable segment {in accordance with Ind AS 108).

a) Segment revenue
The Company operates as a single segment. The segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the
statement of profit and loss.

Particuiars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Segment revenue

- India 723,895 514,828
- Qutside India - R
Total 723,895 514,828

There is no party which individually contributes more than 10% of total operating revenue of the Company.

b) Segment assets and segment liabilities

As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Segment assets - India 8,413,816 7,733,707
Segment liabilities - India 3,882,433 3,465,267
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HSBC investDirect Financial Services {India) Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.}

32 Earnings per share {EPS}

a) Computation of basic & diluted earnings per share is given below:

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Mar 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019
Basic & Diluted earnings per share

Net profit after tax availabie for equity shareholders (A) (Rs. In thousands) 263,528 230,301
Weighted average number of equity shares {B) 146,284,720 146,284,720
Basic & Diluted earnings per share (A/B) (Rs.) 1.80 1.57
Nominai value per share (Rs.) 10 10

33 Capital management

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting capital
adequacy requirements of the local banking supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RB!). The adequacy of the Company’s capital is
monitored using, amongst other measures, the regulations issued by RBI. Company has complied in full with all its externally
imposed capital requirements over the reported period. The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy
are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the
objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

Regulatory Capital
Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR): g As St
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Tier | capital 4,501,524 4,255,585
Tier It capital 602 28,986
Total capital 4,502,126 4,284,571
Risk weighted assets 7,654,679, 8,636,617
CRAR (%) 58.82% 49.61%
CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 58.81% 48.27%
CRAR - Tier Il capital {%) 0.01% 0.34%

Amount of subordinated debt considered as Tier |i capital
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.}

34 Maturity analysis of assets and fiabilities

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2015
Particulars
Within 12 months|After 12 months| Total Within 12 months|After 12 months Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 344,019 - 344,019 758 - 758
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 263,108 - 263,108 262,992 - 262,992
lnvestments = 1,478,479 1,478,479 = = -
Loans 3,829,077 2,190,618 6,019,694 5,204,739 2,061,934 7,266,673
Other financial assets 154,729 - 154,729 4,579 - 4,579
Total! financial assets {A) 4,590,933 3,669,095 8,260,029 5,473,068 2,061,934 7,535,002
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) 141,689 141,689 - 180,711 180,711
Deferred tax assets {Net} 2,980 2,980 - 12,604 12,604
Property, plant and equipment - 1,889 1,889 - 2,835 2,835
Intangible assets - - - 251 251
Intangible assets under development - 3,400 3,400 - - -
Other non-financial assets 3,829 - 3,829 2,304 - 2,304
Total Non-financial assets (B) 3,829 149,958 153,787 2,304 196,401 198,705
Total assets (C = A+B) 4,594,762 3,819,053 8,413,816 5,475,372 2,258,335 7,733,707
Financial liabilities
Payables
{l) Trade payables

(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises - E - = -

(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises 9,367 . 9,367 6,703 - 6,703
Debt securities 2,220,322 = 2,220,322 1,730,517 - 1,730,517
Barrowings {other than debt securities) - 1,620,000 1,620,000 1,699,942 - 1,699,942
Other financial liabilities 794 - 794 1,200 - 1,200
Total financial liabilities {D} 2,230,483 1,620,000 3,850,483 3,438,362 - 3,438,362
Non-financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities {Net) 10,686 - 10,686 6,296 - 6,296
Provisions 2,464 16,173 18,637 1,860 16,173 18,033
Other non-financial liabilities 2,627 - 2,627 2,576 - 2,576
Total Non-financial liabilities (E) 15,777 16,173 31,950 10,732 16,173 26,905
Total liabilites (F = D+E) 2,246,260 1,636,173 3,882,433 3,449,094 16,173 3,465,267
Net (C-F) 2,348,502 2,182,880 4,531,383 2,026,278 2,242,162 4,268,440




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)

35 Fair value measurement

a)

Financial Instruments by Category

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2A (v} to the

financial statements.

{(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Fair value Fair value | Amortised Fair value Fair value | Amortised
through through OCi cost through through OCI cost

Profit or Loss

Profit or Loss

Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents - - 344,019 - - 758
Bank balance other than cash and cash - - 263,108 - - 262,992
equivalents

Loans - - 6,019,694 - - 7,266,673
Investments 1,478,479 - - - - -
Other financial assets - - 154,729 - - 4,579
Total Fianancial Assets 1,478,479 - 6,781,550 - - 7,535,002
Financial Liabilities:

Trade payables = = 9,367 5 N 6,703
Debt securities - - 2,220,322 - - 1,730,517
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - - 1,620,000 - - 1,699,942
Other financial liabilities - - 794 - - 1,200
Total Financial Liabilities - - 3,850,483 - - 3,438,362




HSBC InvestDirect Financlal Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

b} Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financiat instruments that are {a) recognised and measured at
fair value and {b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability
of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standard.

The hierarchies used are as follows:
Level 1. Hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The quoted equity securities are valued at quoted prices as per the stock
exchange.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,

the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on aobservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3

As at March 31, 2020

Assets and liabilities measured at

amortised cost for which fair values are Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
disclosed

Financial assets

Loan against financial securities {LAS) 5 - - 6,007,451 6,007,451
Total financial assets - - 6,007,451 6,007,451
As at March 31, 2019

Assets and ltabilities measured at

amortised cost for which fair values are Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
disclosed

Financial assets

Loan against financial securities (LAS) 5 - - 7,259,186 7,259,186
Total financial assets - - 7,259,186 7,259,186

i) There are no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year
ii) The Company's palicy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period

<

d

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial assets by valuation technique

The fair value of financial instruments are classified into three categories i.e. Level 1, 2 or 3 depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities {level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (levet 3 measurements),

Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an arderly transaction in the principal market at the measurement
date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

Specific valuation techniques used ta value financial instruments include:
- The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis and the discount rates used were adjusted for
counterparty or own credit risk.

Vaiuation process
The credit risk management team performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
values. This team reports directly to the CRO and these valuations are reviewed by CFO.

The main leve! 3 inputs for loans against financial securities are discount rates, which are determined using weighted-average interest rates of loans
sanctioned in March 2020 and March 2018.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Carrying Value | Fair Value |Carrying Value| Fair Value
Financial assets
Loan against financial securities (LAS) 6,019,694 6,007,451 7,266,673 7,259,186
Total financial assets 6,019,694 6,007,451 7,266,673 7,259,186

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of
their fair value. Such instruments include, cash and bank balances, security deposits, other financial assets, trade and other payables, other financial liabilities,
debt securities and borrowings. Such amounts have been classified as Level 3.
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, uniess otherwise stated)

36 Financial risk management
The company’s activities expose it to market risk, liguidity risk and credit risk.

The company’s risk management is carried out by the Company's Risk Management team (led by a CRO} under policies approved by the board of
directors.

The Company has a loan policy, which provides guidances for overall risk management, specifically credit risk and market risk. There is alsc an interest
rate policy to manage interest rate risk and liguidity risk.

36.1 Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the company’s customers, clients or market counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual
obligations to the company. Credit risk arises mainly from loans and advances, and loan commitments arising from such lending activities.

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the company’s business; management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. The credit risk
management and control are centralised in a credit risk management team which reports in to the CRO. Assessment of lending proposals includes
assessment of borrower's background; financial strength and leverage; operational & financial performance track record; cash flows; valuation of
collateral and similar parameters.

The Company offers a single product which is lending agatnst financial securities {LAS). it is more than 100% secured product with regulatery risk weight
assigned of 100%. A real-time risk monitoring system is put in place to assist the risk team to initiate the necessary margin call triggers and take necessary
acticn including liguidation of collaterals to protect against the probable bad debts.

{a) Loans and advances {inci. loan it and guar )
The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of models, as the exposure varies with changes in
market conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the
likelihcod of defaults cccurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default correlations between counterparties, The Company measures credit risk using
Probability of Default {PD), Exposure at Default {EAD) and Loss Given Default {LGD). This is similar to the approach used for the purposes of measuring
Expected Credit Loss {ECL) under Ind AS 109. Refer to note 36.1{b) for more details.

Other financial assets

The Company has credit risk exposure in cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, and other financial assets. Cash and cash equivaients and bank
deposits are held with only high rated banks/finarcial institutions onty, therefore credit risk is perceived to be low.

Other financial assets pertain to security deposits for rented premises, margin deposit. The Company does not perceive any significant decline in credit
risk of the lessors and hence expected probability of default is considered as low.

Customer Risk Rating {CRR)

The Company uses internal CRR rating model that enables its assessment of the probability of default of individual counterparties. The internal CRR is
tailored to the various categories of counterparty. Borrower and loan specific information collected at the time of application (such as disposable income,
and level of collateral) is fed into this rating model. This is supplemented with external data such as credit bureau scoring information on individual
borrowers.

The internal CRR is calibrated such that the risk of default increases exponentially at each higher CRR.

The Company has its own internal credit rating framework that is uses for rating of the borrowers at the time of sanction and during the annual re-rating
exercise. Any other known information about the borrower which impacts their creditworthiness — such as unemployment and previous delinguency
history — is also incorporated into the annual re-rating exercise. Based on the analysis done by the Company, the parameters in the rating model
{borrower strength, aperating risk, market risk, financials, etc.) are given a score between 1 (highest) to 10 {fowest). The internal rating is based on the
final score derived fram the credit rating model.

Refer to table below for details:

Internal score Description of the grade
0.4,1.4,1.2 Minimum Default Risk
2.1, 2.2 Low Default Risk
3.1,3.2,3.3 Satisfactory Default Risk
4.3,4.2,43 Fair Default Risk
5.1,5.2,5.3 Maoderate Default Risk
6.1,6.2 Significant Default Risk
71,72 High Default Risk
81,8283 Special Management
8,10 Default
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, uniess otherwise stated)

{b} Expected credit loss measurement
{nd AS 1085 outlines a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:
- A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in ‘Stage 1’ and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the
Company.
- If a significant increase in credit risk {*SICR’} since inltial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to
be credit-impaired. Please refer to note 36.1({b)(i} for a description of how the Company determines when a significant increase in credit risk has
- If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to 'Stage 3'. Please refer to note 36.1(b)(ii) for a description of how
the Company defines credit-impaired and default.
- Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit Iosses that result from default
events possible within the next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.
Please refer to note 36.1{b)(iv) for a description of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring the ECL.
- A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with Ind AS 109 is that it should consider forward-looking information. Note 36.1{b)(v) includes an
explanation of how the Company has incorporated this in its ECL models.
The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under Ind AS 109 {other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets):

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

»

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

|
-
(initial recognition) (Significant increase in credit risk (Credit-impaired assets}
| since initial recognition)

12-month expected credit losses | Lifetime expected credit losses | Lifetime expected credit losses
|

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Company in addressing the requirements of the standard are giscussed below:

{i) Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)
The Company considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk when one or more of the following guantitative,
qualitative or backstop criteria have been met:
Quantitative criteria:
The credit risk on a financial asset of the Company are assumed to have increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due. Accordingly, the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 2, if on the reporting date, it has been more than 30 days past
due. it may be kept in mind that the Company's Risk Management team can initiate sale of securities through invocation, to regularise the contractual
payments due to the Company.

Qualitative criteria:

For all financral instruments held by the Company, if the borrower is on the Watch, Worry, Monitor list and/or the instrument meets one or more of the
following criteria:

- Significant adverse changes in business, financial and/or economic conditions in which the borrower operates

- Signiftcant change in collateral value {secured facilities only) which is expected to increase risk of default

- Early signs of cash flow/liquidity problems such as delay in servicing of trade creditors/loans

- The CRR of the borrower deteriorates to Significant Default Risk {internal score: 6.1, 6.2) / High Default Risk (internal score: 7.1, 7.2)

The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-looking information (refer to note 36.1({b}{v) for further information} and is performed on a monthly basis
at a portfolio level. The criteria used to identify SICR are monitored and reviewed periodically for appropriateness by the independent Risk Management
team.

Backstop

The Company enjoys more than 100% collateral cover. There is a theoretical possibility that factors beyond the control of the Risk Management team
may impact the realisability of security cover. Amongst other things, some such factors are listed below:

- Injunction on borrower, which prevents the Company from selling the collateral cover

- Regulatory adwise on no szle of secunities

- Underlying collateral security is locked on the lower circuit ar have only sellers in the stocks
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless ctherwise stated)

{ii) Definition of default and credit-impaired assets
Borrowers for whom the CRR has deteriorated to Special Management (internal score: 8.1, 8.2, .3) / Default {internal score: 9, 10), are considered to be
credit-impaired.
In the SICR cection above, the potentia. impact of factors beyond the control of the Risk Management team has been enumerated. Apart from the
uncontroliable factors, the Company does not foresee a scenano where the financial instruments would be credit-impaired, by virtue of one or more of
the foliowing criteria:
- The Company is conservative in its’ customer selection criteria
- The Company observes an internal rating criteria before onboarding new customers and before renewing limits for existing customers
- The Company accepts collateral cover only for eligible securities. The criteria for determining eligible securities is described in the loan policy for each
category of collaterai {equity shares, mutua: funds, bonds etc.}
- In the past 3 years, HIFSL has not witnessed any Credit defaults or Credit losses on the LAS as a product. All loans are Stage 1 assets with a satisfactory
historical repayment behavior.
- The ioans offered have a contractual tenor of 12-36 rnonths. Lozans with a contractual tenor of more than 12 months are subject to annual review and
approval. Al the lnans have a put/call option for the borrower/iender respectively.
- Al financial collateral are valued on a continuing basis vis-a-wis the loan exposure for any shortfall which are required to be regularised in a maximum of
7 working day’s t me. Else, the financial collateral are subgect to sett off.
- Any financial coltsteral showing quality deterioration is required to be swapped with better quality security as advised by Risk Management team.
- Al! joans are demand loans recallable with a short notice.

{ili} Upgradation from higher stage to lower stage
For upgradation from higher stage to lower stage (i.e. to have cured):
Loan and advances 1s not moved from higher stage to lower stage immediately after payment of overdue amount, following caoling off period is apphed:

From Stage 2 to Stage 1
- Contractual pavmentis are in lower than 30 days past due for at least six months

This period ef six months has been determined based on an analysis which considers the likelihood of 2 financial instrument returning to default status
after cure using different possible cure defimitions.

{iv) Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL} is measured cn either a 12-month {12M) or Lifetime basis depending on whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the
Probability of Default {PD;}, Exposure at Default (EAD}, and Loss Given Defauit (LGD), defined as foliows:

- The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation {as per “Definition of defauit and credit-impaired” above), either
aver the next 12 months (12M PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD} of the obligation.

- EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12 months {12M EAD) or over the remaining
lifetime {Lifetime EAD). For example, for a revolving commitment, the Company includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that is
expected to be drawn up 1o the current contractual limit by the time of defauit, should it occur.

- Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Company's expectation of the extent of loss on 2 defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type
and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage icss per unit of exposure at the time of
default (EAD). LGD 1s calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss expected tc be made if the defauht occurs
in the next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the
foan.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month and for each individual exposure or collective segment. These three
componerits are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This
effectively calculates an ECL for each future month, which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL
calculation is the anigmal effactive interest rate or an approximation thereof.

Forward-looking economic infarmation is also included in determining the PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to note 36.1(b)(v) for an explanation of forward-
looking information and its inciusion in ECL calculations.
There have been no significant changes ir estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the reporting period

{v) Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL model
The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-looking information. All loans are Stage 1 assets with a satisfactory historical repayment behaviour. The
Company’s LAS portfolio comgrises highly liquid financial coliateral which are valued on a continuing basis vis-a-vis the loan exposure for any shortfall
which are reauired to be regufarised in a maximum of 7 working day's time. Else, the financial coiiateral are subject to sell off.
In the SICR section above, the potential impact of factors beyond the control of the Risk Management team has been enumerated. Apart frum the
uncontroilable factors, it is unlikely that any cf the Stage 1 assets would move to Stage 2.

Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated within the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory, legislative or political
changes, which are likely to culminate into reduction in realisabie value of collatera' securities are built in through the annuart stress-testing exercise
(which is a regulatory requirement). The portfolio is stress-tested under various scenarios to arrive at the impact analysis on the loan portfolio, but are
not deemed to have a material impact and therefore n ad;ustment has been made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored for
appropriateness on an annual basis. e Cha
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.}
{All amounts in INR thousands, uniess otherwise stated}

{vi) Financial assets measured on a collective basis
£CL is calculated on a collective basis for the entire LAS porfolio.

{vii} Account review method
Drawing power ratio is the percentage of loan over the net value of securities.

Drawing Power Ratio:  (Value of Secunity after hatreut) * 100

Loan Outstanding

On a daily basis, the risk report will be generated taking the latest end of day price and DP ratio is ascertained. Where the DP ratio is less than 95%, the
margin call will be raised to customer. in case of extreme fall in the market, an intraday risk report is prepared and necessary actions are taken for margin

shortfall by credit risk team.
Based on Drawing Power Ratio, the loans would be categorized as follows:

Margin Call Drawlng Power [ratio) Category Course of Time Lines for Time Lines for
Action action — Equity action - Other
shares * Securities **
Not applicable 95% - 100% (>97% for Securities|Normal Loans |Shortfall notice [Within 7  (Seven)|No action
with security portfolio LTV of working Days failing|required.
greater than equal to 80% ) which positions will

be squared off

Margin Call 85 - 95 % (97% for Securities with(Y Category|Shortfall notice |7 (Seven) Working|7 {Seven)
security portfolio LTV of greater|Loans Days to top the|Working Days to
than equal to 80%) margins failing which|top the Margins

positions  will  belfailing which
squared off. positicns will be
squared off.

Square off < 85 % (94% for securities with|YY Category|Square off after|immediate Square off(immediate
security portfolio LTV of greater|Loans appropriate after gving|Square off after
than equal to 80%) intimation to|appropriate giving

customer. intimation  to  the|appropriate
borrower. intimation to the
borrower.

* For any high risk lending against equity shares or mutual funds {for e.g. single stock lending, promoter lending, etc.) ¢case, the stringent timeline of five
working days for the Category “Y” shartfall shall apply.

** Any mixed collateral securities portfolio with more than 65% equity shares composition will be considered as a 100% equity portfolic for Margin Call
management and pracess. All regularization timelines as applicable for a 100% Equity Shares portfolio shall apply to such a portfolio.

{c) Credit risk exposure
{i) Maximum exposure to credit risk ~ Financial instruments subject to impairment

The following table contains an analysis of the credit risk exposure of firancial instruments for which an ECL allowance is recognised. The gross carrying
amount of financial assets below also represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk on these assets.

As at March 31, 2020

Asset group Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
Minimum Default Risk = - - -
Low Defaulit Risk - - = -
Satisfactory Default Risk 5,949,803 - - 5,949,803
Fair Default Risk 70,493 - - 70,493

Moderate Defauit Risk - - - -
Significant Default Risk - = 3 .
High Default Risk - - . .
Specal Management - =2 - .
Default - - = -
Non- performing
Individually impaired - - - _

Total Total 6,020,296 - - 6,020,296

Loan against financial securities (LAS)




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Asset group Internal rating grade Total

Performing
Minimum Default Risk - - - N
Low Default Risk - - o -
Satisfactory Defauit Risk 7,235,413 - - 7,235,413
Fair Default Risk 60,246 - - 60,246
Moderate Default Risk - - - -
Significant Default Risk - - - -
High Default Risk - . - -
Special Management - - - P
Default - - = -
Non- performing
Individually impaired - - - =
Total Total 7,295,659 - - 7,295,659

Loan against financial securities {LAS)

{ii) Collateral
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering the
acceotability and valuation of each type of collateral.
The Company has internal paolicies on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The Company prepares 3 valuation of the
callateral obtained as part of the loan origination process. This assessment is reviewed periodically. The principal collateral types are:
- Listed stocks
- Units of mutual funds {both equity & debt schemes including Fixed Maturity Plans)
- Bonds {sovereign and corporate)
The fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimury, at inception and re-assessed on a regular basis.

As per the contractual terms, collateral is permitted to be sold on event of default {Refer Note 36.1(b}){vii))

Impairment Carrying amount Fair value of
Gross exposure &

Particulars to credit risk allowance coliateral held
As at March 31, 2020
- Loan against financial securities (LAS) 6,020,296 (602) 6,019,694 13,276,371
Total 6,020,296 (602) 6,019,694 13,276,371
As at March 31, 2019
- Loan against financial securities (LAS) 7,295,659 (28,986) 7,266,673 18,902,838
Total 7,295,659 (28,986) 7,266,673 18,902,838

* Impairment allowance: 0.01% for March 31, 2020; 0.40% for March 31, 2019

{iii) Loss aliowance
The loss allowance recognised in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described below:
- Transfers between stages due to financial instruments experiencing significant increases {or decreases) of credit risk in the period;
- Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well as reieases for financial instruments de-recognised in the
pericd;

- Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period, arising from regular refreshing of inputs to models;

- impacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and assumptions;

- Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present value basis;

- Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances related to assets that were written off during the period {see note 36.1(c}).
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)
{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
An analysis of change in the gross carrying amount of the loan portfolio and corresponding loss allowance:
The following table further explains changes in the gross carrying amount of the loan portfolio to help explain their significance to the changes in the loss
allawance tor the same portfolio as discussed below:

Asset group Particulars Stage 1 L en::;:"; rch 31, 2°2°Stage 3 Total
Opening balance 7,295,659 - - 7,295,659
Loans given 5,598,026 - - 5,598,026
Loan against financial securities {LAS) |Loans repaid (including partial {6,873,389) - - {6,873,389)
repayments)
Closing balance 5,020h2’96 - - 6,020,296
Asset group Particulars renentediNach S1p2089 Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Opening balance 4,481,300 - - 4,481,300
Loans given 7,819,657 - - 7,819,657
Loan against financial securities {LAS) |Loans repaid (including partial {5,005,298) - - {5,005,298})
repayments)
Closing balance 7,295,659 - - 7,295,659

The following table explains the changes in the loss allowance between the beginning and at the end of the annual period due to various factors:

. Year ended March 31, 2020
Asset group Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Opening balance 28,986 - - 28,986
Loans given 560 - - 560
Loans repaid {including partial {756) - - (756)
Loan against financial securities (LAS) {repayments)
Net remeasurement of loss (28,188) - - {28,188)
alilowance
Closing balance 602 - - 602
. Year ended March 31, 2019
Asset group Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Opening balance 17,819 - - 17,819
Loans given 31,278 - - 31,278
Loan against financial securities {LAS) |Loans repaid {including partial (20,111) - - {20,111}
repayments)
Closing balance 28,986 - - 28,986

(d) Write-off policy
Margin calls letters are sent to customers whenever there is margin shortfall. In case customer fails to timely top-up the margins and brings it to
approved levels, sale of the securities will be initiated by Relationship Managers. Pledge / Lien an Stocks / Other Security will be invoked fully or partially
and same will be liquidated to clear the margin shortfall and other dues, if any. in the event of shortfall of securities to cover the outstanding dues, the
Cempany shall initiate appropriate legal action against the customer based on the documentation executed with the customer. Excess fund balance, if
any, will be transferred to customer’s registered bank account with HIFSL and excess securities will be freed from pledge/lien, past clearing of dues on the
account.

The Company may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcement activity. The outstanding contractual amounts of such assets written off
during the period ended March 31, 2020 was NIL {(March 31, 2019 -NIL).

{e) Concentration of credit risk

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk to specific industry sectors and/or regions. For conentrations of credit risk to customers. For
concentration of credit risk to customers, refer note 40.

(f) Significant estimates and judgements

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 36.1.
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.|

36.2 Liquidity risk and funding management

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless ctherwise stated)

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adeguate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Company
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

a) Financing arrangements

The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

-Expiring beyond one year (bank loans}

1,376,980

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Floating rate
-Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities, with renewal option} 1,297,038

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

b} Maturity of financial assets and financial liabilities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the year end. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
The Company does not have any derivative financial liabilities.

As at March 31, 2020

Within 12 months After 12 months
Contractual maturities of financial assets |Carrying Lessthan3 | 3months to | 6 monthsto 1| Betweenland3 | Between3and5 Total
and financlal liabilities Amount months & months year years years
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 344,018 344,023 - - - 344,023
8ank balance other than cash and cash 263,108 233,121 4 30,008 ) ) 263,133
equivalents above
Loans 6,015,554 1,117,079 784,748 2,289,470 1,356,029 1,151,737 6,699,063
Investments 1,478,479 - - - o 1,478,473 1,478,479
QOthey financial assets 154,729 150,150 - 4,579 - - 154,729
Total assets 8,260,029 1,844,373 784,752 2,324,057 1,356,029 2,630,216 8,939,427
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 9,367 5,203 3,784 380 - 9,367
Debt securities 2,220,322 1,500,000 750,000 - - 2,250,000
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,620,000 30,413 30,747 60,826 1,864,306 1,986,292
Other financial liabilities 794 - - 794 - 794
Total liabilities 3,850,483 1,535,616 784,531 62,000 1,864,306 - 4,246,453
As at March 31, 2019

Within 12 months After 12 months
Contractual maturities of financial assets |Carrying Lessthan3 | 3monthsto | 6 monthsto 1| Betweenland3 Between 3 and 5
and financial liabilities Amount months 6 months year years years Tetal
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 758 758 - - - - 758
aan!( balance other than cash and cash 262,092 234,369 S67 31,116 ) ) 266,052
equivalents above
Loans 7,266,673 557,211 1,427,789 3,716,358 1,959,161 403,875 8,064,394
Investments = - 2 5 = - -
Other financial assets 4,579 4,579 - - - - 4,579
Total assets 7,535,002 796,917 1,428,356 3,747,474 1,959,161 403,875 8,335,783
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 6,703 1,620 3,853 1,130 - = 6,703
Debt securities 1,730,517 1,750,000 - - - - 1,750,000
Barrowings {other than debt securities} 1,699,942 140,437 27,150 1,640,190 - - 1,807,817
Other financial liabilities 1,200 - - 1,200 - - 1,200
Total liabilities 3,438,362 1,892,057 31,143 1,642,520 - - 3,565,720
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
36.3 Market Risk

Market risk is that the fair value or future cash flows of financiat instruments wilt fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and price movements.

a) Interest rate risk - fending
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments.
The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from lending with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. As at
March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, the Company’s lending portfolio at variable rate are denominated in Indian Rupeas.

i) interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company’s lending portfolio to interest rate changes at the ead of the repoiting periods/years are as follows:
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Variable rate loans* 6,020,256 7,295,659
Fixed rate loans - -
[Total 6,020,296 7,295,659

* The toan amounts are the grass carrying value

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following variable rate loan (asset) outstanding:

As at March 31, 2020 Weighted average Balance % of total loans
interest rate
Loans 8.53%) 5,020,296 100%)
Wel
As at March 31, 2019 elghted average Balance % of total loans
interest rate
Loans 8.85% 7,295,659 100%

i} Sensitivity
Profit and loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income from vaniable rate Ioans as a resuit of changes in interest rates.

Particulars Impact on profit after tax
and equity
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Interest rates — increase by 18 {March 31,

2018: 25) basis points 8,016 13801
Interest rates — decrease by 18 {(March 31,

2018: 25) basis points {8,016} {12,801)

The sensitivity is derived holding all other variables constant
b) interest rate risk exposure - borrowings

i} Interest rate risk exposure - borrowings

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing portfolio to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting periods/years are as follows:

Particulars Year ended As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Overdraft from Bank - 113,542
Loan from the holding company 1,620,000 1,586,400
Variable rate loans 1,620,000 1,699,942
Commercial papers 2,220,322 1,730,517
Fixed rate loans 2,220,322 1,730,517
Total 3,840,322 3,430,459

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following variable rate barrowings cutstanding:

As at March 31,2020 Walalted average Balance % of total loans
interest rate

Borrowings {other than debt securities) 7.53%| 1,620,000 42%)

As at March 31, 2019 We.lghted average Balance % of total loans
interest rate

Borrowings {other than debt securities) 6.87%| 1,699,942 50%
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to flnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)

{All amounts in INR thausands, unless otherwise stated)

ii) Sensitivity

Profit and toss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income from variable rate loans as a result of changes in interest rates.

Particulars Impact on profit after tax and egquity
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Interest rates — increase by 18 (March 31,
2019: 25) basis points
Interest rates — decrease by 18 {(March 31,
2019: 25) basis points

{2,182) {3,012)

2,182 3,012

The sensitivity is derived holding all ather variables constant.

¢} Foreign currency risk

The Company does not have any foreign currency denominated exposures in respect of financial assets and financial liabilities as at the balance
sheet date that will result in net currency gains or losses in the statement of profit and loss due to change foreign currency exchange rates.

d) Price risk
The Company does not have exposures in respect of financial assets and financial liabilities as at balance sheet date that will resuit in changes in
statement of profit or loss or equity due to change in prices.




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {india) Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)

37. Related party transactions (As per Ind AS 24)
{a) Parent entlties

The c y is controlled by the following entity:

(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Name of the entity

Type

Place of
Encorporation

HSBC InvestDirect {india) Limited

Holding Company

India

HSBC Holdings Pic

Ultimate holding
company

United Kingdom

HSBC Investdirect Financial Services {India) Limited.
Employee Gratuity Trust

Post Employement

Benfit Pian {PEBP)

HSBC Securities and Capital Markets (India) Private Limited

{C) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

Mr St nu Shankar, M Director
Mr. Arvind Sethi - Director

Ms Leena Gidwani - Director

Ms. Sharada Sangekar - Director

Mr_ Butun Mohapatra - Director

Mr. Madhur Malviya - Director

My Vipul Malkan - Director

Intermediate
holding compan

HSBC Securities and Capita! Markets (India) Private Limited|Intermediate India
holding company

The Hongkong and Shanghai 8anking Carporation Limited |Intermediate Hong Kong
holding compan

{b) Transactions have taken place in the ordinary course of the b far the year:

Name of the entlty Relationship

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Carporation Limited -|Fellow Subsidiary

India Branches

HSBC Electronic Data Processing India Private Limited. Fellow Subsidiary

{d) Transactions during the year with related parties:

Intermediate

|Particulars Parent entities Fellow Subsidiaries KMP PEBP s COrMDER
holding company |
) 73,701 - - - =
Interest on Line of Credit g
(75,005) -} 5] ) )
- 2,085 - - .
Professianal fees ’
3 {:) {1.350) 8] ) 8]
- 11,789 - = =
Rent '
(-} {12,573 ) &) ]
54 = v - .
Reparr and Maintenance
o (76} () 5] G t)
19,203,450 - = - a
Proceeds from borrowings -
& (8,771,600 8] t) () )
g 10,169,850 - & - B
Repayment of borrowings "
il § (8,219,400) () ) €] -
. - 859 - = =
Miscellaneous expenses
° (167} (257) &) 6] &)
2 a - 2,242,000 - - =
Fixed deposits placement -
il ) - 5 ) 5]
. . - 1,915,000 - - -
Fixed deposits redemption e
P g 5 ) 5 &) £
; . - - 825 - -
Director sitting fees
8 ) 5 675) () &)
- - - 1,306 -
Contnbution to gratuity trust ¥
g () IS 5! {1,536) .
. . - - B - 150,000
Margin deposit ’
) ] ) ) l
Amounts in brackets represents amount relating to previous year
| {e} Qutstanding balances at the year end with related parties:
Particulars Parent entities | Fellow Subsldiaries KMP PEBP lm-efmediate
holding company
Bank balance {in current account}
31-Mar-20 - 10,593 = = =
31-Mar-19 . 313 - 3 -
Fixed deposits
31-Mar-20 - 327,050 - -
31-Mar-19 - = - =
Director sitting fees
31-Mar-20 - - 45 =
31-Mar-19 - = = =
Secunty deposits
31-Mar-20 - 4,579 - -
31-Mar-19 . 4,579 - -
Margin deposits
31-Mar-20 = - - o
31-Mar-19 - - - -
Borrowings
31-Mar-20 1,620,000 - - o
31-Mar-19 1,586,400 - = -
Trade payables
31-Mar-20 - 758 - =
31-Mar-19 - 63 - -
Gratuity Payable to the Trust
3i-Mar-20| . - 1.911
31-Mar-19 - 1,306




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.}

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

38 COVID-19
The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe. In many countries, including India, there has been
severe disruption to regular business operations due to fock-downs, disruptions in transportation, supply chain, travel bans,
guarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures.

The Indian Government, the Reserve Bank of India and other regulators have announced various measures and relaxations
acknowledging the current situation to ensure that there is enough liquidity in the hands of market participants and provided
moratoriums to the borrowers in terms of their reapayments to the financial institutions.

The Company is in the business of providing loans against securities and raising monies through borrowings. The Company has
made an assessment of its liquidity position applying stress scenarios. The Company believes that it has taken into account all the
possible impact of known events arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the financial statements. The Company has
further assessed the recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising Loans and advances, investments, fixed assets, other
receivables as at balance sheet date, and has concluded that there are no material adjustments required in the financial
Statements. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature
and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

39 Commercial Paper Listing
The Company was required to lists its Commercial Papers (CP) on stock exchanges as a result of the SEBI circular
SEBI/HO/IMD/DF2/CIR/P/2019/104 dated October 1, 2019 which mandated mutual funds to invest in only listed debt instruments
including CPs. The Company, thereafter, has also complied with the requirements issued by SEBI under the framework for listing of
CPs vide circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2019/115 dated October 22, 2019 and as impiemented by stock exchanges.

The listing of CPs by the Company to comply with the SEBI requirements does not qualify the Company as a “Listed Company” (as
defined under the Companies Act, 2013} and to substantiate the same, the Company has obtained legal opinion which confirms
this position,




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)

40 Comparison between provisions required under IRACP and impairment allowances made under Ind AS 109

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms Asset classification as |Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Net Carrying Amount |Provisions required as |Difference between
per Ind AS 109 |Amaunt as per Ind AS |{Provisions) as per IRACP norms Ind AS 109 provisions
required under Ind AS and IRACP norms
109
1 2 4 5=34 [ 7=4-6
Performing Assets
6,020,296 2 6,019,694 24,081 ,47
Standard Stage 1 60 ) {23,479)
Stage 2 - - - - -
Subtotal 6,020,295 602 6,019,694 24,081 (23,479)
Non-Performing Assets
Substandard Stage 3 = - = 5
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 ~ - = - -
1to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - 3 E -
Subtotal for doubtful
Loss Stage 3 3 - - - -
Subtotal for NPA - - - - -
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1
L i ts, etc. which are in the scope of Ind x = 2 =
AS 109 but not covered under current Income  |Stage 2 ; A R
Recognition, Asset Classification and -
|Provisioning (IRACP) norms Stage 3
Subtotal - - - - .
Stage 1 6,020,296 602 6,019,694 24,081 (23,479)
Total Stage 2 - - - - -
Stage 3 - o S - -
Total 6,020,296 602 §,019,6584 24,081 (23,479)
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HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)

NBFC disclosures

1 Capital to Risk Assets Ratio {CRAR)

{Amount in Rs. crore)

{Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2018
{) CRAR {%) 58.82% 49.61%)
{t1) CRAR -Tier | Capital (%) 58.81% 49 27%
{111) CRAR -Tier |1 Capital [%) 001% 0.34%,
{rv) Amount of subardinated debt raised as Tier | ¢apital - N
{v] Amount raised by issute of Perpetual Cebt Instruments = -
2 Investments
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(1)
1) Gross Value of investments
(a) InTndia 147.85 30.00
{b) Outside India - -
{11) Provisions for Depreciation *
(a) In India - 30.00
{b) Outside India - -
(i} Net Value of Investments
(a) Inindia 147.85 0.09
{b) Qutside india - -
(2) ™M of isions held is depreciation on il *
(i) Opening balance - 30.00
{ii) Add : Provisions made during the year - 4
(i) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during tha year - -
(iv) Closing balance 2 30.00

* Refer note 6

3 Derivatives
The C

has notr  expe in d in the current and previous year.

4 Disclosures relating to Securitisation
The Company has not sold lcans through Securitisation (¢ the current and previous year.

5 Details of financial assets sotd to tacuritisation / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction
The Company has not sold fi ial assets to 5 itis /R

uction C

6. Details of assignment transactions undertaken:

dartak

The Company has nat tr

in the current and previous year.

7. Detads of nen-performing financial assets purchased / sold:
The Company has net purchased /scld non-performing financials assets in the current and previous year.

for asset reconstruction in the current and previous year.

B Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Habiliti
Particulars 15 days to Over 1 Over2 Over3 Over6 Over 1 Yearsto Over 3 Over S Total
Gdayto? 8 daysto 14 30/31 days Months upto | Months upto Months to Months to 3 Years Years to Years
days days {One month) 2 Months. 3 Months 6 Months 1 Year 5 Years

Deposits

March 31, 2020 - . - - - - - - -

March 31, 2019 - 3 - - 2, = - - -
Loans and advances

March 31, 2020 8.07 21.67 52.65 17.63 68.47 2]4.41 115.07 104.00 = 60197

March 31, 2019 9.17 1787 12.94 128.52 351.98 169.69 36.50 = 726.67
Investments

March 31, 2020 - - - - C - - - - 147 85 14785

March 31, 2019 = = £ = = = = - = - -
Fixed deposits with
banks

March 31, 2020| 9.00 32.70 14.32 - - . 3.00 . - = 59.02

March 31, 2019 9.00 1430 = - - 3.00 - - = 26 30
Borrowings

March 31, 2019 99.59 - 4837 73.07 = i62.00 - - 384.03

March 31, 2019 11.35| - 123.97 43.08 = 158.64 - - 343.04
Foreign currency assets

Mareh 31, 2019 = - - - - - - - . = -

March 31, 2015 - = - - = - = - = - -
Foreign currency
labilties

March 31, 2019 = = = = & = - - - -

March 31, 2019 & 2, z - - L] = = = 2 -

Untan?s &
Fon, o lNﬁOQQAs}J %
ATmbal




HSBC InvestDirect Financlal Services (tndia) Limited
Naotes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)

NBFC disclosures {Coatinued) (Amount in Rs.crore}

9 Exposures
Exposure to Capital Market

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
direct investmeant in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the

0 i
W corpus of which is not exclusively invested n corporate debt; L Ly
) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or cther securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares 1550 43.06]
= {encluding IPCs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-ciiented mutual funds; ; )
) advances for any other purpases where shares or convertible bonds or convartible debentures or units of equity orientad 860.75 999,58
m . i
mutual funds are taken ss primary security * ;
advances for any other purposes to the extent securad by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
(e} debentures or units of equity orianted mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / = -
convertible debentures / units of equity ariented mutual funds ‘does not fully cover the advances;
{v] secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issuad on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers; -
” loans sanctioned te corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for B
d meeting promoter's cantribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resaurces;
[wn) bridge loans to companies aganst expected equity flows / issues, - -
[watn} all exposures to Venture Capital Funds {both registered and unregistered} - -
Total Exposure to Capital Market 856.26 1,042.64
* This exposure includes advances for any purposes secured by debt-oriented mutual funds and bonds.
The Company has no expasure to real estate sector in the current and previous year.
10 Detals of fi ing of parent prod
This disc) e [s not i as tha G y does not finance parent company products.
11. Single Borrower Limit (SGL} / Group Borrower Limit {GBL) are not exceaded by the Company.
12 Unsecured Ad —The Comp has no Ui d Adh in the current and previous year,
13. Registration ob d from other fi | sector i
The Company Is registered with Mirustry of Corporate Affairs.
14 Oisclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators:
No penalties were imposed by RBI and other regufators during current and previous year.
15. Ratings assigned by credst rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year:
March 31, 2020 " March 31, 2019
Instrument cate;
oy Fitch Rating Valid upto Fitch Rating Valid vgto
Short term debt IND AL+ IND A1+
Aprif 4, 2020 April 4, 2019
tang term debt IND AAA/ Stable i il IND ARA/ Stable -
16. Provisians and C
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Statement of Profit and Loss
Pravisions for depraciation on Investment = -
Provision towards NPA = 3
[Prowision made towards Income tax 9.53 9.45
Other Provision and Contingencies [with details)
Prowision made for impairment of trademark arrangements - -
Provision for Standard Assets (2.84) 1.12
17 Draw Down from Reserves:
There has been no draw down from reserves during the current and previous year.
18 Concentration of Advances and Exposures:
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 33, 2013
Concentration of Advances
Total Advances to twenty largest borrawers 497.20 599.97
% of Advances to twenty largest borrowers tc Total Advances 83% B2%
Concentratlon of Exposures
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / custemers 836.00 826.00
% of Exposures to twanty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure 64% 66%
Concentratlon of NPAs
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts -
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Sector-wise NPAs (% of NPAs / Total Advances in that sector)
Agriculture & allied activities - .
Micre, smal! and medium enterprises = .
Corporate borrowers . .
Services - -
Unsecured personal loans o o
Auto loans = 5
Other personal ioans - .
Others = e

-

i ——
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41

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 [Contd.)

NBFC disclosures {Continued) {Amount in Rs.crore)
19. Disclosure of custemer complaints

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. of complaints

Nc of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - 1
No. of complaints received during the year - -
No. of complaints redressed during the year - 1
Na. of camplaints pending at the end of the year - -

The C has a C Grievance Red | Mechanism for of 1o register their complaints and for the Company to monitar and redress them.

20 In accordance with RE] Master Direction ONBR.PD 008/03.10 118/2016-17 dated September 1, 2016 {Updated upto May 16, 2019), the foliowing are the additional disclosures required under
the format as prescribed vide paragraph 16 of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemtcally Important Non-Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Amount outstanding Amount overdue
Liabilities: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,2020  March 31, 201
{1} Loans and advances availed by the non banking fi | { of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
{a} Debentures {other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
: Secured - - . -
: Unsecured - . - =
(b) Deferred Credits - - - -
{c} Term Loans - - - -
(8) inter-Corparate Loans and Borrowing 162.00 158.64 - -
{e) Commercial Paper 222.03 173.05 - -
{f} Other Loans - - - -
{i} Short Term Loans - x = K
{li} Bank Overdraft - 11.35 - -
{iii} Line of Credit - . - -
Totat 384.03 343.04 - -
Amount outstanding Amount overdue
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(2 Break-up of Loans and Ad including bills ivables [other than those included in {4) below]:
{a) Secured 602.03 729.57 -
(b} Unsecured - - -
Amount outstanding Amount overdue
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
(3) Break up of Leased Assats and stack on hire and other assets counting towards Asset Finance Company ['AFC’) activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
{a) Financial Lease - - E
{b} Operating Lease = = =
{ii} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry dehtors.
{a) Assets on hire . E £
{b) Repossessed assets - - -
{1ii} Other loans counting towards Assat Finance Company activities:
{a} Loans where assets have been repossessed = - -
{b) Loans other than (a) above - - -
Amount outstanding Amount overdue
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019’
14y Break-up of Investments
Current Investments
1 Quoted :
{1) Shares: {a) Equity - - - -
{b} Preference - . - -
(1) Debentures and Bonds - - - -
{ui] Units of Mutual Funds 147.85 - 3 g
{iv) Goverament Securities - - - .
[v} Others - - = E
2 Unguoted :
{1) Shares: {a) Equity - - - E
{b} Preference - - = -
{ii} Debentures and Bonds - 3 : <
{itl]] Units of Mutual Funds .- . - -
(iv) Government Securities - - - -
(v) Others - - - 4
tong Term investments -
1 Quated:
(1) Shares: {2) Equity - - - B
(b} Preference - - . -
(i) Debentures and Bonds - - - -
{ui} Units of Mutual Funds - - - -
(v} Government Securities - - . -
(v} Others - . - -
2 Unguoted
(i) Shares: {a) Equity# - - - -
{b) Preference - - - -
(1i) Debentures and Bonds b = o -
(i) Units of Mutual Funds . - - -
{iv) Government Securities - - ~ - .
(v} Others i ered A~ .
- pt LCcg,, -
# Includes investments in HSBC InvestDirect Securities (India) Private Limitad of Rs. 30 which is fully provided. ; /’L\_P\N ARL=900 7

Chartered Adcountants ) -~
3 o 'b/-\
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HSBC InvestDIrect Financial Services {India) Limited
Notes to financiai statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Contd.)

NBFC disclasures {Continued)

(Ameunt in Rs.crore}

is) Borrower group-wise classification of ali Leased Assets, Stock on Hire and Loans and Advances:See Note 2
March 31, 2020
Category Amount [Net of Provisions)
Secured  Unsecured Total
1 Related Parties**
(a) Subsidiaries - - -
t {b} Companies in the same group » - -
‘ {¢) Other related parties 3 . .
| 2 Other than re'ated partres 601.97 - 601.97
[ Tetal 601.97 - £01.97

** As per Accounting Standard issued by Instltute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)

March 31, 2015
Amount {Net of Provisions)

Secured Unsecured Total
726 67 - 726 67
726 67 - 726 67

Tacalfi

of all

fiey Investar group-wise ¢

Mareh 31, 2020
Category
up or fair value or
NAYV
1 Related Parties**
(a) Subsidiaries -
(b) Companies in the same group -
(c) Other related parties =
2 Other than related parties 147.85
Total 147.85

1ts (current and Jong term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted) (Please see Note 3 below):

March 31, 2019

Market Value / Break Boak Value {Netof Market Value / Break Book Value {Net of

Provisions) up or fair value or NAV Provisions)

14739 =
147,39

(¥4] Other information

Particulars

{1} Gross Nen-Performing Assets
(a} Related Parties
({b) Other than Related Parties

{u) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Partres
(b) Other than Related Parties

{im} Assets acquired in satlsfaction of debts

March 31, 2020
Amount

March 31, 2019
Amaount|

Notes
1 Asdefined in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Diractions.
2 Provisioning norms shal be applizable as prescribed in these Directions
3 Ali Accounting Stzndards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAl are

i, luding for val

of ir

and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market

value in respect of quoted investments and break up / fair value / NAV in respect of unguoted mvestments shail be disc'osed irrespective of whether they are classified as iong term or currant i {5}

abave

21 Movement of Non Ferforming Assets (NPAs}

Particulars

{a) Nat NPAs to Net Advances (%]
(b] Moverent of NPAs (Grass)
{+) Opening balance
(1) Additions during the yeas
(iii) Reductions during the year
(iv} Closing batance
[e] Movement of Net NPAs
{1} Opening balance
(1i} Additions during the year
(ii1) Reductions during the year
(v} Closing batance
[d] Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding pr ions on L]
{i) Ogening balance
(n) Provisions made during the year
t (i} (Write-off) / write-back
t (iv} Closing balance

d assets)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

22 In accord with RBI Notfr
{Previous year Re NI}

23 Informaticn on instances of fraud
No wstances of fraud observed i current and previous year

24 The Company does not have any restructured accounts.

25. The Company does not have any Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored.

26 Dunng the current as well as previous year, the Company has not postponed revenue recognition on account of pending uncertainties.
27 Tre Company does not have any overseas joint venture / subsidiary

28 Remuneration of Directors
There (5 ng pacdniary relationship or transactions of the nan-executive directors vis-a vis the company, other than

79 ird AS 110 - Conselidatad Financial § 1ts (CFS)
The company does not have any subsidiary 2nd hance no consolidated financial statements required to be prepared under ind AS 110

(O

N 01275aNNES>

No. DNBS.CC.PD No 365/03 10.01/2013-14 dated Jsnuary 8, 2014, the Company has not lent against gotd jewellery dunng the year ended 31 March 2020

director sithing fees as disciasad in note 27




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India} Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Contd.)

42 Public disclosure on liquidity risk

{i) Funding Concentration based on significant c party {both dep

its and borrowings]

(Amount in Rs. crore}

Sr. No. Number of siginficant counterparties Amount (INR Crore) % of Total Deposit | % of Total Liabilities *
1|Commercial Paper from 3 Mutual fund companies 222 |NA 57.2%
2|Loan from holding company 162 |NA 41.7%
(ii) Top 20 large depasits (amount in X crore and % of total deposits) - Not Applicable
{iii) Top 10 borrowings (amount inX crore and % of total borrowings)
Sr. No. Type of Borrowing Amount % of borrowings
1|Commercial paper 222 57.8%
2|Loan from holding company 162 42.2%
Total 384 100%
{lv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
Sr. No. Number of i t / product Amount {INR Crore) | % of Total Liabilities *
1|Commercial paper 222 57.2%l
2|Loan from holding company 162 41.7%
[v) Stock Ratios:
Sr. No. Particulars March 31, 2020
1|Commercial Paper Ta Total Public Funds NA
2|Commercial Paper To Total Liabilities* 57.2%
3|Commercial Paper To Total Assets 26.4%
4|NCD's {original maturity < 1 year) To Total Public Funds NA
S|NCD's {origina! maturity < 1 year) To Total Liabilities* NA]
6{NCD's {original maturity < 1 year) To Total Assets NA|
7|0ther short-term liabilities To Total Public Funds NA
8|Other short-term liabilities To Total Liabilities* 0.7%,
9|Other short-term liabilities To Total Assets 0.3%

{vi} Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India} Limited has Board approved policy for managing its liquidity risk. The Liquidity risk would be monitored in Asset
Liability Management Committee / Risk Management Committee on a monthly basis.

* Total Liahilities is excluding Equity and reserves.

1n terms of our report for even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm's Registration No: 012754N/NS00016

=i

Sharad Agarwal
Partner
Membership No: 118522

Mumbai
June 25, 2020

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited

T S

&
Sharada Sangekar

Chairperson
{DIN 07788255}

Sunita Sarda
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
lune 25, 2020

Yovlioh—

Shanm

Managing Director
{DIN 08054929)

(NS

Sneha Doshi
Company Secretary
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP-..

To the Board of Directors of

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services: (Indla) Lmuted
Building No. 3,Western Express Highway,. :
Goregaon, (East),

Mumbai — 400 063

- Limited Review Report

1. We have reviewed the accompanying vfaudited finasicial results of 'HSBC' InvestDirect
Financial Setvices (India)} Limited" (the "NBI‘C”) for the quarter ended Jutie 30, 2022, Wh hi;'
-are mcluded in the accompanying

Obligations and Disclosure Requiremedts) e_gu}atmns,' 20'15',' @s amended (the "‘L:stmg;_
Regulations, 2015"). We have digitally initialled the Statement for identifiction purposes only.

2. The Statement is the responsibility of the NBFC's Managemerit and has been. -approved by the’ )
NBEC's- Board of ‘Directors: Qur responsibility is to- express a conclusion ‘on’ thie Statemen’c-r_'
based on ourreview,

Independent Audztor of the Entity, issued. bi'the: Tristitu of Chartered Accounitants of Ind.la
This: stanidard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain modera assirance asto
whether fhe financial statemnents are free of rhatefial rm'sstatement A 1ev1ew' is I
primarily to ingquiries of commpany personnel and analytical pro
and thus provides less assurance than an audii. Accor
' -opimon

4, Based on our réview.conducted as above, nothing has comé. to: our: attentmn that caut;es us to- _
believe that the actompanying Statément has not been prepared ir
applicable accounting standards and other recognise
‘lias ot disélosed the.information requiired to-be-disclos
of Regulatmn 52 of the Listing Regulations, 2615,.as"am
it is to be disclosed, or that it contains atiy material m
prepared in accordance with the relevant prudential norn

. (RBI) in téspect ‘of Income Tecognition, asset cl
‘miatters, to the extent those are not'in E: _
- preseribed wrider Seetion 133 of the Companies Ast; 26 13.-"

For Price ‘Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountarits
'an Reglstratmu Nurnher 012754“%/1@500016

o Debes 20}2 07.28
U UIFGLSR #0535

.'Russell I Parera
Partner
' Membership Nutnber: . 042190
- UDIN: 22042150ANTGAD6960
" Place: Mumbaij
Dites July 28, 2022

‘Prite Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Nesco IT Building I Bth Flnor. Nesco {T Park; Nesco Complex
Gate No. 3 Westem Express Highway, Goregaon. Edst, Mumbai - 400 063

T: +91{22}61198000. F: +91 {22) 61198799

. Régiatisied offién and He office: Suchots Biismau, 11A Vishnt Digembar darg, New Dethi 110 G0z

*'Price Wattihiéiise (a Partderthip Firm) converted inte Price Waterbrwss Chiitored A:mntnats LLP {i Limited Linblm:y Fartiershilp with LLE idmtlt)r

- nb: LUBIN AAC-5001) with &lféct froin July 25, 2014, Pout its Conversion 1o Price Watarkoise Chinrbersd Arc ks LLL, it TCAL rep
) ‘is 012754!”2{5“3016 (TCAL regitratio, prmber before converalai w-om:rmm v :




HSBC investDirect Financial Services {India} Limited

Statement of Unaudited Financial Results:for the quarter-ended June 30; 2022

Statemient of Profit and Loss for the quarter ended June 30, 2022
{All amounts.in INR thousands, unless-otherwisé stated)

Forthe year

Quarter ended )
Particubars - - _ghded
- 30062022 | gy 03.000p¢ | LS2022
‘{Uniaudited} ' {Audited)

Revenue from operations
Interest tncoma 171,808 115,477 416,123
Net gain onfair value changes 2,367 2,769 17,304
Total revenue from operations 174,175: 122,246 433,427
Otherincome 3. 16,261 16,286
Total income 174,178, 138,507 449,713
Expenses
Finance costs 73,079 39,847 121,878
Impairment on finandial instruments &4 277 261
Employee beneflits expenses 13,427 13,320 44,112
Depreciation _an_d amortisation 734 707 1,936
Others expenses 10,764 11,668 52,262
Total expenses 98,068 65,819 220,509
Proflt beforé tax 76,110 72,688 229,204
Income tax expanse:

-Current tax 19,700 14,078 55,000

- Defarred tak [391) 464 594

- {Excess )f Short provision for tax of earlier vears - {18,724) {18,724}
Total tax expense 19,309 {4,182} 36,870
Profit for the period 56,201 76,870 192,334
Other comprehensive income
1) Htems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obiigatiqns {74 {606} (295)
-Changes in the fair value of equity investments at FVOC - 17,057 17,057
it} incoma tax relating to-items that will not be reclassified to 19 152 74
proflt or loss
Other comprehensive prafit/{loss) for the period. {55} 16,603 16,836
Total comprehensive income for-the period 56,746 93,473 209,170 |
Earnings per equity share (Nomihal value of Rs, 10 per
share)

-.Basic.and Diluted (Rs.} 0.29 0.53 1,31

“*Refer Note 4




HSBC InvestDirect Financlat Services {India) Limited _
Statement of Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter ended fune 30,2022

Notes:

The above resufts have been prepated pursuant to  the requirement of .paragraph 1.2 of Annexure W of cirdufar ng.
SEBi/HO! DDHS{DDHS}CFHIP&MQ} 11% dated October 22, 2019 {as amended by c1rl:uiar no, 5EBI!HO}DDHS;‘DDHS!C!RZP}IO.‘LE[IE? dated Decamber
24, 2019} and circular no. SEBE,’HO;‘DDHS}C!R&GZU&OD000063‘? dated’ Prober 05 2021 Issued by the: Seturities and Exchange Board of india
{"SEB|"}. The financial results hive been prepared in actcrdance with recognitwn and measuremant principles faid down in accordgance with the
indian Accounting Standard 34 "Interim Financial Repurting" {'lad-AS 34" as prescribiad- unger Section 133 of the Companies Act; 2013:{'the-Act’ '} réad
with Campan:es {indian Accounting Standards) Ruies, 2015 as-amendad from time to time and: the othar atcounting grincipies, generallv acceptad I
india, Any-appfication guidarice / ctarification / directions Issued by the Resarve Bank of indla-of other fegulators arg-implémented as-and when they
‘are issued or applicabie.

The abgie results have been reviewed and recommended for Board appravat by-the Aundit Committee and-approved and taken on record by the
Board. of Directors at the meeting haldon July 28, 2022

The spread of COVID-18 has severely Impacted businesses around the globe. The Company is in-the business of pruvldmg Igans against securitfes and
ralsing monies through borrowings. The Company has made an.: -assessmant of ity ltqmditv posmlon applying stress scenarlas ‘The:Cofmpany’ believes
that it has tuken Into sccount al! the possibleimpact of known, evgnts arising from COViD-19- pandemic i the praparation of the financial statements,

The- fgures for the-quarter ended March 31, 2022.are the balancing figuras:between audited ﬂgures for the year ended March 31, 2022 and the
unauditad published figures fof ning months ended December 32, 1021 whith were subjatt to limited review by the Stattitory Auditor.

The fgures for the quarter ended.June 2021 ware not subject ta Jimited review by the. Statutary Auditor and thus it has béen excluded in adharence
to 5EBj clrcuIar SEB?}HDIDDHS{C[R/EOZHGWDE}OQEB? dated Dctaber 035, 2021

The: Company is primarily engaged In the business of financing and there ara no- separata. reportahfe segments identified a5 par theind AS 108 -
Segment Reporting.

Figures:for the previous periodfyear have been regroupad wherever necessary to confitm 'to'cyf[ent period/year presentation.

For and on behalf af the Board.of Directors of
HSBC tnvestDiract Financlal Services {Indla) Limited-

SHANTA *'3‘?"'""'?**“
Ny sﬂmm
SHANKAR ks
Shantanu Shankar
Managing.Diractor
{DIN UBOS4329)

We, Price Waterhouse Chartered Accointants LUP, havé signed this statement foridentification purposes only arid this.Statement should ks read. in
conjum:ﬂon with auir réport dated July 28, 2022,

For Price Waterhouse 'g:ha__;_ie_rad Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Namber: 012754N/N500016
- DigHatly siined by
RUSSELL s ssE L
PARERA.
IVAN. PARERA Date' 202207.28.
T

Russel! I_:Parera
Partner : _
Membership No: 0421580

Mumbai
July 2B, 2022
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Review Report

To the Board of Directors of,

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited,
Building No. 3,Western Express Highway,

Goregaon {East),

Mumbai = 400 063

1.

We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited financial results of HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services
(India) Limited {the “NBFC”) for the quarter ended September 3o, 2022 and the year to date results for
the period April 1, 2022 to September 3o, 2022, which are included in the accompanying Statement of
Profit and Loss, the unaudited Statement of Assets and Liabilities as on that date and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the half-year ended on that date (the “Statement”) being submitted by the NBFC pursuant
to the requirements of Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (the “Listing Regulations, 2015. We have digitally signed the Statement for
identification purposes only.

The Statement is the responsibility of the NBFC's Management and has been approved by the NBFC's
Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Statement based on our review.

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements
(SRE) 2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and
perforim the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and analytical
procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. Accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the accompanying Statement has not been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards and other recognised accounting practices and policies, and has not disclosed the information
required to be disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 52 of the Listing Regulations,
2015, as amended, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material
misstatement, or that it has not been prepared in accordance with the relevant prudential norms issued by
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) in respect of Income recognition, asset classification, provisioning and
other related matters, to the extent those are not inconsistent with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/ N500016

Digitaly signed by
RUSSELL AUSSELL /AN PRREAS

IVAN PARERA Rate: 202211.1

192205 +08"30°

Russell I Parera

Partner

Membership Number: 042190
UDIN: 22042190BCULHP54¢0

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 11, 2022

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Nesco IT Building 1lI, 8th Floor, Nesco IT Park, Nesco Complex
Gate No. 3 Western Express Highway, Goregaon East, Mumbai - 400 063
T: +91(22) 61198000, F: +91 (22] 61193799

Registered office and Head office: Sucheta Bhawan, 11A Vishpu Digambar Marg, New Delhi 110 002

Price Waterthouse (2 Partnership Firm] converted into Price Waterhouse Chartered Aeesuntants LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity
no: LUPIR AAC.500 1} with effect from July 25, 2014, Post its Co jon to Price W i Chartered Accountants LLP, its ICAl registration numnber
is 0127540 /NS00016 [[CAY registration number before conversion was G12754N)




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited
Statement of Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2022

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otharwise stated)

Quarter ended Half year ended Year ended
Particulars September June 30, September | September | September March
30, 2022 2022 30, 2021 30, 2022 30, 2021 31, 2022
{Unaudited} | {Unaudited} | [Unaudited) | [Unaudited) | (Unaudited) { {Audited)

Revenue from operations
Interest income 178173 171,808 50,001 349,981 197,215 416,123
Reversal of impairment on financial instrumants - - 95 - 125 -
Net gain on fair value changes 5,007 2,367 7,659 8,374 9,218 17,304
Total revenue from operations 184,180 174,175 97,755 358,355 206,559 433,427
Other income 1,526 3 3 1,529 23 16,286
Total income 185,706 174,178 87,758 350,884 206,582 449,713
Expenses
Finance costs 78,041 73,079 29,351 151,120 55,617 121,878
Impairment on financial instruments 79 64 - 143 - 261
Employee benefits expenses 12,306 13,427 10,205 25,733 20,027 44,112
Depreciation and amortisation 720 734 472 1,454 691 1,996
Others expenses 12,353 10,764 10,897 23,117 18,713 52,262
Total expenses 103,459 98,069 51,025 201,567 95,048 220,509
Profit before tax 82,207 76,110 46,733 158,317 111,534 225,204
Incame tax expense: |

- Current tax 20,770 15,700 10,448 1 40,470 27,448 55,000 |

- Deferrad tax (232) {391) 650 | {623} 1,470 594

- (Excess )/ Short provision for tax of earlier years 51 - | 51 - (18,724)]
Total tax expense 20,589 19,309 11,098 39,898 28,918 36,870 |
Profit for the period 61,618 56,801 35,635 118,419 | 82,616 192,334 |

Other comprehensive income |

i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment  benefit {73) (74) 103 (147) 206 {295)
obligations
!—. Changes in the fair value of equity investments at - - - - - 17,057
FvoCI -~
ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be i8 19 {26)] 37 [52) 74
reclassified to profit or loss ‘
Other comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period (55) (55) Al (110) 154 16,836
Total comprehensive income for the period 61,563 56,746 35,712 118,309 | 82,770 209,170

Earnings per equity shara {Nominal value of Rs, 10 per
share)
- Basic and Diluted {Rs.} 0.42 0.39 .24 D.81 0.56 1.31




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services [India) Limited

Statement of Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter and half year endad September 30, 2022

Statement of Unaudited Assets and Liabilities as at September 30, 2022

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
Particulars 30-09-2022 30-09-2021 31-03-2022
{Unaudited) | (Unaudited) {Audited)
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 33,005 9,041 12,274
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 403,942 403,570 403,202
Loans 10,013,821 4,712,653 8,581,427
Investments 102,417 1,259,299 209,799
Other financial assets 7,148 4,729 7,148
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) 156,383 156,424 143,181
Deferred tax assets (Net) 2,770 1,160 2,110
Property, plant and equipment 3,884 3,162 4,351
Intangible assets 2,771 4,282 3,527
Other non-financial assets 6,582 4,174 5,209
Total assets 10,732,733 6,558,494 9,372,228
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
(1} Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -

(ii} total ouistanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 13,124 10,500 10,700

small enterprises
Debt securities 4,054,766 98,975 2,816,565
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,620,189 1,620,000 1,620,000
Other financial liabilities 3,152 3,045 856
Non-financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net) - 15,311 -
Provisions 2,754 17,195 2,077
Other non-financial liakilities 1,502 931 3,003
EQUITY
Equity share capital 1,462,847 1,462,847 1,462,847
Other equity 3,574,399 3,329,690 3,456,090
Total equity 5,037,246 4,792,537 4,918,937
Total liabilities and equity 10,732,733 6,558,494 9,372,228




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited

Statement of Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2022

Statement of cash flows for the half year ended September 30, 2022

(All amounts in INR thousands, unlass otherwise stated)

April 1, 2022 to April 1, 2021 to April 1, 2021 tp
Particulars September 30, 2022 | September 30, 2021 March 31, 2022
{Unaudited} {Unaudited} [Audited}
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profit before tax: 158,317 111,534 228,204
Adjustments :
Depreciation and amortisation 1,454 691 1,996
Impairment on financial assets 143 - 261
Interest expense on borrowings 48,457 {125)| 95,101
interest paid on borrowings (48,457} - (99,101)
Interest expense on debt securities 99,480 - 19,860
Liability no longer requirad written back - - (16,173)
Interest income on bank deposits (9,9562) (9,674) (15,278)
Unrealised gain on mutual fund {136) (5,507) (144)
Realised gain on mutual fund (8,238} (3,712) (17,160}
Interest on income tax refund (1,524) - -
Operating profit before working capital changes 239,534 93,207 198,566
Adjustments for working capital changes:
{Increase)/decrease in bank balance other than cash and cash [
equivalents {740) 143 | 511
{Increase)/decrease in loans (1,432,537) 1,254,529 | {2,614,632)
Increase in other financial assets - 9,984 | 7,565
(Increase)/decrease in other neon financial assets (1,383} (?22)5 (1,757)
Adjustments for increase/ {decrease) in operating liabilities '
Trade payables 2,424 {963) {763}
Other financial liabilities 2,296 (6,593) (8,782)
Provisions 530D 363 917
Other non financial iahilities (1,591) (1,676) 486
Cash generated from operations (1,431,001} 1,255,065 {2,616,455)
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (52,200) (31,499) (42,341)
Net cash inflow / {outflow) from operating activities (1,243,667) 1,316,773 (2,460,230)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Placement of fixed deposit with bank {250,400} (138,400) (138,400)
Proceeds from fixed deposit with bank 290,400 140,000 140,000
Interest income on bank deposits 9,862 9,674 19,278
Purchase of fixed assets (231) {1,171) {2,309)
Investment in mutual fund (5,515,000) {2,975,000) (7,102,500)
Redemption in mutual fund 5,630,757 1,835,000 7,037,141
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 125,488 (1,129,897) (47,390)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCENG ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from issue of debt securities 5,388,721 98,975 3,199,265
Repayment of debt securities (4,250,000) (247,439) (650,000)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) fram financing activities 1,138,721 (148,464) 2,549,265
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BANK BALANCES 20,542 38,412 41,645
Add : Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 12,274 (29,371)| (29,371)
|Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 32,816 9,04_1_‘!7 12,274
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalants as per above comprise of the followin
As at As at ' As at
Particulars 30-09-2022 30-09-2021 | 31-03-2022
{Unaudited) {Unaudited) | {Audited)
Cash and cash equivalents 33,005 8,041 [ 12,274
Bank overdrafts {189) - | -
Balances as per statement of cash flows 32,816 9,041 ' 12,274




HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services {India) Limited
Statement of Unaudited Einancial Results for the quarter and half year ended September 30, 2022

Notes:
The above results have been prepared pursuant to the requirement of paragraph 1.2 of Anmnexure 11 of drcular no.

SESI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2019/115 dated October 22, 2019 {as amended by circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2019/167 dated Dacember
24, 2019} and circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/2021/0000000637 dated October 05, 2021 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{“SEBI"). The financial results have been prepared in accardance with recognition and measurement principles l2id down in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” ("tnd AS 34') as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act') read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and the other accounting printiples generally accepted in
India. Any application guidance / clarification / directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India or cther regulztors are implemented as and when they
are issued or applicable.

The abave results have been reviewed and recommended for Board approval by the Audit Committee and approved and taken on record by the
Board of Directors at the meeting held oa November 11, 2022.

The spread of COVID-19 has saverely impacted businesses around the globe. The Company Is in the business of providing loans against securities and
raising monies through borrowings. The Company has made an assessment of its liquidity position applying stress scenarios. The Compary believes
that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arising frem COVID-19 pandemicin the preparation of the financial statements,

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing and there are no separate reportable segments identified as per the Ind AS 108 -
Segment Reporting.
Figures for the previous period/year have been regrouped wherever necessary to tonfirm to current period/year presentation.

For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of
HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited

SHANT’AN Digitaily signed by

SHANTANU
U SHANKAR
Date: 202211414

SHANKAR 190127 +0530°

Shantanu Shankar
Managing Birector
{DIN 08054929)

We, Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, have signed this statement for identification purposes only and this Statement should be read in
conjunction with our report dated November 11, 2022,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

RUSSELL Digitally signed by

RUSSELL VAN

VAN PARERA
Date: 2022.34.11

PARERA 19:22:55 +05'30

Russell 1 Parera
Partner
Membership No: 042190

Mumbai



Exhibit D

Loan Against Securities

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited

Background:

HSBC InvestDirect Financial Services (India) Limited (“HIFSL”) is a Non-Banking Finance
Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India. HIFSL is a part of the HSBC group
and primarily in the business of lending against financial securities. HIFSL has been consistently
AAA rated by Fitch and CIRSIL.

Value Proposition & Key Features/Benefits

Value Proposition:
1. Loan Against Securities is a secured loan using readily marketable financial securities or

highly liquid instruments (such as listed stocks / shares, mutual fund units, bonds) as collateral
2. It meets immediate cashand liquidity needs without requiring to liquidate financial assets
Provides a source of liquidity up to a certain percentage of the market value of the securities
4. Supports cash flow needs and/or use for a variety of purposes (As allowed by local
regulations)
5. Line-of-credit and Fixed term loans available

w

Key Features and Benefits:

1. Generally, lower costof borrowing compared to other types of loans

2. Cash against long-term assets without liquidation

3. Get credit up to 50% of equities/equity mutual funds, 80 to 90% on debt mutual funds and
bonds

4. Direct cash payouts into customer’s HSBC bank account

5. Loans limits based on credit worthiness and value of eligible collaterals

The company offers the following types of loan:
1. Demand Loan — This facility would be offered for tenure upto 1 (one) year. The same can be
renewed for a max period of 3 (three) years.

2. Term Loan — This facility would be offered for tenure upto 3 (three) years for a fixed term.
Eligibility:

This facility is available to our existing individual customers enjoying a past satisfactory
relationship with HSBC. NRIs are currently not eligible for this loan.

INTERNAL



Purpose:

For meeting contingencies and needs of personal nature. Loan will be permitted for subscribing to
rights or new issue of shares against the security of existing shares. Loan will not be sanctioned
for (i) speculative purposes (ii) inter-corporate investments or (iii) acquiring controlling interest in
company / companies (iv) IPO Financing

Loan Amount:
Minimum Amount; Minimum - INR 25 lakhs

Maximum Amount — Dependent on HIFSL’s single and group borrower’s limit in line with
regulations

Security:
Pledge of the demat shares/ Mutual Funds/ Bonds/ FMP against which loan is sanctioned. This
will be subject to approval.

Service:
1. Dedicated HIFSL Representative

2. Regular updates on loan account and collateral portfolio

Interest Rate:
Interest rate is linked to Reference Rate (RR) which is currently at 8.00% p.a. The RR includes

costs that are common across all borrowers and is subject to change.

Risk Management & Monitoring:

HIFSL uses systems which maintains the loan account details, provides the daily MTM valuations
of collateral securities, drawing power calculations, margin call triggers and feeds the required
management information reports to Risk for margin actions and monitoring.

Margin call:

The margin calls will be triggered as per the written agreement between HIFSL and customers and
inline with the regulatory timelines.

INTERNAL
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